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ABOUT US
E R

Founded in Hong Kong in 1998, Regina Miracle International
(Holdings) Limited (“Regina Miracle” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is a global leader in the
intimate wear manufacturing industry. Adopting the innovative
design manufacturer (“IDM”) business model, Regina Miracle
offers its world-renowned brand partners diverse intimate wear
and functional sports products, including bras, sports bras,
panties, shapewear, bra pads, functional sports apparel and
footwear. The Group has two strategic strongholds - its research
and development (“R&D"”) and production base in Shenzhen,
China and, since the Group expanded production capacity in
2016, Vietnam has become its important production base.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Regina Miracle
International (Holdings) Limited (“Regina Miracle” or the
“Company”) is pleased to announce the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2019 (“Fiscal 2019"), together with the
comparative figures for the corresponding year in 2018 (“Fiscal
2018").

COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
HBHE

BB (L) BRAE([#B R %R
AR NEZE([BEE])MAEMR LR R
HINB AR (FEIAEE])HE2019943A4
SMAIEFE(20198 F ) M2 FELE - ER)
2018F [FHA([ 201881 F ) HILLERE T -

TEVMREREMBL RN

L2y

Year ended 31 March

HZE3IAMBILEFE
2019 2018
2019 2018%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
BB T T BT T -
Revenue WA 6,263,280 5,868,048 6.7%
Gross profit E7 1,341,945 1,233,923 8.8%
Profit attributable to owners of VIN/NETE 2SN
the Company FE(E % A 282,438 240,188 17.6%
Earnings before interest, taxes, BEITER
depreciation and amortisation* BEHRT R 745,856 609,791 22.3%
Gross profit margin (%) EHE(%) 21.4% 21.0% +0.4ppEHEH
Net profit margin (%) 40 ) 22 (%) 4.5% 41% +0.4ppEDE
Earnings before interest, taxes, BRIITE R
depreciation and amortisation BIFDEE (%)
margin (%) 11.9% 10.4% +1.5ppEHE
HK cents HK cents
AL A
Earnings per share — basic and AR —
diluted BEARRES 23.1 19.6
Dividend per share ESTgds 7.6 6.3
- Interim dividend — R ER S 3.6 2.5
— Proposed final dividend — I REIN B 4.0 3.8
# Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation is not a # BRYTE RS AR EY IR B S B R

measure of performance under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"), but is widely used by management for monitoring business
performance of a company from operational perspective. It may not be
comparable to similar measures presented by other companies.

ER([FBMBHRERER DERRNT X
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On behalf of the Board of the Company and the Group, | hereby
present to our shareholders the annual report of the Group for
Fiscal Year 2019.

STRENGTHENING PRESENCE IN VIETNAM
AND AN ENHANCED BRAND AND PRODUCT
PORTFOLIO FOR LONG-TERM BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

Looking back at the past year, the China-US trade negotiations
have posed challenges to the global economic and trade
landscape. However, the Group had begun to prepare for its
strategic expansion in Vietnam a few years ago. Since our first
facility was put into operation in 2016, the presence of Regina
Miracle in Vietnam has gradually been strengthened following a
three-year hardwork. It promoted a sound development of the
Group’s business and satisfied the strong demand from brand
partners for orders from production bases outside China, despite
the unstable macro-environment for global trade. Our third
Vietnamese facility has officially commenced operation during the
year, and has begun to contribute to the business growth of the
Group.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERE®E

YY Hung Chairman
W
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Although the production base in Vietnam has become one of our
major competitive advantages for long-term development, the
management understands the importance of full utilization and
proper allocation of the Group's valuable capacity. Hence, we
have optimized our brand and product portfolio since the second
half of the fiscal year in order to reach an equilibrium between
business growth and profit optimization profits. This strategy has
allowed us to achieve a more balanced and healthier portfolio;
better utilize our core technologies and resources to create
unique products with higher added-value; and establish a win-win
cooperation relationship with our brand partners. The optimization
effort has largely been completed during the year, laying a solid
foundation for the Group’s long-term business development.
Meanwhile, we have enhanced our production processes and
supply chain management, and integrated and adopted raw
materials more efficiently for better cost control as well as
increased our profitability. We have also extended our leading
advantages by standardizing the craftsmanship and automating
production processes based on our seven major technologies.

Strong capability in innovative design and manufacturing (IDM)
is another pillar of success of Regina Miracle. During the past
year, we have continued to put relentless efforts in realizing
technological breakthroughs and introduced our Seven Innovative
Technologies by advancing our three core technologies of milling,
molding and bonding. Thanks to such unique technologies, we
have successfully developed a variety of comfortable products for
different brand partners during the year that were well received
by the market. It has not only contributed to a steady increase in
the Group's sales, but has also consolidated and deepened our
cooperation with certain new international brand partners secured
in recent years, thus further diversifying our product mix and
brand portfolio.

Through the concerted efforts of the Group, its adherence
to the established business development strategy and the
entrepreneurship of endless pursuit of innovation, the Group’s
revenue and profit saw steady growth during the year. To share
the fruit of our achievements with shareholders, the Board has
resolved to propose a final dividend of HK4.0 cents per share for
the fiscal year ended 31 March 2019. Together with the interim
dividend of HK3.6 cents per share, total dividend for the current
fiscal year has amounted to HK7.6 cents, in line with the Group's
policy of paying no less than 30% of its net profit as dividends
each year.

MAMRRAEEEMDORREAEBERERRZ
Hph—R@aREy  ERENHRANER
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Looking ahead, we believe that the business environment for
the coming year remains challenging, given the uncertainty of
international trade and economic environment. With regard to our
industry, in response to the rapid and ever-changing consumption
pattern, the demand for rush orders from brand partners has been
increasing significantly in recent years. Hence, the automation
production model has become the general trend, and one of the
key elements in industrial integration.

By leveraging our two strategic production bases in Shenzhen
and Vietnam, as well as our innovative technologies which are
well-recognized by internationally renowned brand partners, we
will develop brand-new products that lead the industry with our
brand partners, which in turn helps us consolidate the Group's
leading position in the intimate wear industry while exploring new
opportunities in functional sports products.

To seize more new opportunities, we will continue to speed up
the improvement of our production layout in Vietnam, including
optimizing the resources allocation for production, and enhancing
the extent of automation in our Vietnam facilities to improve
productivity. As Factory D and E, which are equipped with more
automation facilities, are coming into full operation in June and
September 2019, respectively, the economies of scale would be
even more obvious.

To consolidate a leading position in the industry in terms of
innovative craftsmanship, the Group is building a new facility
operated with seamless knitting technology in Hung Yen Province,
Vietnam, with a total gross floor area of approximately 60,000
square meters and a designed annual production capacity of
approximately 10 million pieces expected to be put into operation
in the second half of 2020.

As for our Shenzhen factory, it continues to serve as the Group's
R&D and production base. In particular, it is responsible for the
development and production of products with high technical
content, as well as products that possess cross-industry
capabilities. In addition, international brands see China as a key
market with high growth potential for development, and has
certain demand for products produced locally in China. To meet
the demands from our brand partners, our Shenzhen factory will
also focus on producing products that are sold in the domestic
Chinese market for brand partners.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERE®E
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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The Group's target in the coming three years is set to deepen
the optimization of its overall management by enhancing the
production capacity in its currently operating and upcoming
facilities, and properly allocating the resources between Shenzhen
and Vietnam, in order to focus on increasing overall production
and operating efficiency, and ultimately, strengthen the Group's
profitability. On this major premise, the Group does not foresee
any additional funding to be invested in new facilities in 2019 and
2020, although we do have land reserve in the Vietnam Singapore
Industrial Park (“VSIP") in Hai Phong City which could cope
with our long-term development. We shall closely monitor the
development of the global political landscape and macroeconomic
environment, and allocate the resources flexibly based on the cost
competitiveness policy, technical requirements and the needs of
brand partners, in Vietnam and Shenzhen. We shall explore new
opportunities under challenges in order to drive the Group forward
and create value for brand partners and shareholders.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

As always, the Group is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance so as to promote a long-term and
sustainable business development. Towards that end, Regina
Miracle has been closely communicating with investors since its
listing in 2015 in a bid to maintain high transparency for keeping
investors informed of the latest development of the Group. We
have garnered the “Best IR Company” for small cap company at
the Hong Kong Investor Relations Association Investor Relations
("IR") Awards for two consecutive years, which has once again
honored our dedication and IR efforts. We take this opportunity to
thank the investment community for its recognition of the Group.

The Group has also won the Best in Reporting Awards — Mid
Market Capitalization — Certificate of Merit at the BDO ESG
Awards for two consecutive years, and was rewarded as the Most
Valuable Company in Consumer and Service at the 2018 Golden
Hong Kong Stocks Awards. These accolades have affirmed the
Group's efforts in our meticulous preparation of the ESG report
and recognized the leading position and outstanding business
performance of Regina Miracle in the industry.

Regina Miracle International (Vietnam) Limited won the 2018
Outstanding Contribution Award of the Year by the National
Social Security Bureau of Vietnam to commend our contributions
to the implementation of work on social insurance, making us
the only enterprise with such an exceptional honor in Hai Phong.
Furthermore, the subsidiary also garnered the Outstanding
Enterprise Award by the Vietnam Chamber of Commerce and
Industry to commend its contributions to the collaboration of the
enterprises in Vietnam in 2018.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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In the future, while setting industry trends, we will continue to KRR BRMEERETEIAROER - HESE
monitor and manage the environmental and social impact of ERREEAEMASE TS HRENT SN
its manufacturing and operation activities aimed at attaining a B TR BIREM SRR HREEE o
synergistic development of economic, environmental and social

benefits.

I would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to our business RAZBMEBREY ZFg - THBEEER
partners, the Board, the management team, and our colleagues EMpESHASEERMELOER - A

for their contributions to the development of the Group. RO |

YY Hung FE - BENTERHTEE
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director ke

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019 H% » 20196 525H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKET REVIEW

Global economic growth began to weaken in the second half of
2018 amid trade tensions between the United States and China
which led to an erosion in business confidence and tightening
of financial conditions. Regina Miracle has nonetheless been
able to perform stably by taking a holistic approach towards its
development. This approach included optimizing both its customer
and product portfolios; strategically allocating its production
resources to reap maximum long-term benefits; and continuously
striving to achieve technological advancement.

Since the second half of the fiscal year, the Group has optimized
its brand and product portfolio in order to reach an equilibrium
between business development and profit optimization, and hence
to achieve a more balanced and healthier portfolio; better utilize
its core technologies and resources to create unique products
with higher added-value; and establish a win-win cooperation
relationship with its brand partners. The optimization effort has
largely been completed during the year, laying a solid foundation
for its long-term and healthy development. This strategy has
enabled the Group to concentrate resources to align with the
product and business development of its key brand partners, thus
strengthening the ties with existing brand partners.

As for technological breakthroughs, the adoption of comfortable
products that leverage the Group’s Seven Innovative Technologies
were well-received by the market. The successful adoption
of these innovative technologies has enhanced the Group's
competitiveness and serves as foundation for the development
of other advanced products going forward. It has also paved
the way to greater automation and production efficiency. What
is more, the progress achieved through all of the Group's core
technologies has led to further bond building with existing brand
partners while successfully adding several renowned brand
partners to the fold during the review vyear, the ties of which have
developed promisingly.

In addition, certain brand partners have adjusted their strategies
in sourcing locations in response to the changes in the macro-
environment and trade situation. The Group has strived to meet
such needs during the year, and made adjustments between
its two production bases in Shenzhen and Vietnam accordingly,
and thereby mitigate the possible impact that such changes of
situation would otherwise bring.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBH Wk DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

Over the past year, Regina Miracle has been able to achieve
satisfactory revenue growth, which amounted to HK$6,263.3
million, or a year-on-year increase of 6.7% (Fiscal 2018:
HK$5,868.0 million). Gross profit increased by 8.8% to
HK$1,341.9 million (Fiscal 2018: HK$1,233.9 million), with gross
profit margin rising modestly to 21.4% (Fiscal 2018: 21.0%).
Furthermore, net profit rose by 17.6% to HK$282.4 million (Fiscal
2018: HK$240.2 million), with a net profit margin of 4.5% (Fiscal
2018: 4.1%).

Consistent with the Group’s objective to share its achievements
with shareholders, the Board has resolved to declare a final
dividend of HK4.0 cents per share for the Fiscal 2019. Together
with an interim dividend of HK3.6 cents paid during the year, total
dividend will amount to HK7.6 cents (Fiscal 2018: HK6.3 cents),
which is in line with the Group’s policy of paying no less than 30%
of its net profit as dividends for a fiscal year. The proposed final
dividend is subject to approval from shareholders of the Company
at the annual general meeting to be held on Monday, 26 August
2019. If approved by the shareholders, the proposed final dividend
is expected to be paid on or about Thursday, 12 September 2019
to shareholders whose name appears on the register of members
of the Company on Tuesday, 3 September 2019.

Bras and intimate wear

The bras and intimate wear business continued to constitute
Regina Miracle’s primary revenue source, contributing HK$4,874.6
million (Fiscal 2018: HK$4,728.6 million) to the Group, up
3.1% vyear-on-year, and accounting for 77.8% of total revenue.
Furthermore, a gross profit of HK$1,070.3 million was recorded,
with the gross profit margin at 22.0% (Fiscal 2018: HK$1,008.9
million and 21.3%, respectively).

During the year, the bra and intimate wear segment was able to
sustain stable growth due in part to contributions from a major
brand partner which, in collaboration with the Group, introduced
new product collections that were well-received by consumers. At
the same time, the Group continuously strengthened its ties with
several major international brand partners, with the partnerships
becoming increasingly strong as reflected by the stable increase
on order quantity.

LR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The aforementioned outcomes highlight the Group’s immense
capacity to constantly develop technological and differentiated
products that are underpinned by innovative capabilities, and to
cope with its brand partners’ marketing strategies and consumers’
pursuit of innovative products. Such innovative products are
not only able to meet the demands of consumers in terms of
functionality, but also offer good value propositions that they
pursue.

Bra pads and other molded products

Revenue generated from bra pads and other molded products
sold to the Group's brand partners remained stable as it retained
its strategy to reserve the majority of its bra pad capacity for in-
house manufacturing of finished bras. Consequently, the segment
generated a revenue of HK$530.9 million during the year (Fiscal
2018: HK$524.7 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
1.2%. The gross profit of the segment reached HK$111.6 million,
with the gross profit margin at 21.0% (Fiscal 2018: HK$110.3
million and 21.0%, respectively).

Functional sports products

The business of functional sports products contributed a revenue
of HK$857.8 million (Fiscal 2018: HK$614.8 million), representing
a year-on-year increase of 39.5%, accounting for 13.7% of the
Group's total revenue. Gross profit amounted to HK$160.1 million,
with the gross profit margin at 18.7% (Fiscal 2018: HK$114.7
million and 18.7%, respectively). Both footwear and apparel sales
were driven by orders from the Group's key brand partners.

In respect of footwear products, sales were driven by a young
and casual footwear brand partner in the U.S. that Regina Miracle
secured last year. This partnership has helped to offset a decline
in orders resulting from the Group's strategic exit of the footwear
business relationship with a customer during the review year.

Sales of sportswear products have achieved a strong double-digit
year-on-year growth underpinned by the Group’s unique seamless
bonding technologies. The Group remains committed to observing
a strategy that focuses more on cultivating business partnerships
which can fully leverage the Group's production efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBH Wk DM

Production capacity

During the year, the Group's Factory A, B and C, located in the
Vietnam Singapore Industrial Park (“VSIP"”) in Hai Phong City,
Vietnam, were in operation. The Group had a combined workforce
of approximately 30,000 in Vietnam as at the end of the fiscal
year. With an increasing proportion being skilled workers, the
operation of Factory A and B now has become increasingly
mature over the past two to three years and the production
efficiency began to show. Factory C, which commenced operation
in the beginning of the fiscal year, has also been gradually ramped
up, further driving the increase of the overall production scale.

In Fiscal 2019, production of the Vietnam factories accounted
for approximately 60% of the Group's total revenue, a significant
increase from around 40% in the last fiscal year, and is projected
to further expand in the coming fiscal year. As capacity increases,
the Group will at the same time continue to increase automation as
part of its objective to develop a dynamic and efficient production
hub in Vietnam. The subsequent rise in the production capacity in
Vietnam can be attributed in part to the increasing efficiency of the
three operating factories, and Factory D and E, which will house
more automated machineries and are commencing production
in June and September 2019, respectively. Worth noting as well
that a factory operated with seamless knitting technology in Hung
Yen Province, which will commence operation in the second half
of 2020, will further increase the Group’s production capacity of
Vietnam.

As regards the Group's factory in Shenzhen serving as its R&D
hub and production base, it will continue to play a central role in
facilitating Regina Miracles’ drive to innovate, and development
and production of products with high technical content, as well as
products that possess cross-industry capabilities. Furthermore, to
align with brand partners’ strategy to tap the market in China, the
Shenzhen factory will also focus on locally producing products to
be sold in the domestic Chinese market for its brand partners. As
at 31 March 2019, the factory had a workforce of approximately
10,000.

ERE

FR - AEERBEER T BEHINE T %
B ([VSIP ) AEIAR - BIER X CIRR AR 248 -
REFER - REBRBEE HHEHF 30,000
FZET - A BRBLBBER  =Fi8
EEBRA - PRE TR I TEE - £ &
e E @A o MR FFRMBEENC
FREERE TR EZ BT @ HEI AR A AR ARIE
£ o

R201981F - BEBENEEEIEAEE

R WHEARET RO FE—FEKX -
BEEEREN  ALERNEHERSED
ILi2E  5ESUEEEARASH HREE
AR - BMEEEMEEREIS R
HRIEELEN =RHRERERREF 25N
IR AR B #E F % A EE R A DR M BB (7D
2019F6 A RO AHBKRE) - BIMES —IE
BIRE - #5R2020F T FRE - EF MG
BEEITNEZARESE—PIRaEERN

EERE

ERRYBEEAREEBNHEFRLREE
iy SHEED EHRSBDRAFTNAG
FERTERRTEENER  URETT
¥EM I BEAREREEANFET
ETZ M ERERE  FIIERE IS ST A%
LRIEEENBETREAMTENER - 1
2019%F3A31H * % mMAIE 10,0002 B8 T °

16 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #%1REIB (2R AR AT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THE GROUP’S OPERATING RESULTS

Revenue

We derive our revenue primarily from direct sales of our products.
Our total revenue increased by 6.7% from HK$5,868.0 million in
Fiscal 2018 to HK$6,263.3 million in Fiscal 2019. A comparison of
the Group's revenue for Fiscal 2019 and Fiscal 2018 by product
categories is as follows:

S ERE SR

REENEERESE

N

BMIOBAZZRREMERHEZHEE
WA KR EE 201881 F /B ¥55,868.0 5 & T i
N6.7% E 201981 F 1) %6,263.3B & T °
REE 201981 & 201881 F i E m B 512

DHEMWALLELT

For the year ended 31 March
BZ23A3MALEE

2019

20195
% of
Revenue
L ON:
Ol

HK$'000

ki

2018

20184
% of
Revenue
YR AR
Aot

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT

Bras and intimate wear & K B & Ak 4,874,609 778 4,728,567 80.6 146,042 3.1

Bra pads and other molded et
products Em 530,890 85 524,670 8.9 6,220 1.2
Functional sports products et EEAE D 857,781 13.7 614,811 10.5 242970 39.5
6,263,280 100.0 5,868,048 100.0 395,232 6.7

Revenue generated from sales of bras and intimate wear
increased by HK$146.0 million, or approximately 3.1%, from
HK$4,728.6 million in Fiscal 2018 to HK$4,874.6 million in Fiscal
2019. The increase was primarily due to the increase in sales
volume of our bras driven by an increased demand from our
customers.

Revenue generated from sales of bra pads and other molded
products remained relatively stable and amounted to HK$530.9
million in Fiscal 2019, representing an increase of approximately
HK$6.2 million, or approximately 1.2%, as compared to Fiscal
2018.

Revenue generated from sales of functional sports products
increased by HK$243.0 million, or approximately 39.5%, from
HK$614.8 million in Fiscal 2018 to HK$857.8 million in Fiscal 2019.
The increase was primarily due to the increase in sales volume
of our functional sportswear and sports footwear driven by an
increased demand from our customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SRR i

Cost of sales

Cost of sales primarily consists of costs of raw materials, employee
benefit expenses for personnel directly involved in our production
activities, depreciation of our production equipment and others.

SHERA

HERATIBEBERMHRA BER28EE
EEHETINEBBANAY £ERBINE
R EAD o

For the year ended 31 March
BE3ANALFE

2019

20195
% of
Revenue
L ON:
BOl

HK$'000

BT

2018 Change
20185 &

% of
Revenue
EB AR

ABntt

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFR BEFR

Costs of raw materials [RM B 2,320,360 37.0 2,165,994 36.9 154,366 7.1
Employee benefit expenses  (EEEHFHX 1,892,003 302 1,867,199 318 24,804 1.3
Depreciation e 245,063 39 199,823 34 45,240 22.6
Utilities yNEle 112,973 1.8 113,969 2.0 (996) 0.9)
Others Hity 350,936 5.7 287,140 49 63,796 22.2
4,921,335 786 4,634,125 79.0 287,210 6.2

Cost of sales as a percentage of total revenue decreased from
79.0% in Fiscal 2018 to 78.6% in Fiscal 2019. This was primarily
attributable to our continued efficiency improvement of the
Vietnam factory, resulting in a reduction of employee benefit
expenses as a percentage of our total revenue.

Cost of sales increased from HK$4,634.1 million in Fiscal 2018 to
HK$4,921.3 million in Fiscal 2019 primarily due to 1) increases in
costs of raw materials and employee benefit expenses as a result
of increase in revenue; and 2) increase in deprecation as a result
of the Group's factories expansion in Vietnam.

Fiscal 2018’s certain expenses in relation to production staff have
been reclassified from Distribution and selling expenses to Cost
of sales to conform to Fiscal 2019's presentation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit and gross profit margin

S ERE SR

EMRERNR

For the year ended 31 March
BE3ANALFE

2019
2019

Gross Gross Profit
Profit IET

E ERE
HK$'000 %
BETT Bok

2018
20185
Gross  Gross Profit
Profit margin
£ ERE
HK$'000 %
BT Aantt

HK$'000
BT

Bras and intimate wear T KBk & T 1,070,262 22.0 1,008,887 21.3 61,375 6.1
Bra pads and other molded lysesLil

products EE 111,617 21.0 110,309 21.0 1,308 1.2
Functional sports products M EESEER 160,066 18.7 114,727 18.7 45,339 395
Gross profit EF 1,341,945 214 1,233,923 21.0 108,022 8.8
Gross profit EF

(before depreciation) (Hr&an) 1,587,008 253 1,433,746 24.4 153,262 10.7

Our overall gross profit increased from HK$1,233.9 million in
Fiscal 2018 to HK$1,341.9 million in Fiscal 2019. The gross profit
margin in Fiscal 2019 was 21.4%, as compared to 21.0% in Fiscal
2018. Gross profit margin (before depreciation) in Fiscal 2019
increased by 0.9 percentage points to 25.3%, as compared to
24.4% in Fiscal 2018. Such increase was mainly driven by our
continued efficiency improvement of the Vietnam factory.

The gross profit margin of bras and intimate wear increased from
21.3% in Fiscal 2018 to 22.0% in Fiscal 2019, primarily due to our
continued efficiency improvement of the Vietnam Factory A and B,
which was partially offset by the building in production efficiency
of our Vietnam Factory C. While the gross profit margin of bra
pads and other molded products have remained stable at 21.0%
in both Fiscal 2018 and Fiscal 2019, the gross profit margin of
functional sports products have also remained stable at 18.7% in
both fiscal years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBH Wk DM

Other Income and other gains, net

Our other income and other gains consist primarily of government
grants. It increased from HK$21.8 million in Fiscal 2018 to
HK$28.4 million in Fiscal 2019, primarily attributable to 1) increase
in government grants subsidies, which depend on the government
grant policies and criteria during different time periods; and 2)
increase of scrap sales income.

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses primarily consist of freight
and transportation expenses, employee benefit expenses for
our sales personnel, travelling expenses, declaration charges,
marketing and promotion expenses and others. The Group's
distribution and selling expenses have remained relatively stable
in terms of absolute amount and percentage of total revenue, and
represented 2.5% of its total revenue respectively for both Fiscal
2018 and Fiscal 2019.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses primarily consist of
employee benefit expenses for our administrative personnel,
depreciation and amortization, other taxes and surcharges,
building management fee, insurance, operating lease rental of land
and buildings, office and administrative expenses, bank charges,
exchange loss or gain and others. General and administrative
expenses as a percentage of total revenue have remained
relatively stable at 9.9% for both Fiscal 2018 and Fiscal 2019.

General and administrative expenses increased by 7.0% from
HK$578.6 million in Fiscal 2018 to HK$619.0 million in Fiscal 2019.
The increase was primarily attributable to the Group’s expansion
in Vietnam, resulting in an increase in employee benefit expenses,
depreciation and amortization, and office and administrative
expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Research and development costs

Research and development costs consist of employee benefit
expenses for our research and development personnel, raw
materials and consumables used and others. For Fiscal 2018 and
Fiscal 2019, the Group's research and development costs as a
percentage of total revenue have remained stable at 3.3% for
both fiscal years.

Research and development costs increased by 4.7% from
HK$195.9 million in Fiscal 2018 to HK$205.1 million in Fiscal 2019,
primarily due to an increase in employee benefit expenses of
research and development personnel as a result of our strategic
focus on research and development.

Finance Income
Finance income represents interest income on bank deposits.

Finance costs

Finance costs represent interest expense on borrowings, net of
interest expenses capitalised. Our finance costs as a percentage
of total revenue increased from 0.8% in Fiscal 2018 to 1.4% in
Fiscal 2019, primarily due to 1) global trend of rising interest rate;
and 2) increase in borrowings, as a result of Vietnam factories
expansion and business growth in Fiscal 2019.

Finance costs increased from HK$49.8 million in Fiscal 2018 to
HK$90.2 million in Fiscal 2019 was primarily attributable to the
reasons mentioned above.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense represents our total current and deferred
tax expenses under the relevant Hong Kong and PRC income tax
rules and regulations.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group is eligible to
nominate one Hong Kong incorporated entity in the Group to be
chargeable at the two tiered profits tax rates, whereby profits
tax will be chargeable on the first HK$2 million of assessable
profits at 8.25% and assessable profits above this threshold will
be subject to a rate of 16.5%. Hong Kong profits tax of other
Hong Kong incorporated entities in the Group has been provided
for at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits. For
the year ended 31 March 2018, Hong Kong profits tax has been
provided for at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBH Wk DM

According to a policy promulgated by the State Tax Bureau of the
PRC and effective from 2008 onwards, enterprises engaged in
research and development activities are entitled to claim ranging
from 150% to 175% of the research and development expenses
so incurred in a period as tax deductible expenses in determining
its tax assessable profits for that period (“Super Deduction”).
Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, has applied such Super Deduction
during the year.

The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietham were
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 20% in Fiscal 2019
and Fiscal 2018. In accordance with the applicable tax regulations,
a subsidiary is subject to a lower tax rate of 10% for fifteen
consecutive years, commencing from the first year of making
revenue. In addition, the subsidiary is entitled to full exemption
from corporate income tax for the first four years from the earlier
of (i) the year when profit is generated for the first time or (ii) the
fourth year of making revenue; and a 50% reduction in corporate
income tax for the next nine years.

The Group's income tax expense decreased from HK$45.9 million
in Fiscal 2018 to HK$19.6 million in Fiscal 2019. Excluding the
positive effect of Super Deduction amounted HK$28.8 million
(Fiscal 2018: HK$10.3 million) during Fiscal 2019, the Group's
effective tax rate decreased from 19.6% in Fiscal 2018 to 16.0%
in Fiscal 2019, mainly attributed to tax holiday enjoyed by the
Vietnam subsidiaries and increase in proportion of the Group's
Vietnam production during the year.

Net profit

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, our net
profit for the year increased by 17.6% from HK$240.2 million
in Fiscal 2018 to HK$282.4 million in Fiscal 2019. Our net profit
margin increased from 4.1% in Fiscal 2018 to 4.5% in Fiscal 2019.

Liquidity, financial resources and bank borrowings
The Group's current ratios (calculated as current assets over
current liabilities) were 1.2 times and 1.0 times as at 31 March
2019 and 31 March 2018 respectively. Net debt (represented
by bank borrowings less the cash and cash equivalents) was
HK$2,557.7 million (31 March 2018: HK$1,700.2 million). The
increase of net debt was mainly due to capital expenditure for our
production facilities in Vietnam. Gearing ratio as at 31 March 2019
was 87.5% (31 March 2018: 59.3%), which was calculated as net
debt divided by total equity. Excluding the currencies depreciation
impact on the net assets denominated in RMB and VND, the
adjusted net gearing as at 31 March 2019 was 84.6% (31 March
2018: 59.9%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Net cash generated from operating activities was HK$563.2
million in Fiscal 2019 (Fiscal 2018: HK$466.2 million). The
increase was mainly attributed to increase in cash generated from
operations in Fiscal 2019.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to HK$1,230.6
million in Fiscal 2019 as compared to HK$979.7 million in Fiscal
2018. The Group invested approximately HK$1,090.4 million in
new property, plant and equipment mainly in connection with our
production facilities in Vietnam.

During Fiscal 2019, net cash generated from financing activities
amounted to HK$693.0 million, as compared to HK$539.2 million
in Fiscal 2018. The positive cash inflow from financing activities
was mainly due to proceeds from borrowings.

Working capital management

Inventory turnover days FERAB A
Receivables turnover days FENRRIE B 4% A 8
Payables turnover days JEA FRIEEE BB

Inventory, receivables and payables turnover days have been
maintained at stable and healthy levels of 64 days, 48 days and 29
days respectively during Fiscal 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBH Wk DM

Capital expenditures

For Fiscal 2019, total addition to property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights, and intangible assets
amounted to approximately HK$1,210.5 million (Fiscal 2018:
HK$1,140.0 million), and was mainly attributable additions of
production lines for our Hai Phong Factory C and construction of
our Hai Phong Factory D and E to cope with the Group’s overall
business expansion.

Pledged assets
As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019, the Group did not have
assets pledged for bank borrowings.

Foreign exchange risk

We mainly operate in Hong Kong, the PRC and Vietnam. Most of
our operating expenses are denominated in RMB and VND, while
most of our sales are denominated and settled in U.S. dollar.
As the HK dollar is pegged to U.S. dollar, our foreign exchange
exposure in respect of the HK dollar is considered minimal. Our
management will continue to monitor foreign currency exchange
exposure and will take prudent measures to minimize the
currency translation risk.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Material acquisitions and future plans for major
investment

Save for the investment in the construction of the production
facilities in Vietnam, during Fiscal 2019, the Group did not
conduct any material investments, acquisitions or disposals. In
addition, save for the expansion plans as disclosed in the sections
headed “Business” and "“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in
the prospectus of the Company dated 24 September 2015 (the
“Prospectus”), and the framework construction agreements
disclosed in the announcements dated 24 July 2017 and 24
April 2018 respectively, the Group has no specific plan for
major investment or acquisition for major capital assets or other
businesses. However, the Group will continue to identify new
opportunities for business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2019, the Group employed a total of approximately
40,419 full-time staff (31 March 2018: 36,993). The total staff
cost of the Group (including salaries, bonuses, social insurances,
provident funds and share incentive schemes) amounted to
HK$2,420.7 million, representing 38.6% of the total revenue of
the Group.

We believe our success depends heavily upon our employees’
provision of consistent, quality and reliable services. In order to
attract, retain and develop the knowledge, skill level and quality
of our employees, we place a strong emphasis on training our
employees. We provide on-site training periodically and across
operational functions, including introductory training for new
employees, technical training, professional and management
training, team-building and communications training.

We enter into individual employment contracts with our
employees to cover matters such as wages, employee benefits,
safety and sanitary conditions in the workplace, and grounds for
termination. We have designed an evaluation system to assess
the performance of our employees. This system forms the basis
of our determinations of whether an employee should receive
salary raises, bonuses or promotions. Most of our technical
personnel are trained and promoted internally, leading to greater
employee stability and loyalty.

Events after the balance sheet date
The Group has no significant events after the reporting period and
up to the date of this report.

Future Prospects and Strategies

Looking ahead, with macroeconomic environment remaining
uncertain, it is expected that business environment will remain
challenging. Even though Regina Miracle possesses strong
innovative design manufacturing (“IDM") capabilities, and
a production base in Vietnam that is steadily maturing, the
management realizes that only by taking a prudent approach can
the Group lay a solid foundation for achieving long-term steady
business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWEDM

In respect of capacity planning, the Group’s major target for
the coming three years will be to deepen the optimization of its
overall management by properly adjusting the resources allocation
between Shenzhen and Vietnam, in order to concentrate on
enhancing production and operating efficiency, and ultimately,
strengthen its profitability. As the Group’s five factories in Hai
Phong and a factory in Hung Yen will all be put into operation in
the coming year, the management expects the operating and
upcoming production facilities will be sufficient to stably drive its
production capacity growth in the next two to three years. On this
major premise, the Group does not foresee any additional capital
to be invested in new facilities in 2019 and 2020, although it does
have land reserves in the VSIP, Hai Phong, which could cope
with long-term development. The Group will continue to monitor
market developments, and consider a number of factors, such
as cost competitiveness, policy, technical requirements and the
demand of brand partners when optimizing production capacities
between its Vietnam and Shenzhen factories. The Group will also
seek to right-scale the latter as appropriate.

In the year ahead, Regina Miracle's another principle objective
will be to achieve a steady revenue growth and enhance the
profitability, while at the same time raise the efficiency. To
align with this objective, the Group will continue to observe the
strategy of being selective about brand partners and product
portfolios, and focus on its existing ones so as to maintain healthy
orders.

It is worth noting that industry brand players are increasingly
gravitating towards the “read and react” strategy and more
stringent channel inventory management that require vendors to
become more agile in order to timely and flexibly respond to the
changes in the end market. In response, the Group has placed
greater energies in the past two years, on top of constant efforts
towards product innovation, in standardizing craftsmanship and
automating production process. Consequently, the upcoming
production equipment and technological developments will be
led by automation concept, which will pave the way to greater
production efficiency and agility. Externally, the Group will
strengthen its supply chain management in order to create a
healthy and competitive environment from which it can benefit.

The management will strive to execute the abovementioned
strategies with a steady and prudent development approach
to steer Regina Miracle towards a new milestone in business
development, which will ultimately create value for our brand
partners and shareholders.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY
ES SREEERAAUENEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUNG Yau Lit (3% &) (also known as YY Hung (#t725)),
aged 56, is the founder of the Group and has been a Director of
the Company since its incorporation on 21 September 2010. He
is also the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the chairman
of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. He is primarily responsible for
formulating the overall development strategies and business
plans and overseeing the operation of the Group. With over 19
years of experience in the intimate wear manufacturing industry,
Mr. Hung has been the key driver of our business strategies and
achievements to date and continues to oversee the management
of our operations and business. Mr. Hung is also a director of
each of the BVI, PRC and Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Hung is currently the executive vice president of Shenzhen
Underwear Association (OFIITTARKITERE) since 2012,
the president of Shenzhen Guangming New District Charity
Association (RIITTHXAAFIEZEZE) since January 2015 and
council member of South China Athletic Association (FIZEREE 2).
Mr. Hung received the Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong

2007 from Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. Hung is the uncle of Ms. Sze Shui Ling, senior management
and executive Director of the Company. Mr. Yiu Ka So, senior
management of the Company, is a cousin of Mrs. Hung.

Mr. YIU Kar Chun Antony (k5 E&), aged 43, was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015. Mr. Yiu
joined the Group as a financial controller on 17 June 2002 and
was promoted to the Chief Financial Officer of the Group in 2005.
Mr. Yiu is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall financial
management, internal control, legal and compliance matters of the
Group. He also serves as a director in a number of the Company’s
subsidiaries. Mr. Yiu has over 20 years of experience in financial
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yiu worked at
PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong in the tax department
from August 1998 to June 2002 and held the position of senior
consultant from July 2000 to June 2002. Mr. Yiu graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a first class honors
degree of bachelor of arts in accountancy in November 1998.
He is a fellow of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Yiu is a
cousin of Mr. Yiu Ka So, senior management of the Company.
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ES SREEERAAUENEE

Mr. LIU Zhenqiang (%|/E5&), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015 and has
been the chief research and development and design officer of
Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“"RMIA
Shenzhen”) since April 2008. He is primarily responsible for
product design, research and development management of the
Group. He also serves as a director in a number of the Company’s
subsidiaries. Mr. Liu joined the previous bra processing facilities
in February 1999 and held the positions as manager of the
research and development department from February 1999
to September 2003 and chief research and development and
design officer from September 2003 to April 2008. From August
1998 to February 1999, Mr. Liu served as a supervisor of quality
assurance department at Shun Cheong Factory for shoulder pads
manufacturing. He has over 19 years of experience in intimate
wear design and research and development management and
contributed in a number of utility model patents and invention
patents on intimate wear design. Mr. Liu graduated from Wuxi
College of Light Industry (58 T X&) (later renamed as
Jiangnan University ((TFAXZ) majoring in textile design in June
1998 and a degree of executive master of business administration
from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (/IR 2F5%) in
September 2013.

Mr. CHEN Zhiping (BRE¥), aged 42, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company and the Chief Operating
Officer of the Group on 22 June 2015 and 30 November 2015
respectively, and has been the general manager of RMIA
Shenzhen since April 2008. He is primarily responsible for
production management of the Group. He is also a director of
both RMIA Shenzhen and Regina Miracle (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd
("RM Shenzhen”). Mr. Chen joined the previous bra processing
facilities in October 2000 and held the following positions:
production supervisor from October 2000 to June 2001,
production manager from June 2001 to September 2003, senior
production manager from September 2003 to June 2006 and
general manager from June 2006 to April 2008. He has over 17
years of experience in intimate wear manufacture management.
Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor degree in shipbuilding engineering
from East China Shipbuilding Institute (EE5E A T2 £87) (later
renamed as Jiangsu University of Science and Technology (/T
ERRHKER)) in July 1999 and a degree of executive master of
business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business (£ 2 Fx) in September 2013.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY
ES SREEERAAUENEE

Ms. SZE Shui Ling (#E5&1%), aged 47, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015. She
has been the sales and marketing director of Regina Miracle
International Limited since 24 June 1999 and Regina Miracle
International (Group) Limited since 18 September 2006. She
is responsible for the sales and marketing affairs of the Group.
Ms. Sze has over 20 years of experience in the sales and
marketing of intimate wear. She is also a director of a number
of the Company’s subsidiaries. Ms. Sze holds a certificate in
tourism management program in Camosun College in Canada in
December 1996. Ms. Sze is the niece of Mr. Hung.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. OR Ching Fai (&%), aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 11
September 2015 and is the chairman of the audit committee.
Dr. Or is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice and
guidance on the business development of the Group.

Dr. Or received a bachelor of social sciences degree in economics
and psychology from the University of Hong Kong in July 1972
before joining The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited as a management trainee. Dr. Or worked in a variety of
positions in personnel, securities, retail and corporate banking
divisions. Dr. Or was appointed as general manager and group
general manager in 2000 and became an executive director in
2005. Dr. Or was then appointed as vice-chairman and chief
executive of Hang Seng Bank Limited (B4 $R7TERAF), a
banking company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), in 2005 and retired in
May 2009.

Dr. Or holds the following positions in companies listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

BB Lt 475 - R2015F6 H22H %
ZABARRATRITES - 8199966 H24H
BETHZREBEBAERARNEE RTISE
BS . 1 2006499 5 18 A RIS IE(T 2 1 B
B(EE)ARARKEERMIBRAE - H8
BEASEMHERTBHERER - TR
MEAXRBEERTEHERBEBB20F K
o WIMNARRRZHEMBRARES - itk
TH1996F 12 AEME R RERZM B IR
PEIRFREEE - LT AR ERNIMEL -

BAFHTES

MEEE LT - 695% 0 M2015F9R 1M HEZ
EARARBMYIENTES - WEAEZRE
BEeEfFE MELETBaERASENER
BRIBEREEE R RIEE -

L1972 7 A B BB RERE e R
BES (ESm RSB HEMAR
BESELRITAERAREEREEA - M
BEIRAE - FhH  TERDERITHPIE
FETRBAL - FWIE TN 2000FEE (ALK
BREEBKIE - WHK2005F HENTE
= o B LREE N 2006 F EEE BB ARTT
BRAB(—HREBBHERBITAERAR
(BB LRI AR BIEE T
Brsagk - WR20094F5 AEIK -

BT RE BB ETRAREE TR

i o

FEHE2018/19 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 29



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY
ES SREEERAAUENEE

Company and its Principal Business

Stock Exchange Position

RAREETEREK HERZ T Bz

Television Broadcasts Limited (E1REEER A T), Hong Kong Stock Independent non-
a television broadcast company Exchange executive director
EREEAERAT - A—HERERAF] B PT BN IEHITES

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Hong Kong Stock Independent non-

(AXEHREEBABR AT, ajewellery company Exchange executive director
BAAEBHREEEERAR  A—HHKEQF BB P B IENITES

China Strategic Holdings Limited (T £ B AR A 7)), Hong Kong Stock Chairman and non-

an investment and metal trading company Exchange executive director
PEREEARLAA A HREREBEEAF B PT TREMRIEATES

Esprit Holdings Limited (BHEIREIEARA R AR, Hong Kong Stock Executive chairman and

a fashion and living products company Exchange executive director
BRIRKERER AR - m—ERREERRAR] B PT BITEIERATES

Dr. Or has been appointed as independent non-executive director
of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited in
December 2018. He ceased to act as independent non-executive
director of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited on
31 October 2018. He was the vice-chairman and independent
non-executive director of G-Resources Group Limited until his
retirement on 30 June 2017. He was also an independent non-
executive director of Hutchison Whampoa Limited (Flzd =iEE R
A@]) and Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (BZ&fiiZ= B R A 7)), from
February 2000 to May 2009 respectively. All these companies are
listed on The Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Dr. Or was the deputy
chairman and non-executive director of Aquis Entertainment
Limited, a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange,
until his retirement on 31 December 2017.
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Dr. Or is a vice patron of the board of the Community Chest
of Hong Kong. He was also the chairman of the Hong Kong
Association of Banks in 2000 and 2003 and was vice chairman
of the Hong Kong Association of Banks in 2001, 2002, 2004 and
2005. He was also the chairman of the Financial Services Advisory
Committee and a member of the Services Promotion Programme
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He
was a member of the Risk Management Committee of the Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, vice president and a
council member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a member
of the Aviation Development Advisory Committee, the chairman
of Executive and Campaign Committee of the Community Chest
of Hong Kong, the deputy council chairman of the Council of City
University of Hong Kong, a council member of the University of
Hong Kong, an adviser of the Employers’ Federation of Hong
Kong and a member of the Planning Committee of the 5th East
Asian Games.

Dr. Or was awarded a Silver Bauhinia Star from the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and Honorary University Fellow
from the University of Hong Kong in 2009. He was conferred an
Honorary Doctor of Social Science by the City University of Hong
Kong and an Honorary Fellowship by Hang Seng Management
College in November 2014 and May 2017 respectively. Dr. Oris a
Justice of the Peace.

Mrs. TO WONG Wing Yue Annie (B9 E 5%k 11), aged 63, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 11 September 2015 and is primarily responsible
for providing strategic advice and guidance on the business
development of our Group. She is also a member of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mrs. To has extensive
experience in the garments trading industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Mrs. To was employed by Mast Industries (Far East)
Limited, the sourcing arm of LBrands, as the president from
January 2007 to May 2013 and the executive vice president from
September 1996 to December 2006. From April 1995 to August
1996, she served as a director of Li & Fung (Trading) Ltd., a
Hong Kong based global sourcing company. From January 1991
to February 1995, Mrs. To was the executive vice-president of
Bonaventure Textiles Limited, a garment manufacturing company.
From June 1979 to December 1990, Mrs. To held various
positions from executive trainee to assistant managing director of
Swire and MacLaine Limited, the trading division of John Swire &
Sons Limited. Mrs. To obtained a bachelor degree of arts from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1979.
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Ms. TAM Laiman (EBEX), aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 11
September 2015 and is primarily responsible for providing
strategic advice and guidance on the business development of
our Group. She is also a member of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. Ms. Tam has extensive management experience in the
consumer products marketing, distribution and retailing industry.
Ms. Tam retired from the office either as a manager or an
executive director of the following six group companies in Swire
Pacific Limited on 1 October 2018: SRM Holdings, Inc., a holding
company of brands investment; United Sheen Limited, a holding
company of brands investment; Columbia Sportswear Commercial
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (FifattREBREFE (L&) BRAR),
a sales and distribution company of branded outdoor and sports
clothing and footwear; SCCH Limited, a holding company of
brands investment; Swire Brands Limited, a holding company of
consumer brands investment, and Swire Industrial Limited, an
investment holding company in cold storage, waste management,
environmental services, painting and sugar businesses, and
distribution and sales of motor vehicles in PRC and Hong Kong.

From January 1990 to July 2013, Ms. Tam served the positions
as managing director, director and general manager of Swire
Resources Limited, a marketing, distribution and retail company of
branded clothing and footwear product, where she was primarily
responsible for the company’s overall development and operation.
From October 1987 to December 1989, Ms. Tam was the general
manager in charge of the overall operation of Reebok Hong
Kong Ltd., a sports brand company of clothing and footwear.
From December 1983 to May 1987, Ms. Tam worked at Plough
Consumer Products (Asia) Ltd., a consumer products marketing
and distribution company, as the regional marketing manager
responsible for the Southeast Asia market. From May 1978 to
November 1983, Ms. Tam worked at the group companies of
Fung Ping Fan Group, a diversified company involving in consumer
brands distribution and real estate businesses.

Ms. Tam obtained a bachelor degree in administration from
University of Ottawa in May 1976. Ms. Tam has been an
executive committee member of Benji's Centre (EE R EH
[») and the vice chairman of the supervisory board of Macao
International Brand Enterprise Commercial Association (J8F9 B[R
mEE ¥R E) since 2009.
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ES SREEERAAUENEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HUANG Guoxian (EE &), aged 54, has been the general
manager of technology development of RMIA Shenzhen since
April 2008. He is responsible for technology, research and
development and machinery improvement of the Group, and
contributed in several utility model patents and invention patents
on intimate wear design, including one-piece bra. Mr. Huang is
also the vice chairman of RMIA Shenzhen and a Director of RM
Shenzhen. He joined the previous bra processing facilities in
February 1999 and held the positions as manager of the research
and development department from February 1999 to March 2003
and chief technology officer from March 2003 to April 2008. From
June 1988 to February 1999, Mr. Huang worked as supervisor
of the research and development department at Shun Cheong
Factory for shoulder pads manufacturing. Mr. Huang has over 19
years of experience in the intimate wear manufacturing industry.
Mr. Huang obtained a high school diploma from Fuging Jiangdou
Huagiao Middle School (1g/& /T ZEFEF E2) in July 1982.

Mr. YIU Ka So (Zkin#t), aged 45, has been the general manager
of operation of the Group since he joined the Group on 3 March
2004. He is primarily responsible for operations management of
the Group. Mr. Yiu is also the vice chairman of RMIA Shenzhen,
a director of RM Shenzhen, the legal representative and general
director of Regina Miracle International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd and of
Regina Miracle International Hung Yen Co., Ltd. Mr. Yiu has over
14 years of experience in enterprise and operations management.
Mr. Yiu served at Panda Green Energy Group Limited (formerly
known as Goldpoly New Energy Holdings Limited), a solar
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as an
executive director from October 2010 to December 2013. Mr. Yiu
obtained a bachelor degree in engineering and a master degree
of science in civil engineering, both from the University of Hong
Kong, in December 1997 and November 2001, respectively. Mr.
Yiu is a cousin of Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony and Mrs. Hung.
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Ms. LEUNG, Mai Ling Connie ($%%), aged 53, has been the
general manager of business division of the Group since she
joined the Group on 3 September 2003. She is responsible for
sales management of the Group. Ms. Leung has over 27 years of
experience in the clothing industry, of which over 15 years in the
intimate wear manufacturing industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Leung worked at PLH Fashion Group, a trading company,
as a divisional manager primarily responsible for merchandising
and management from November 2002 to September 2003.
From 1995 to 2002, Ms. Leung worked at Mast Industries (Far
East) Limited, a garments and accessories trading company, as
a merchandising manager and regional merchandising manager,
where she was primarily responsible for the regional market
management. From October 1993 to June 1995, she served as a
sourcing manager in charge of material sourcing, purchasing and
development in Lion-Redcliffe & Company Limited, an embroidery
manufacturer. In addition, Ms. Leung served as an assistant
merchandiser overseeing sample development, production and
shipment in Texunion Garment Co., Ltd., a garment manufacturer,
from July 1985 to June 1986.

Ms. Leung obtained a diploma in clothing in Hong Kong Vocational
Training Council in July 1985, a national diploma in clothing in
Hong Kong Business and Technical Education Council in March
1986, a diploma in clothing design and production management
from the Clothing and Footwear Institute in 1993. Ms. Leung
completed the modular post-graduate diplomas in textile and
clothing and clothing studies in October 1995 and November
1996, respectively, and obtained a master of arts degree in
clothing studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
December 1999.

Mr. LIANG Changming (R #H), aged 39, has been the sample
development deputy general manager of shoe division of RMIA
Shenzhen since February 2012. He is responsible for research
and development of shoe products of the Group. He was also
the senior manager of the research and development department
of RMIA Shenzhen from April 2008 to February 2012. Mr. Liang
joined the previous bra processing facilities in June 2003 and held
the positions in the research and development department as
supervisor from June 2003 to May 2006 and manager from May
2006 to April 2008. Mr. Liang has over 15 years of experience in
intimate wear manufacturing industry, specializing in bra pads,
bras and sports bras. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor degree in
textile examination and commerce from Donghua University (82
AE) in July 2003.
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Mr. ZHANG Wenbo (3R X 18), aged 39, has been the deputy
general manager of the research and development department
of RMIA Shenzhen since December 2017. He is responsible
for coordinating and promoting intimate wear and product
development of the Group. He was also the senior manager of the
research and development department of RMIA Shenzhen from
April 2008 to February 2012 and the sample development deputy
general manager of the intimate wear division of RMIA Shenzhen
from February 2012 to December 2016. He was the sample
development deputy general manager of the sportswear division
of RMIA Shenzhen from December 2016 to November 2017. Mr.
Zhang joined the previous bra processing facilities in September
2002 and held the positions in the research and development
department as supervisor from September 2002 to May 2004 and
manager from May 2004 to April 2008. Mr. Zhang has over 15
years of experience in the research and development of intimate
wear products. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor degree in thermal
engineering from Jiamusi University (fE7RETKE2) in June 2002.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAW Kwan Chuen (£$2), aged 40, joined the Group on
15 December 2011 as our group financial controller and was
appointed as company secretary of the Company on 22 June
2015. He is primarily responsible for financial reporting, corporate
finance and company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Law
has approximately 18 years of experience in auditing, financial
reporting and corporate finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Law worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers from October 2004 to
December 2011 with the last position as manager. From July 2001
to October 2004, he worked at Moore Stephens as an auditor.
Mr. Law obtained a bachelor degree of business administration
majoring in professional accountancy from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong (F/#&H XX KXE) in November 2001. He has been an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom since February 2004 and
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since September
2004. Mr. Law has also been a Chartered Financial Analyst (“CFA")
charter holder of the CFA Institute since September 2006, a
fellow member of ACCA since July 2009 and a fellow member of
HKICPA since September 2014.
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to
141 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended to pay to the shareholders of the
Company a final dividend of HK4.0 cents per share for the year
ended 31 March 2019. Subject to the approval of the proposed
final dividend by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Monday, 26
August 2019, the final dividend is expected to be paid on or about
Thursday, 12 September 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For the purpose of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 20 August
2019 to Monday, 26 August 2019, both days inclusive. In order
to qualify for attending and voting at the annual general meeting,
shareholders should ensure that all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company's Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong
Kong time) on Monday, 19 August 2019. The annual general
meeting of the Company will be held on Monday, 26 August
2019.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO FINAL DIVIDEND

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement for the
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 30 August 2019 to Tuesday, 3 September
2019, both days inclusive. To qualify for the final dividend,
shareholders should ensure that all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company's Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
(Hong Kong time) on Thursday, 29 August 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are set
out in the Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 11 and pages 12 to 26
of this annual report respectively. Discussions on the Group's
relationships with its key stakeholders are also set out in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to 11 of this annual report.
An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the Group's
Financial Information Summary on page 232 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five years ended 31 March 2019
are set on page 232 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$1,755.8 million (2018: HK$1,726.1 million).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2019 amounted to HK$1.0 million (2018: HK$1.1 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The shareholders of the Company approved and adopted a share
option scheme on 11 September 2015 (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme took effect on 8 October 2015
(the listing date of the Company), and no option has been granted
up to the date of this report.
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Who may participate

Subject to the terms of Share Option Scheme, the Board
(including any committee or delegate of the Board appointed
by the Board to perform any of its functions pursuant to
the rules of the Share Option Scheme) may, at its absolute
discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe for such
number of shares of the Company (“Shares”) as the
Board may determine to an employee (whether full time
or parttime) or a director of a member of the Group (the
“Eligible Person”).

Maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options maybe granted

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any options granted under any other share
option scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the listing date of the
Company unless the Company obtains a fresh approval.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person
Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in
the general meeting in the manner prescribed in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each Eligible
Person under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not at the time of grant exceed 1% of the shares in
issue.

Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of options under the Share Option Scheme shall
be open for acceptance for such period (not exceeding 30
days inclusive of, and from, the date of offer) as the Board
may determine and notify to the Eligible Persons concerned
provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the expiry of the duration of the Share Option Scheme.
An offer of options not accepted within this period shall
lapse. An amount of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance
of the grant of an option and such payment shall not be
refundable and shall not be deemed to be a part payment of
the exercise price.
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(e)

(f)

(9)

Exercise Price

The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the
Board and notified to an option-holder and which shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of offer
of the option; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares.

Time for Exercise of options

An option may be exercised at any time during the period
which is notified by the Board at the offer date when making
an offer to an Eligible Person but such period not to exceed
the period of 10 years from the offer date of such option.

Duration of Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on the listing date of
the Company, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary
to give effect to the exercise of any options granted prior
thereto which are at that time or become thereafter capable
of exercise under the rules of the Share Option Scheme, or
otherwise to the extent as may be required in accordance
with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2019 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, sales to the Group's
five largest customers accounted for approximately 61.7%
of the Group's total sales for the year (of which sales to the
Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 24.2%).
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 46.6% of the Group's total purchases for the year
(of which purchases attributable to the largest supplier accounted
for approximately 22.7%).

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates or
any shareholder which to the best knowledge of the Directors,
who own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year ended 31 March 2019.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participated in various retirement benefit schemes in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in PRC and
Hong Kong. Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. YIU Kar Chun Antony (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LIU Zhengiang

Mr. CHEN Zhiping (Chief Operating Officer)

Ms. SZE Shui Ling

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. OR Ching Fai

Mrs. TO WONG Wing Yue Annie

Ms. TAM Laiman

In the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony, Mr. Liu Zhengiang and Mr. Chen Zhiping
will retire as Directors in accordance with Article 84 of the Articles
of Association of the Company (”Articles of Association”) and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S AND
COMPANY SECRETARY’S PROFILE

Profile details of the Directors of the Company, the senior
management and company secretary of the Group are set out on
pages 27 to 35 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from 11 September 2015 and the service contracts have been
renewed for a further term of three years commencing from 11
September 2018.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from 11 September 2015 and these letters of
appointment have been renewed for a further term of three years
commencing from 11 September 2018.

These service contracts and letters of appointment are subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The
terms of service contracts and the letters of appointment may be
renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and the
applicable rules of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees, including the Directors,
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Our
employees are subject to regular job performance reviews
which determine their promotion prospects and compensation.
Subject to the Group's profitability, the Group may also provide
discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group.

The Company has adopted share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may distribute
dividends to its shareholders by way of cash or by other means
that the Company considers appropriate. The recommendation of
the payment of any dividend is subject to the absolute discretion
of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be subject
to the approval of the shareholders.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time in
light of the following factors in determining whether dividends are
to be declared and paid:

o Results of operations of the Company;

° Cash flows of the Company;

° Financial condition of the Company;

° Shareholders’ interests of the Company;

° General business conditions and strategies of the Company;

° Capital requirements of the Company;

o The payment by subsidiaries of the Company of cash
dividends to the Company; and

o Other factors the Board may deem relevant.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March
2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements, no Director and/or any of
his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at
anytime during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1)

44

Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited (“Le Ying”, together
with its subsidiaries collectively, the “Le Ying Group”) is
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known
as YY Hung), a controlling shareholder and an executive
Director of the Company, and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Company entered into a new agreement with Le Ying
on 9 May 2018 to regulate the sales of intimate wear and
sport wear products of the Company to Le Ying Group (the
“New Le Ying Sales Agreement”) in place of the previous
agreement entered on 11 September 2015. Pursuant to the
New Le Ying Sales Agreement, price of the sales of intimate
wear and sport wear products by the Company to Le Ying
Group shall be determined on an arm’s length basis with
reference to (1) the cost of production and the expected
gross profit margin, (2) the average selling price of the
products of comparable nature and scale and accepted by an
independent third party in the twelve-month period prior to
the relevant transaction, (3) where there is no such average
selling price available, any most recent available sale price
of products of comparable nature and scale offered by the
Group and accepted by an independent third party, the latest
available market data, and (4) the prevailing market price for
the sale of products of comparable nature and scale, which
should be in any event no less favorable to the Group than is
available to independent third parties.

)l' 7

=
By

i

EERN
&

>

s

RIEBHE
Sa=g ks

>
S»

S b

BX

Brir e M SRR M A0 B ENRBENT XS
Oh - BIEE R R R HARBREE R (R
%‘ifﬁ%)ﬁ"ﬁzﬁﬁl%i‘kfﬁ BEX - AR

NI S NS B SR B EVNS AL ES
MBARRITATT » WK R EF AEME
BINAERNENRS - RHHEHTHER
EAME -

FEXZRIFERERS

() HEBREH(BFE)BRAR(%R] &
RIEMELRGHE RBER]) S —H
BAR TT&&%%&HE%%F%
(RAE®HEZ)EEZEBREOR
HM'@%iﬁﬁ%%$@ﬂ%%@
At

M2018F5A9H » AR R EHLERZTT
B ARBEARRMEBEEEE
AE AKX RESHREER([FEEH
EHEl) - R ERTR2015F9A11H
PN EE o REBENMLREEHZ

ARA M BEBIRENE BREK K
Eiﬁﬁ&”*é‘%uuﬂﬁ’i{ﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬂﬂ?%ﬂu
WEHLRETISHEEET « (WEEK
$&ﬁ%m%ﬂ+ (2)1EE KRB
HEEREBRSH T - EASBCE
BUE=FEMNNERNTFHEE -
QEEZESFHERE  ARALRSE
EATRMHEERREES BB BB
B = 5 B AR 2 G B0 (] i 2 PT A
EE URBRFESHMEEE K
GHEEME RRERENERNIET
TE  BHEEREFABERL T TNER
ANEERIB S = RIEHEE -

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # iR (IZR)ERA A



REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS

The New Le Ying Sales Agreement became effective on 9
May 2018 and is valid until either (i) the expiry of a term on
31 March 2021 or (ii) the date on which Le Ying ceases to
be the connected person of the Company, whichever comes
earlier. The parties to the New Le Ying Sales Agreement
may negotiate to extend the agreement for a further term
of three years within two months before the expiry of the
three-year term of the agreement unless the agreement
is terminated due to Le Ying ceasing to be the connected
person of the Company.

During the year, the annual cap for revenue from sales to
Le Ying for Fiscal 2019 was HK$80.0 million, the actual
transaction amount for Fiscal 2019 with Le Ying was
HK$26.5 million and the annual cap has been kept.

The transactions contemplated under the New Le Ying Sales
Agreement also constitute related party transaction of the
Company under HKFRS, details of which are set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad Factory (Shenzhen)
Limited (“Shun Cheong”) is indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), a controlling
shareholder and an executive Director of the Company, and
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

On 24 March 2017, Shun Cheong entered into a property
leasing agreement (the “Property Leasing Agreement”)
with Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(BRELIRAKORYI) BIR2E]) ("RMIA Shenzhen”),
a company incorporated under the laws of the People's
Republic of China and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, pursuant to which Shun Cheong agreed
to lease RMIA Shenzhen the Building located at Redstar
Community, Gongming Subdistrict Office of Shenzhen
Guangming District, Shenzhen, People’s Republic of China
(the “Premises”) for a term of three years. Pursuant to the
Property Leasing Agreement, the rent was determined on
an arm'’s length basis with reference to (i) the market rent
of the Premises according to a fair rent letter issued by an
independent property valuer (the “Valuer"”); and (i) various
conditions of the Premises, including but not limited to
the location of the Premises as well as the management
services associated with the Premises. The Valuer assessed
the market rent of the Premises, based on the prevailing
market conditions and the rental level of similar properties in
the vicinity.
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The Property Leasing Agreement became effective on 1
April 2017 and is valid until either (i) the expiry of a period
of three years or (i) RMIA Shenzhen may terminate the
agreement before the expiry of its term by giving a six
months’ notice to Shun Cheong. RMIA Shenzhen may by
giving Shun Cheong a three months’ notice before the
expiry of the agreement, request for the renewal of the
lease.

The maximum annual aggregate amounts payable by RMIA
Shenzhen to Shun Cheong under the Property Leasing Agreement
for each of the years ending 31 March 2020 is RMB15.1 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$17.8 million).

The transactions contemplated under the Property Leasing
Agreement also constitute related party transaction of the
Company under HKFRS, details of which are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Review of the Continuing Connected
Transactions

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company's
auditor was engaged to perform certain procedures in respect
of the continuing connected transactions set out above in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
the Group in its normal course of business are set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions/continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, which are set out in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages
223 to 225, have compiled with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group's businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'’S
SECURITIES AND EQUITY-LINKED
AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, at no time during the year was the Company, or
any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
chief executive of the Company or their respective associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")
or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, nor did
the Company enter into any equity-linked agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2019, the Directors and the chief executives of
the Company had the following interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

M2019F3A31H - EZERARAHEEITH
ABRARE REMEEEE(EELESRE
ERBIEXVER) A REES K HAEEDIE
32{ERHEN AR RIATEFENELMA
SARE E AR RIMI SR 10ATH ETHEITAES
EITEFRHHIZETAESITHNERAA
MEBBRZ TR - MR, & EREF
iR AR - AT ¢

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of in the Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares (%)

L NG i

BB

EEfA EEME RGEE (ADL)

Hung Yau Lit Beneficial owner; 891,000,000 72.78%
(also known as YY Hung) Interest in controlled corporation (long position)
i BEmEBA (4FE)
(X & HEHZL) RS EE R (Note)
(F%E)

Liu Zhengiang Beneficial owner 200,000 0.01%
E=E EnEEA (Long position)
(4FE)

Yiu Kar Chun Antony Beneficial owner 192,000 0.01%
ol =4 EmEA A (Long position)
(4R

Note: Amongst these 891,000,000 shares, 708,000,000 shares are beneficially
owned by Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited which is wholly
owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung). By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Hung is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Regent
Marvel Investment Holdings Limited. Mr. Hung is also the beneficial
owner of 183,000,000 shares.

45T : 7£ 7% 891,000,000 % f% 1 7 - 708,000,000 Ak
f% 15 B Regent Marvel Investment Holdings
Limited (LN E (X BANE) c £ 2 B
B)EmlEE - REEHFRABKRE - HEE
13 A1 Regent Marvel Investment Holdings
Limited T BB F HE A s o A ENR
183,000,000 (2 (VB EB A ©

48 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #2REIR(IZR)ER QR



REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2019, according to the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO and so far as
is known to the Directors, the following persons or corporations
(other than the Directors or the chief executives of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest

BREE,EB EEME

Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited Beneficial owner
BEmlEBA

Choy King Ngor Interest of spouse

2R fe (B

Hui Ching Lau Interest in controlled

IER corporation

SRR EE RS

King Terrace Limited Beneficial Owner

EDBEAA

Yiheng Capital, LLC Beneficial Owner
BEmlEBA

L — Long Position
L—tF&
S — Short Position
S—iR
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of in the Company

Shares (%)

AR BB FE

BHNE DL

BoEE (Bo k)

708,000,000 (L) 57.83%
(Note 1)
(PFE1)

891,000,000 (L) 72.78%
(Note 2)
(Mi5E2)

78,696,000(L) 6.43%
(Note 3)
(FMI5E3)

78,696,000(L) 6.43%
(Note 3)
(FI5E3)

99,056,280(L) 8.10%
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Notes:

1. Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited is beneficially and wholly
owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung). By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Hung is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Regent
Marvel Investment Holdings Limited.

2. Ms. Choy King Ngor is the wife of Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY
Hung) and is deemed to be interested in the shares which are interested
by Mr. Hung under Part XV of the SFO.

& King Terrace Limited is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Hui Ching
Lau. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hui is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by King Terrace Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Directors
were not aware that there is any other party (not being a Director
or chief executive of the Company) who, as at the date of this
annual report, had an interest or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company, which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there has been
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company's issued
shares up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section on
pages 52 to 68 of this annual report.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS

SUBQUENT EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET
DATE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no other
significant events affecting the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries after the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019 requiring
disclosure in this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2019 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. A
resolution for re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the independent auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERRS

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
(the “Corporate Governance Report”) in the Group’'s annual
report for the year ended 31 March 2019.

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Board and the management of the Group are committed
to the maintenance of good corporate governance practices
and procedures. The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective
management, a healthy corporate culture, successful business
growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasize a quality Board,
sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that save as disclosed below, the
Company has complied with all code provisions and, where
applicable, the recommended best practices of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code"”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 March 2019.

According to code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company has appointed Mr. Hung
Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) as both the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in
the same individual would enable the Company to achieve higher
responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when formulating
business strategies and executing business plans. The Board
believes that the balance of power and authority is sufficiently
maintained by the operation of the senior management and the
Board, which comprises experienced and high-calibre individuals.
The Board currently comprises five executive Directors
(including Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)) and three
independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly
strong independence element in its composition. The Board will
nevertheless review the structure and composition of the Board
from time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Upon specific
enquiries being made with all Directors, each of them confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 March 2019.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board, led by the Chairman, Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known
as YY Hung), determines and monitors the overall strategy
and policies, annual budgets and business plans, evaluates the
performance of the Group, and supervises the management of
the Company.

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among
other things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review of
the corporate and financial policies, review and assessment
of the Company's financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems and the oversight of the management of
the Group’s business and affairs. In addition, the Board has also
established four Board committees, namely the audit committee,
the nomination committee, the remuneration committee and
the executive committee, and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities set out in their respective
terms of reference.

Composition

The Board currently has eight Directors comprising five executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors (the
“INEDs"). The Directors for the year ended 31 March 2019 and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Liu Zhengiang

Mr. Chen Zhiping (Chief Operating Officer)

Ms. Sze Shui Ling

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Or Ching Fai

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie

Ms. Tam Laiman
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SRERRS

The members of the Board represent a wide background and rich
industry experience with appropriate professional qualifications.
Please refer to the section headed "Profile of Directors, Senior
Management and Company Secretary” of this annual report for
the profiles of the Directors. Save as disclosed in the section
headed "Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary”, the Directors have no other financial, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are served by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY
Hung) and have not been segregated as required under code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board is of the view that
such arrangement provided the Group with strong and consistent
leadership to the Company and allowed for more effective and
efficient business planning and decisions as well as execution of
long term business strategies.

Independence of INEDs

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board had three
INEDs, representing more than one-third of the Board, and at
least one of them has the appropriate professional qualification of
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the three INEDs in respect of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all the INEDs are independent parties in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and free of
any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of
their independence judgements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. Each of the executive Directors has renewed the
service contract with the Company for a further term of three
years commencing on 11 September 2018. Each of the INEDs has
renewed the letter of appointment with the Company for a further
term of three years commencing from 11 September 2018.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Further,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Members after his
appointment and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

In the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony, Mr. Liu Zhengiang and Mr. Chen Zhiping
will retire as Directors in accordance with Article 84 of the Articles
of Association and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election. Their biographical details will be set out in the circular
to be dispatched to the Shareholders with the notice of annual
general meeting.
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Meetings

The Board meets on a regular basis, and on an ad hoc basis,
as required by the business needs. During the year ended 31
March 2019, the Board convened 4 board meetings and one
annual general meeting (the “2018 AGM") to approve the final
and interim results announcements and financial reports, and to
discuss the overall strategy and monitor financial and operation
performance of the Company.

Attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings and
the 2018 AGM during the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out in
the following table:
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Name of Director SERE
Executive Director HITEE

Mr. Hung Yau Lit ST 4/4

(also known as YY Hung) (RZHRZE) e

(Chairman and Chief Executive — (F/EF#E/EHITE)
Officer)

Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony BT E 4/4
(Chief Financial Officer) (BEHEE)

Mr. Liu Zhengiang ZEdnE 4/4

Mr. Chen Zhiping BREFRE 4/4
(Chief Operating Officer) (BEEEE)

Ms. Sze Shui Ling MR 21 4/4

Independent non-executive BUHHITEE

Director
Dr. Or Ching Fai EEEL 4/4
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie 8 F ki + 4/4
Ms. Tam Laiman EENLL 4/4

Attendance

Attendance inthe  Attendance

rate 2018 AGM rate
A HF2018F
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100 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
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Z

100 Yes 100
Z
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Z
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board
and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
at Board level and has commitment to diversity at all levels,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or profession experience.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, profession experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Board's
composition, the nomination committee of the Company is
satisfied that the requirement set out in the Board Diversity Policy
has been met.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy on 26 November
2018 which sets out the selection criteria and nomination
procedures adopted to guide the nomination committee of the
Company to select and recommend candidates for directorship so
as to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business.

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
nomination committee of the Company in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate:

° reputation for integrity;

o qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company's
business and corporate strategy;
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. (in case of independent non-executive Directors)
requirement for the Board to have independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules;

° any potential contributions that the candidate can bring to
the Board,;

o commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of
available time and relevant interest; and

° any other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business operation and environment as well as
the industry in which the Company operates.

The nomination committee may consult any source it considers
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations
from a third party agency firm and proposals from the
shareholders of the Company with due consideration given to the
criteria which include but are limited to the above-mentioned.

The nomination committee or the company secretary of
the Company shall convene a meeting upon receipt of any
nominations of candidates to evaluate such candidates based on
the selection criteria mentioned above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship. The nomination committee
should then recommend to the Board to appoint the appropriate
candidate for directorship. For any person that is nominated by
a shareholder of the Company for election as a Director at the
general meeting, the nomination committee and/or the Board
should make recommendation to the shareholders in respect of
the proposed election of Director at the general meeting. The
Board should have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

All the Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development so as to equip themselves with the
latest developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable legal
and regulatory requirements, industry knowledge and managerial
skills in relation to the operation of the Group’s business.

All Directors have provided to the Company with their training
records and such records have been maintained by the Company
for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.
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Directors’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has arranged for appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance to indemnify its Directors against liabilities
arising out of legal action on corporate activities. During the year
ended 31 March 2019, no claim had been made against the
Directors of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. These include: to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and to
review the Company's compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the audit
committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee
and executive committee, each of which has the defined written
terms of reference that will be reviewed and updated, where
necessary. Copies of minutes of all meetings are kept by the
company secretary and open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director. Each committee is required
to report to the Board on its decision and recommendations,
where appropriate.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three INEDs, namely Dr. Or
Ching Fai, Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie and Ms. Tam Laiman.
The chairman of the audit committee is Dr. Or Ching Fai who has
appropriate professional qualifications.

The audit committee is established to, without limitation, assist
the Board in providing an independent review and supervision
of the Group’s financial and accounting policies, to review the
financial controls, risk management and internal control systems
of the Company, to oversee the audit process, and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as delegated by the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this
report, the audit committee members met two times with the
Group’s senior management and the external auditors to discuss
and review, among other things, the following matters:

o the interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2018 and the annual results for the year ended 31 March
2019 to ensure full, complete and accurate disclosure in the
aforesaid financial statements pursuant to the accounting
standards and other legal requirement for presenting the
same to the Board for approval,

° the terms and remuneration for the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as external auditors to perform the
agreed-upon procedures on the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2018 and the audit of annual
results for the year ended 31 March 2019;

° the independence of the external auditors especially for
those non-audit services; and

° the overall effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meetings
is set out in the following table:

Name of Director

Dr. Or Ching Fai 5B L
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie M E kit
Ms. Tam Laiman BEXIT
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee comprises three members, namely
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie (the chairman of the committee),
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) and Ms. Tam Laiman.

The primary responsibilities of the remuneration committee
include (but not limited to) making recommendations and
proposals to the Board in respect of remuneration policies and
structure for Directors and senior management's remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the remuneration
committee held two meetings, in which it reviewed the existing
remuneration policies by reference with the market research
and gave recommendation of the remuneration packages and
performance-based bonus for executive Directors and senior
management to the Board for approval.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meetings
is set out in the following table:

Name of Director

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie Pk dt
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) HOREE (X BHO ) 4
Ms. Tam Laiman BEXXL
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the
code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
other members of the senior management by bands for the year
ended 31 March 2019 is set out below:

Remuneration to the senior management

EEHFIBEI AR A B TS HRRMIFESS -
BEAN - IRB S EEESFRIMSFRIESCB.A G -
HZE2019F3A31 AL FEHMEREIRE
RERSEHRESNFEHFMHEINNT ¢

Number of
senior management

by bands EREEBRERE S WEH EREEBAH
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 75#1,000,001 7278 1,500,0007T 2
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 75#1,500,001 7T 27 #£2,000,0007T 3
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 75#2,000,001 7T 27 #£2,500,0007T 1
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), Mrs. To Wong Wing
Yue Annie and Ms. Tam Laiman. Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as
YY Hung) is the chairman of the nomination committee.

The primary responsibilities of the nomination committee include
(but not limited to) reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on structure, size composition and diversity of the
Board, to oversee the identification and assessment of potential
board candidates, to provide oversight and direction in respect
of the succession planning for Directors and to determine the
composition of Board committees.

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this
report, the nomination committee held one meeting which dealt
with the following matters:

° review of the Board composition and structure;

° review of independence of INEDs; and

° review of re-appointment of retiring Directors.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meetings
is set out in the following table:

Name of Director

Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) St (R &z ) s 4

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie P E Kt
Ms. Tam Laiman BEXZL

REZES

REZBEM=RKEER 2RI RHHE
(XEHRR)2E  BEKZLTREEX
Tt o HHE(REBHRBR) EERREEE
ES
REZBENIEZRERFBE(ETRN)BE
BEEGHRE  ARRRRZ TR
EEgRHEBEE ZBVENTRERE
EEREA  REFOEIFIRRES
RIS ARETEEZE AN -

REZE2019F3A831HIEFENEEARE
B RRZEEEHRT—RERUEENT
£H:

o MWNEFCHMEMRKREE

o  BFEMIEMITEREMNBIME K&

o EHMER(IEZEAEH-

TREHZERKEHEZEGSHIER -

Number of
meetings attended Attendance rate
HEERRE HE &R
A 100
A 100
A 100

Executive Committee

The Board has set up the executive committee on 30 November
2015. The executive committee comprises all executive Directors
of the Company and the chairman of the Board shall be the
chairman of the committee.

The primary responsibilities of the executive committee include,
but not limited to, advising and assisting the Board in formulating
policies, monitoring the performance of management in carrying
out and implementing the policies laid down by the Board for the
Group, and handling and dealing with the bank-related transactions
and matters.

HITEES

BEEMN2015F 11 A0 HITERES -
HWITREEHARRDBATESMEANX - M
ERSTRAUABZTESNER -

HITZEEMIERA BB (ETRR) L
FRRAEFERHEERALETHY B
BEERATRETHESERAREEE
BIBERHRIR - ARERE PR RITHEER
HREH
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company engages PricewaterhouseCoopers as external
auditor. PricewaterhouseCoopers is responsible for auditing
and forming an independent opinion on the Group's annual
consolidated financial statements.

The audit committee reviews and monitors the external auditor’'s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year a planning report from the external
auditor confirming its independence and objectivity and holds
meetings with representatives of the external auditor to consider
the scope of its fees, and the scope and appropriateness
of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The audit
committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditor.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the total fees paid/payable
in respect of services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
external auditor of the Company, are set out below:

Services rendered

FriR AR %S

R
IR

Audit services
Non-audit services

ERER/RE

SRR BEM

ARRIREERBKEEEEBARINE
TZEEN - BEBOKEGMELMARES
REENFREEMHERE LU IR EE L
BR -

ERZBeENRERINSZBE BT
REBME  URBZBEENERE - 28BS
BERERIMNS BB L ER LB
HEEBMENREIRE - WEINSZBEAR
REBTEH  UEREWERE - AKiSH
HAiR e SRR (B ) EE B E
% - BZZ BTN ZBE N R EER
BEEAEFSRIES

(3 GIE

HZE2019F3A31 B ILEFE - BiAAFINE
% B RN 28 Fo ok 3B 5T RT3 75 T2 4L A9 BR 7%
BAt N B AREHIIIT

Fees paid/payable
Bft EAER

HK$°000
BT T

2,900
1,055
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
consolidated financial statements of the annual and interim
reports, other price sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and to report to
regulators as well as to disclose information required pursuant
to statutory requirements. When the Directors become aware of
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, such uncertainties would be clearly and
prominently set out and discussed in detail in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities and opinion of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2019 is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 133
to 139 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL AUDIT

Risk Management and Internal Control

To manage and monitor the various risk factors which the
Company may be exposed, the Board is responsible for
establishing and overseeing the Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis, and ensuring the
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems has been properly conducted. The main features
of this system, which continues to operate, were described in this
Corporate Governance Report.

The Company has already reviewed its risk management
framework and processes and has implemented relevant
measures resulting from this exercise that aim to enhance
its framework and processes. In particular, the Company has
developed, approved and implemented a risk management
system, which is defined and supported by its endorsed
risk management policy. The terms of reference of the audit
committee have included its responsibility for an effective system
of internal control and risk management.

BEREFZ

EEWER  REFEAEFERTHHEEN
FAMBEHE  HtRESRASEREL
AR AFTAR E MY EL A R TS R R R B A F
B SRR - MR BB B E R &
BRBAEERMRENER - HEFNE
SN BT E AN R RRELERINENS
HERNBRANERTHARE - MAERD
KERMET B RBEEHMIAMFA®
ZETHAREE -

AR BYAZBMAEBAERRBERESR
NEIEE201943A31 B L FEWNLGEA TS
WEREBERMER  #IRAERE133E139
BRBIZEANRE -

Rk EER A BEZ

R B B I W EREE 1R

REERESRAQNR YN ZREARE
= EFeRAFERULEBAARRR
EERABEERGNEE - LHERZER
AR E IR K N EBEEE R AT HIBCRN o It R AT
SEEE  HEX BN ALEERAHREN

AREEdERREEERREFTCE
B 5 SR AR IR MAZ Fr MUARREE B - 5550
o ARAEHIE  HERER—EHRER
A e B B IR IR P E B S S as O LR B R
A BREZEGNRERNECBRENA
BABEERRREEZROBE
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Risk Governance Structure Bk EELEE

The Company's governance structure for is risk management 7T'< ARREERFNEBRBEHIIAT -
system is shown below. Each party has well defined and detailed EREAEPREFANACBREE -

roles and responsibilities.

Board of Directors

—s

CE

Oversight Body
BE

Internal Audit Department
WEDE AT A

Executive C
H17ZE

Risk Management
Steering Committee

RRREREHALZES

(]
(7]
c
[
“—
[ 7]
(a]
Y
(=]
()
=
-
°
c
]
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Risk Assessment Methodology

The Company's methodology for its risk assessment comprises
of four core stages (i.e. risk identification, assessment, monitoring
and reporting). These processes are performed at least once a
year to address changes in the Company’s business environment.

Review on the Effectiveness of Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material
controls such as financial, operational and compliance controls.
In addition, the Board has appointed an international accountancy
firm to review the internal control systems of the Company on an
on-going basis. The review covered the expenditure, production
management and fixed assets management of certain key
subsidiaries of the Company.

Our Responsibility

Our Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that effective
and sound risk management and internal control systems are
maintained, while management is responsible to design and
implement an internal controls system to manage risks. The
Board is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal controls system.

The risk management and internal control systems can provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the process of attaining business
objectives. Based on the results of the annual review, the Board is
satisfied and confident with the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems currently put in place for the
Company.

Communication of Risk Events

Where risk events arise, our communications, both within the
Company and to external parties, are an integral part of the risk
management system. To enable the Company to make the
appropriate decisions and responses to mitigate or address
any risk event, relevant information on the incident needs to
be communicated by and to the right functions and individuals,
completely and accurately, and in a timely manner.

To ensure inside information of the Company is to be disclosed to
the public in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules,
applicable laws and regulatory requirement, a framework has
been established to set out the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information.

R B B 5 0%

AR B H R R Af 77 0% b PO E A O P B ALK
(BERER - Bkt - ARERkERR
) RERFEFRIET R URAR
FAEBRIEME(CIFL B -

[ B B B J% P B B4 AR A Y R AR Y

ERgCEREIE AR RGN
EITFERE  OREMTE  BERARER
EMBEREE - IS ERRCRBER
SR EBAFE R AR R NN EZER
7o BRRMBREARRETEIEMNB AR
X - AEEEREEEEEE o

BANRE

SR RARRRESBRLEZMRR
ERRAREERS  MEREEERTR
BEHABEERGAETREAR - EFETE
BRI AR AR E R R AR RS K
R o

R B IR K M AR BRI R e F] B R E AR Rt
FERRHEEMIFBENRE  XEEE
B IEERAEEBEY B RRBET HIRMN
KBER - REFERANNER  EFaY
A w) B AR E R E R T I Rk A EREE &
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B PS4 EE

RHBERR R - AR R ERE SRR
EHMBRTT BB R R E IR RSB
7 o BEARBMEHRAEREREE RE
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THETE KA RRMEEREKEH
EMFREREER

RERARFARBELRRETRA - EA
FREMNEERTERRARKE  ARFD
B RBHAARIE KB ARE SR T R
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SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS g RAER
The Company aims to establish fair and transparent procedures ARAREERELANFERERANER - FHAE
to enable all shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their BRSNS 15 R N T R
rights in an informed manner and communicates efficiently with BARNRBRER - RIBABEIZMAIAR
the Company. Under the Articles of Association and the relevant AARHERELETF  BREZH(HPa
policies and procedures of the Company, the shareholders enjoy, AR

among others, the following rights:

1. Convene an extraordinary general meeting/put

forward proposals:

Any one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
with two months after the deposit of such requisition at the
Company’s Hong Kong office at 10th Floor, Tower A, Regent
Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under Article 58 of the
Articles of Association once a valid requisition is received.

2. Propose a person for election as a Director:
As regards to the procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director, please refer to “Procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as director”
under the section headed “Shareholders rights” of the
Company’s website at www.reginamiracleholdings.com.

3. Put forth enquiries to the Company:
Specific enquiries by Shareholders requiring the Board's
attention can be sent in writing to the company secretary
at the Company's Hong Kong office at 10th Floor, Tower
A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong
Kong.

FHERREIAE RBRERS .
E—EZRZEREZEKBHIFE
FLORARBERBEA(MERAR
AREASELRENEN) +H2—
(10%)HIARER - B RER (A RS AR
EEeRAQRMERHEMER
DREZSAABREEIARE - UE
BHBERPIEANERSEE: BZ
AREEARBE2ZERERQREHIM
EE (M AT B BNEAR ECIHE
g DA 104 ) EMME A AERIT o i
E2B-_+—BR EFeXEEF
BHAZAE  MRBATUERGH
BRBREFNAE  MEBEARES
FREBHZEEMNEEN &8
BRE BHRAREMNERBA - BRI
HAEBFERER  ARARBIREARE
RY4RAIES KR TERIUEETE
WHER N EZHE o

RENBSEEE
FHERABAEZ2EEFN
BF F2HKRQABA
www.reginamiracleholdings.com
[ARRRER | — B e[ R IR B AL
BEBRENIEF] -

EARAFREER
RRREEEZTSHE IMNABERTMU
EMHEATERERARAEEREEN
ARIMER It AEBEBNES
JEE3RE M DABET0E o
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing and constructive
relationship with the shareholders, the Company has compiled
a shareholders communication policy and established various
channels of communication with the shareholders, such as
publication of interim reports and annual reports, press releases
and announcements of the latest development of the Company in
a timely manner. The shareholders are also encouraged to attend
the Company’s annual general meetings where the Chairman and
members of different Board committees are available to answer
Shareholders’ questions and exchange views with them.

Financial and other information in relation to the Group
has been published on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’'s website at
www.reginamiracleholdings.com.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Kwan Chuen is the company secretary of the Company.
He is an employee of the Company and reports directly to the
Board and is responsible for, inter alia, providing updated and
timely information to all Directors from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, Mr. Law has complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has also dedicated great effort towards protecting the
environment and supporting society. For details, please refer to
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual
report under the “Corporate Social Responsibility” subsection.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this
report, the Company has not made any changes to its Articles of
Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association is
available on both the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R A EREREE

ABOUT THE REPORT

Introduction

The Group is pleased to issue its third environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") report (the “Report”), with an aim to disclose
the Group's policy system and performance in respect of fulfilling
environmental and social responsibilities for Fiscal 2019. On the
basis of the ESG report for Fiscal 2018, the Report has added
the disclosure of three items of social performance data, in line
with the expectation from stakeholders and the public for greater
publicity of the ESG information of the Group.

Scope of Reporting

The Report covers the manufacturing and office business of
the Group's Shenzhen and Vietnamese factories in its general
disclosure and the key performance indicators (“KPIs") for social
aspects, whereas the environmental KPls encompasses the
manufacturing and office business of the Shenzhen factory and
Vietnamese factories A, B and C, to further align with the Group's
operating performance for Fiscal 2019.

The time frame of this report lasts from 1 April 2018 to 31
March 2019, with some content dating back to previous years as
appropriate.

Basis of Preparation

The Report is prepared strictly according to the requirements
of the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the "ESG Reporting Guide”) of the Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or the
“HKEx"), with disclosure priorities of the Report and the Group's
management objectives for sustainable development identified
based on the degree of concern on each topic to the stakeholders.

Source of Information

The information disclosed in the Report comes from the Group's
official documents, statistical reports and relevant public
information.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOVERNANCE

Sustainable Development Philosophy

As an advocate and practitioner of sustainable development
philosophy, the Group actively manages the environmental and
social impact of its manufacturing and operational activities while
working to become a world-class enterprise. We save energy and
reduce consumption to sustain a balanced ecological environment;
we respect our staff and protect their legitimate rights and
interests; we strive for superior manufacturing to produce high-
quality products; we value coordination to procure our supplier
to perform obligations; we comply with laws and regulations and
observe business ethics; we give back to society and support
community development. In Fiscal 2019, we regarded energy
management and human rights management as the work focus of
sustainable development, endeavoring to create long-term value
for stakeholders, shoulder responsibility and achieve sustainable
development in a responsible fashion.

Vision

R dEREREE

ARFERERE

AFERRER
AEEREWRITARBENERES D)
DR AT RBEFCENRE  BEEEE
EMBLEHHRERLTNEE - &M
EORERRFE - FFHETAREIRE - HMBEEET
REEZETIE : B8RS - TEEEE
o BPESRHBE  REHRERREE &M
BEGHR  BTHEERE ZME®tE
B2 B R - 20198 F - BFIARLRER
MABEBEANRERRETIENES &
TR AR ABRBAERREE  AET -
BEZHMERIFERE -

Promoting sustainable development of the industry through innovation and

e technology, and becoming an outstanding cross-sector global enterprise

AIFERREETRSERE  HIARRBTXEHEH

Mission Producing premium products, realize industry value and put social
& responsibilities to practice

RIE-RER HERTXEE X BTHERME

Integrity and pragmatism, people-oriented, innovative development,
cooperation

HBEBE  UARK  AIFBE  HESHE

Belief

==

B—2F - B-E2E BB

Emphases of
sustainable

competitiveness
= ] development

ARERRERN

Structure of Sustainable Development Governance
The Group has established a robust ESG management structure.
We have effectively carried out our sustainable development
strategies with well-specified responsibilities for each level,
to ensure that environmental and social responsibilities are
incorporated into our management decision-making, daily
operation and corporate culture.

One company, one dream, one team

Sustainable development on innovation, culture, system and core

A ARERRE  MEUHERE  HETHERRE  WOBRFHIARFERR

RERRAERRE
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The Board, as the highest decision-maker responsible for the BEEEERRSIARHEE - BARKEIRE -
Group's ESG affairs, provides guidance and suggestions on HEREABE  BARFBRENTHER

sustainable development management by timely reviewing and BE WAREEREEIRIEEE
assessing the Group's strategies. As the central department B AHEREBIERARE HERERE
on ESG affairs, the department for sustainable development BHHRELTM  BEHRATNEBESIBPIEA
coordinates and oversees all the departments in fulfilling SERREGMNEE BN  TAHABRSTE
sustainable development responsibilities, and organizes the GRIT - HEREBRS)  SBEHPIER
preparation of the annual ESG report; respective functional BRI BEEEAISELERE
departments, as the actual executors, are responsible for W iRtz BIREEMB AR -

implementing sustainable development strategies and providing
materials for information disclosure.

Under the robust support of our ESG management structure, our TIRE HEREAEEEAENENLE
sustainable development strategies cover multiple subject areas, T RZMHENAREEERRRESRE
such as compliance audit, brand protection, environmental audit, % miRRE - RIREZ - BRERE EB
system establishment, legal affairs and public relations, with MAHBEREZESHE - WEAELEZEMK
comprehensive policies and systems in place to effectively guide FRHE - AERUESI BB & REERH
our sustainable operation and our partners'. WRIFFEEE -

ESG Leadership
The Board of Directors
BiE - - HEREAREEER
=

ESG Coordination
Department for Sustainable Development

RE -HERERRSBER
AR E RS

ESG Execution
Respective Functional Departments
RiE - HERERYTER
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Sustainable Development Governance Structure
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COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Stakeholder Communication Mechanism

The Group maintains continuous communication with its
stakeholders in an open and prudent attitude, with stakeholder
concerns and suggestions as our key reference for sustainable
development. We have set up a normalized stakeholder
communication mechanism to ensure that stakeholders are timely
informed of the Group's operation status. We regularly review
our environmental and social impact, and actively listen and
respond to stakeholders’ appeal and suggestions, all in an effort
to safeguard and cement the relations of mutual help and trust
with our stakeholders and jointly attain the vision of sustainable
development.

R dEREREE

B ABE
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REE AR RE RN R B AN
BHE UHESANBUYEEAREZRRR
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HESANEPERERE  BFERAUE
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Stakeholder Communication Mechanism

5PN L ]

Stakeholder Expectation and Appeal
EEA HAE BRFR R

Communication and Response

BIEERDE

Staff Remuneration and benefits assurance
Healthy working environment
Career development and promotion
Safeguard staff's legitimate rights and
interests

il
H

I AR FRIE
fRRM TIERE
BRERAS
RiEE TAERER

Customers Product quality
Customer information protection
Business integrity

5P EmmE
EFERRE
[EEE4E

Shareholders and Financial results

investors Corporate sustainable profit
Corporate transparency
Rights protection

R EREE ﬁ?fﬁ%iii
RAAFHERA
RABERE
R IRIE

Competitive remuneration in the market
Staff care activities

Optimize the staff development and
promotion mechanism

Set up barrier-free communication
channels for staff

BHEFNOTISHE

BETHEEE

B B T e R AE S

B BIEEERERERE

Improve product quality and R&D
Employ information technology methods
Enhance internal control and risk
management

R EmE 2 e

BRERREFR

B A E b E 1R

Enhance profitability

Enhance corporate sustainable
profitability

Disclose daily information
Convene general meetings
= EAIEEN

e N RIFHERNEEN
BEESRKE

BRKRERE
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Stakeholder Communication Mechanism
R A BB
Stakeholder Expectation and Appeal
@A HAE BRER R
Government and
regulatory authority

Communication and Response

BB D e

Compliance with laws
Tax payment according to law
Job creation

Operation in accordance with the law
and compliance management
Voluntary tax payment

Creation of job opportunities

BT EEEE MR BILTIE RELEHERER
AT T
fRHERL S BlEREEE

Suppliers and partners  Cooperation and win-win
Open and fair
Achieve common growth

Optimize project management
Improve the supplier management system
Establish communication platforms for

suppliers
HIEREE (R SIEHR BILIEE B
NN FTEHIEREIRHS
BRARKE BEfERERYA

Industrial associations  Exchange industrial experience
Promote industrial progress

Participate in industrial forums
Enhance R&D ability

E1 TTREEIIR SEITERIE
HEBTRES RITHTEEEEN

Local communities Protect community environment Comprehensively practise green operation

Devote to social welfare

Create harmonious community
environment

Facilitate community development

Undertake public welfare projects
Actively engage in joint community
construction

Provide premium cultural resources

EiitE REAL R IR EHEBERGEEL
g ghn N FRERARIER
BIEAE RIRE TafR 2 Mt s
R RBER REBENUEER
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Material Subjects

The Group believes that continuous communication can help us
to keep abreast of the latest perspectives, and quickly respond
to the risks and opportunities arising from the changing market.
Therefore, based on the materiality assessment results from
last financial year and taking into account the results from our
communication with stakeholders in Fiscal 2019, we have
determined the materiality sequence of subjects for the Report
and elaborated on them in a targeted manner herein, so as to
preserve the substance of our information disclosure in the
Report.

/N

ESG Reporting Strategies and Risks and
Guide Goals

ESGH &153l HERER

ESG Subjects
ESG&®E

Materiality A C

Opportunities
05958 5

EEME

Stakeholders
EEAER

R dEREREE

ERMEE
AEEREFEEBENEDRMABRER
RO RE - WS ARRE RN EEZN
M5 E R E R RS o Bt - R E—FF
FHENEZMTEER  BA20198F#
iRt ARBBAR - BPEE T AHRS
ERFEENEZ NS - LA HEER
WERELRL - AREAREREEEDN
BEEE -

Subjects among
Industry Peers
E{THE

A Materiality Matrix for ESG Subjects
ESGREE E14ER

1 10

12

15

i
b
£
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@®
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E

Impact on Business ¥ 3 7% f) 8/ £
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Sequence of ESG Subjects Based on Materiality
ESGREEEMHF

Very Important 1 Labour rights protection
FEEE BT =R
2 Product quality and safety
EmEsRTs
8 R&D and innovation
it EE B AR
4 Customer satisfaction and information security
EEMEERERELE
5 Occupational health and safety
BEERET S
6 Staff training and development
BTHIIEER
Important 7 Preventing child and forced labour
BE B 1EE T koqia %5
8 Management of energy consumption and carbon emissions
BEFE BB E I
9 \Water resources and sewage treatment
IKEREFTKERR

10 Energy saving, emissions reduction and green operation
BB AR B8

11 Protection of intellectual property rights
FEREERERE
12 Anti-corruption and compliance management
RESHEEHER
13 Staff remuneration packages and benefits
8 TEr RS R AEF
14 Supplier admission and assessment
e ARG
Less Important 15 Anti-discrimination and equal opportunity
REE RER R EE
16 Community investment
HERE
17 Waste disposal
REZ Y BRI

18 Environmental and labour management performance of suppliers
HIERERIFE RS TERERR

As shown in the results of materiality assessment, the subjects BRESEZUHTHERR  AFEEEMNH

ranked higher in materiality include labour rights protection, FRENALIERRE EnEEHZT
product quality and safety, R&D and innovation, customer 2 BRI BERPMEEHREELESE
satisfaction and information security, etc. We will emphasize on #HE BB EAREPER NS EEERE
the disclosure of such subjects in the Report and regard them as BB EE - WIABYER T —FESGIIER M
the significant reference for our ESG work planning for the year FEEKE -

ahead.

76 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # % iREIB (2R AR AT



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

GROWING ALONG WITH THE STAFF

Regarding talents as irreplaceable assets for the sustainable
development of Regina Miracle, the Group proactively nurtures
and develops its human resources under a sound talent
management system and a robust people-oriented protection
system. The Group, as a responsible employer, grows along with
its staff to attain success.

Talent Management System

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions where it operates, including the “Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Labor Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China” and the “Labor Code of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam”. Besides, the Group has prepared
and implemented policies and procedures covering the entire
group and all job levels, including the “Recruitment Procedures”,
the “Training Procedures”, the “Management Measures for
Competitive Internal Recruitment, Promotion and Demotion”, as
well as the “Staff Departure Procedures”. It has built a robust
talent management system that features “Recruitment-Training-
Retaining”, to establish and maintain a talent team for meeting
our ongoing and fast development needs.

Talent Recruitment

The Group prepares human resources plans based on Regina
Miracle's strategies and objectives. It introduces excellent
personnel through campus recruitment, internal recommendation
and recruitment websites, all in the principle of “open recruitment,
comprehensive appraisal and merit-based admission”. We roll out
a number of recommendation incentive schemes to encourage
our employees to recommend various outstanding talents, as a
way of fully utilizing our existing human capital to continuously
inject vitality into our talent teams.

As of 31 March 2019, the Group had a staff of 40,422,
representing an increase of 9% over the previous fiscal year. The
growth in the total number of staff was in line with our business
growth, which brought stable support of human resources to us.

R dEREREE

HETHENKE

REEBAT R RELRATFEERDAE
RKOEEVE - WEEWAT EREREMEZE
EMAXRERBRZEEHENEEANE
o AERBEENEIRMA B TREMKI) -

AT EEEZR

AEE BB RE(hEARLMBELEEEXH
EARANMBESHERVEX AL ETHL
MBS ENE)FE L PRI MR HDEEA
A BIEN BRI R P XE IR P X R ER
BIENBRET - BREREIEXE TEER
RE)EBREREE - 2BENBERRE -
BEERTENERE S -BEIATER
BRBERE - BRI EER R R
B RBRERFZNHATHM

AT R
AEBRBED B NBRHEANER
T8 U AREE - 2EE% - e
RRA - BBRERE - REBET REEE
WERBIIERBEAS - RPIRBZHER
RETESZBMETISIBESREEANT - =D
MAEENANERBERFINAT LA
SENETT ©

B ZE2019F3A31H - ZEEEBTHAEA
40422 N B E—HIFHEREI% c ETHRA
IR E PN E B RAEE - AP
HRTIREMANE RS IE ©
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Number of Staff
BT A

Unit Fiscal 2019

By 201981 &
Total number of staff Person
BTHAE A 1 40,422
Number of staff by gender
RUEFETHNETIAY
Male Person
ESlia A 15,094
Female Person
pegis A 25,328
Number of staff by employment type
REBERESINETIAH
Full-time Person
e A 40,419
Part-time Person
Fehsk A 3
Number of staff by rank
RBREAINETIAY
General staff Person
LTBET A 36,617
Middle management Person
FEER A 3,661
Senior management Person
BEEE A 144
Number of staff by age group
REBREREDPHWETAZ
30 years old or below Person
30RER AT A 23,096
31 to 40 years old Person
31-405%, A 13,139
41 to 50 years old Person
41-505% A 3,998
Above 50 years old Person
50BRA L A 189
Number of staff by region
RBEESWETAY
Mainland Person
FEI A A 10,047
Hong Kong Person
BEHE A 289
Vietnam Person
R A 30,086

1 The statistics about the number of staff encompasses the full-time, 1 BT ABFTHEAAEEAT  FIIRRE -
part-time employees of the Group's headquarters, Shenzhen factories, MERE R EABAESFIN R - RBET -

Vietnamese factories and functional departments in Hong Kong.
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Training and Development

The Group is committed to growing along with its staff and
provides rich training resources and smooth development paths
for the staff, with a view to reserving talents for our steady
development. Based on our strategic priorities of “innovation,
speed and quality”, we have updated our annual strategic
objectives for talent development:

Establish
talent criteria

BIAARE

v

R dEREREE

155 R 2R
AEBNUEETHRAKEKIRRE - RET
RHLENEIERNGENEREKE B
BANBRBEREFRBRAT - RKEREDR
[BIF7 - BE - G828 |MBRER - BHAEH
TEEASBRBEEER

Select key positions in respect of strategic demand and performance,
and establish talent criteria

B IE T SN A R IR PR 877 T B RA S R L

B ATIRE

Inherit mature
experience

{E B P B B

Provide smooth
channels for

development
ERREE

Ramp up speed
and quality
RAFEMHE

v

Sort out a standardized curriculum system for key positions, with effective
inheritance of internal mature experience

HU BB MEN - RIREAECHRBER - ARERABA IS

Provide smooth channels for personnel promotion and development,
by combining external introduction and internal training with
performance appraisal and remuneration incentive

HEEINBAT SIEEANE AL EE  EREZEETIAE - TTRASL
BEERBE

Introduce industrial engineering and quality control instruments and
measures, coupled with the Group’s process standardization project and
group-wide staff training to steadily improve product delivery speed and quality
SETETRRRESETBRTANGE  S#E5EREEELEE - HR2E
Fil - BARAERRIBRENEE

Annual Strategic Objectives for Talent Development

FEATBREBER

Rich Training Resources

Our position-oriented training courses and full-year training
schemes ensure that staff from different positions and ranks can
receive appropriate training throughout their career and cycle.
In addition, our free Chinese and Vietnamese classes help local
Vietnamese staff and their Chinese counterparts based in Vietnam
to overcome language barriers and adjust to a cross-cultural
working environment in a better way. Our all-rounded and diverse
training resources provide constant support for employees in their
career development.

EEAIEIER
KRR 2 FEERIFIE S
RET SEML SERBRANE TEERZE
EEZEAMMESIEENIR - REFR
B P SCHE BB U E B B R AR 3t B T AR EE
HMEMPEE TRREFESR - EifithERE
B TIERE - 27U Z T ERFIIER
EE TR EXERR 2GR B HMINT -
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oo N)e)
Py
Orientation Training

for New Employees
AT AREII

1 42 Training Courses
142 @388

N

Job Qualification
Training

R AR B A& 1 5

N
@)

Skills Enhancement
Training

HrgR A

/

Our Training System for Fiscal 2019

201981 R FIE R

In Fiscal 2019, the Group provided a total of 538 training sessions
for an aggregate of 37,710 employees, averaging 4.50 training
hours for each employee, which was three times that of the last
Fiscal year. With the expansion of our production capacity in
Vietnam and the innovative transformation towards automated
production models, we will continue to invest in training
resources to ensure steady transition for our employees, effective
enhancement of production efficiency and our long-term, healthy
development.

201981 F « ANEEFREEIIHLETE38K - H
EEBI37,710 NREZEFI - FHABAKT
450/ N8 - B E—MEFHZIIEFELN3
& o BEEEAL MMM E BRI EER S
B EAMBIFEE - KA HERALE
BR - MREEIMTFEBBE - AEREMN
BRRARKRMAERBENEE -
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Staff Training Data

Total number of staff trained
ZHETHEAR

Number of staff trained by gender
REFIETHNZINET AR

Male

Eelia

Female

pogi

Number of staff trained by rank
RBREATNZIET AR
General staff

EBET

Middle management

hEERE

Senior management

=EER

Training hours of staff

BT ZIIEE

Training hours by gender
RERE S WETZINEE
Male

51

Female

pogi

Training hours by rank
RBRESNE TSI
General staff

EEET

Middle management
hEEE

Senior management
=EER

Average training hours

BIFHZIEH

ETIZI|gE
Unit Fiscal 2019
B 201981 F
person
AR 2 37,710
person
ANIR 14,548
person
ANIR 23,162
person
ANIR 28,540
person
AR 9,042
person
AR 128
hour
N 2 169,782
hour
N 65,500
hour
N 104,282
hour
N 133,682
hour
N 35,680
hour
N 420
hours/person
NN 2 4.50
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Staff Training Data
BT ZIISE

Unit
By

Average training hours by gender

RERE D WE T FIZHFE

Male hours/person
St AN FONIN
Female hours/person
i AN FONIN

Average training hours by rank

RBARESNWE T FIZIFE

General staff hours/person
TRET NS AR
Middle management hours/person
hEER NE AR
Senior management hours/person
=EEE AN FPNIN

82

The staff training statistics encompasses the full-time, part-time
employees of the Group's headquarters, Shenzhen factories, Vietnam
factories and the functional departments in Hong Kong.

Internal Lecturer Team

The Group's Shenzhen factories started to develop its
internal lecturer team in 2011, selecting and developing
experienced key staff to work as lecturers via “RM Excellent
Course Development” and “Top Lecturer Training Camp”,
supplemented by a targeted, professional core training
system internally with systematic training courses. Our
internal lecturers offer 32 courses in four fields, namely
internal training, skills, emotion and psychology. In these
courses, we fully tap into the effect of our human capital,
and use the work practice and personal experience of our
employees as the entry point to pass on transferrable and
classic experience from generation to generation.

Fiscal 2019
201981 FF

5.84
3.67
4.68
3.95
3.28
BTRIBE A BEARNEELLD - R
B - WEREREBRMEPINRE - RBE
T
LA Al 1B

REERINBE B 2011 FRMBER
WEBEEDEIEK - LA RM#E f aRi2 Fa 35
N[ & EanlaRe RRANE LR
LENEHBETKARNEE  Ea
AG LB REREBEZREHE N
BEEROAMEIER - BBAN
HREB R HUX B2 IR E Al - HAE -
BR G DIRIABEAFIIRE - &,
MERATLEBANELRRA - 8
IHTEEBIRSRBRBRHEE - &7
BENBFLRIFIEE -

Internal Lecturer Team
70 0 5% A 8
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Vitality Development Scheme o [HF) T IHEHE

The Group's Shenzhen factories have devised a Vitality TEERNBERELARTBEEZEES
Development Scheme for fresh graduates. The scheme is TEI#®F N BRGNS  EEd@B=
designed with three stages of training and practice to help ARSI SR FNE B - B Bh B AP A0 B
our new recruits to quickly integrate into Regina Miracle's B AR R AL i LI E 1R
culture and acquire the skills for work. As we proceed with IHAE - BEEBMEBBEAOHE -
our business strategy, we will continue to optimize our BMEFRERLTAEEAIR B8
training scheme for new recruits to boost our development REMOERBERESENRE S

with the most appropriate driving force.

Cross-department

rotation Departmental

B5 2 P e el S
'E‘II;aF':iIl%"n;ngll HR training
camp

HRFll 4R&

Level-1 vitality Level-2 vitality Level-3 vitality
148 4EBN 1 28R HEEN S 3MRAEEN S

“Vitality” Development Scheme by Our Regina Miracle Shenzhen
EDPRII 4B IEEE
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Staff Skills Contest

The annual staff skills contest is a brand activity for the
Group to stimulate the vitality of its staff. WWe encourage our
frontline staff to participate actively in the contest, select
outstanding frontline staff and confer awards. The staff
skills contest not only helps frontline workers improve work
skills and expand growth path, but also assists our Group to
enhance technological innovation and establish harmonious
labor relations.

Staff Skills Contest
EIHEAE

On-the-job Continuing Education

The Group joins hands with external training institutions
to provide on-the-job continuing education programs to
satisfy the staff's demand for improving their academic
qualifications, help them to improve their educational level
and open the channel for their career development. Since
2013, a total of 268 employees have joined such programs,
and 78 of them have graduated and obtained a university
degree.

On-the-job Continuing Education
ERERHE

BITHREEAE
—F-ENBIREARBERAEEM
BETANMMEES - RIS —
RETHEEB2E  BRORBEEEN
—RBTYRTER - BETRERE
HE— B TIRATIEREE BRK
FBE » TBAAKEREARMAIF
11 BEBGSBRE -

FFEENE
ABTREEIYHRNESZ2FEKENE
ko FRERE TIRASUYEKTE 4T
BREERABE  AEEHEIIBE
BEAE BBAEEIERAEE
B - B2013F LA - 2B268%E TS
HIZZIBE - 78R 2 BIEMEE W ES
RER o
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Smooth Development Positions

The Group conducts scientific assessment and design for each
position in respect of internal value and market value, based
on which the remuneration incentive policies and measures
are prepared. Staff's career development is supported by
corresponding training system, and diversified promotion channels
in management, professional and technical aspects are provided.
For the purpose of narrowing the distance between superiors and
subordinates and accelerating the flow of information, Shenzhen
factories improve management efficiency, reduce management
cost and intrigue staff’'s independence, initiative and satisfaction
by streamlining organization structure.

Inner value

WEEE

R dEREREE

153 R R EE A4S
AEBEANBENTSEEWNERE &
B EAETTRIZEHEMRET - 1 55 M
BEBENER  RETHRBREERREY
EHENBER  URHBETEERFY &
EFIEEMFINZ T EERARE - BT
fErE L TARRERE - MMRERRABRE - R
B BRARERBNR T LRABTERE
FRRERERA - BPHETHE T - BEiRM
A B R o

A Key positions
A 52 ke {u

Recruitment plans

Training and
L incentive plans
RIS 2 AR T R

Alternative plans

Re-design
L= a*djiJs;t onsiti&n \
BEERGT AR ML

Position External value

E=R 1A

Position evaluation model
RS np kil

o Developing a System of Key Positions

We work on establishing a system of key positions taking
into account the overall development need of the Group,
with a view to building a systematic knowledge system and
a position competency model through the well-honed skills
of experts at key positions and providing strong support
for fast talent training and recruitment. In Fiscal 2019, we
completed the development of a system of 4 positions
and its 17 supporting courses and 33 professional in-house
trainers in Shenzhen factories. Based on the experience
of business experts, we have formed a corresponding
knowledge system to serve as a channel for new staff to
grasp work knowledge and skills, which can effectively
shorten the talent training cycle, improve training efficiency,
save recruitment and training cost, and enhance the stability
of our teams.

SNEREME

o [t RER
HEAAEENBEREETE  R#NE
FHEBREMEBERZLIIE BX
BBEREMLERNTAETR - £
RESMABE R R EMBEER -
BATHRREERBEREGSIX
Ff o 201981 F - BB & ERORYIE
@1 EE RS RAEE R ERE17M
BRI2  BBRBENIIEAINRE - R
V5 35 75 B 5K A8 5 2 B T K AR E A R B
2 AFABEBTAME —EZET
ERIB M AEMBE - A AMEE A
FTIEERS  BABERE - iR
BERIZEAA - R BB TE M o
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At the Site for the Discussion of the Key Position System
BREEVBANWRS

o Internal Promotion

The Group provides its staff with opportunities to compete
for internal positions in a fair, just and open manner. Such
competitive recruitment comprehensively assesses the
skills and quality of staff members with qualification check,
written test, practical operation and comprehensive quality
appraisal, with an aim to optimize the allocation of talents. In
Fiscal 2019, a total of 1,562 staff members were promoted
through internal competitive examination and interview, with
approximately 18% of them promoted to supervisor level or
above.

In the future, we will continue to develop the work position
system for key posts according to the strategic goals of
talent development. Besides, offline and online training
will be combined to improve the training experience and
timeliness, coupled with increasing and intensifying input
to allow our staff to adapt to the Group’s development and
social needs.

Retaining Talents

The Group values every talent and endeavors to retain talents.
We have set up the “Long-term Service Award”, with certificates
and bonus awarded to staff every five years of service, as a
gesture to thank and motivate staff members for their loyalty and
contribution. In Fiscal 2019, we conferred the Long-term Service
Award to 695 employees in total.

We timely arrange interviews with employees who have an
inclination to leave. The interview is designed to learn about their
work and living conditions, motives for departure, as well as
the possibility and conditions for stay, so as to help employees
address difficulties and retain outstanding personnel. Each month,
the general manager’s office of every business department would
conduct a staff departure review, in which the department head
reports on staff departure analysis to timely identify room for
improvement and retain talents for the Group, with the regular
internal audit also taken into account.

o  NHEFH
AEBABETREQF - QFE - AF
MRS RERS  BEERES £
2 BERRE  GAZEAFTERG
PHEAGEE TRAEEEST  TEAS
BEWENEE - 201984 - A
1,662% B TiRiBAERIEE S R AR
BEEH  EFHEI1I8%HETE
BEER A LB -

AW RPIBHEKBAST EREEB
B BEHYHREUREEUER
R WA TR EAE I
& WERJIERNEYRE - RET
i R B B R AN & 2 T IR
FRIEBRPIEIA -

AT EF
REBREETE AT BORBHAAE
£ o BRI REIRASEE] - AR FIEt B
BTHRHMEE - 8 TIRIEE moE BNi%
FRHEMES - 20198 F - HFIALLET695
#HETHRERIREEE -

HREAHBEMNET  HMYEASEYE®E
BB UERBETEMEERER - R
# o BEMRIREME RGN - MEB THE
RMEE - FREFASHEL - SFXEPR
R AETTRERR S - AP IR B ALERE
BoriRE  AEEHNREERT  REHE
RIBCEZMRE - RBRPREAT NE -
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People-oriented Protection System AXRERZA

"People-oriented” is part of the Group's value, on top of which [AABKRIEAEENEEE  RMEERE
we have established a people-oriented system. It aims to create a THERNE—EBESEARENAREERR
healthy work environment featuring respect, equality, mutual trust WIRESL TR 2T ERTERE 3

and sustainability for our staff in five aspects, from protecting BETS0EE ZFEIFTSBNLETHEN
labor rights and interests, diversity and equal employment, to HE%E - AEMMETAE—EEE - F
physical and mental health, pursuit of staff excellence and care for £ Bz BENMTFENITERE -
staff.
Staff Care Protection of Labor
ETIRE Rights and Interests
@ Advocating work-life balance, REL TR

to allow our staff to maintain
a healthy and positive
attitude and good spirit

Complying with local laws
and regulations

?EfaI{’FEEﬂE/ﬁEq?@T , HEEHMERERENR
EEI BREEG
B REJE A1 R 4F & 45 49 [ 47 Diversity and
) Equal Employment
A People-oriented 2Tt REZ(EE

Protection System

AXRERR

Striving to develop a corporate
culture of equality and diversity
and create a harmonious
and fair work enwronment

° HARNBFETES T EL -
0 @ m Pursuit of EUﬁn‘iﬁﬂxﬁ@?E’JIf’B&iﬂ

f w.. Staff Excellence Phvsical and Mental
sical an enta
SETESH !

Establishing a training system
to cater to the demand for the
strategic development of the
Company and personal growth
E:&”L\’“ B BB 2R A
BAKRFE R EIIEE R

FERE2018/19 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

Health of the Staff
BT HLREE

» Health and safety
fRREEZ 2

« Establishing diversified
and convenient
communication channels
M ZRAE
ERMEmERE
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Protection of Labor Rights and Interests

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions where the Group operates its business,
such as the “Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Law of the People’'s Republic of China on the Protection of
Minors”, the “Minimum Wage Regulations”, the “Provisions
of the State Council on Staff Working Hours” and the “Labor
Code of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam", and operates in the
principle of prohibition of forced and child labor, compliance
with the remuneration, benefits and working hours regulations.
Apart from that, we have prepared and implemented policies and
systems such as the “Employment Procedures”, the “Procedures
for Preventing Forced or Compulsory Labor”, the “Procedures
for the Prohibition of Employing Child Labor”, the "Salary
Payment System of the Company”, the “Working Hours System
of the Company”, and the "Emergency Business Handling
Agreement”, in an effort to protect the staff's legitimate rights
and interests in a practical manner. Meanwhile, the Group has
set up staff representative union and labor union in Shenzhen and
Vietnam factories for discussions on a regular basis to help staff
members understand each other, share information and establish
harmonious labor relations.

RIES T st
AEEBARET(hEARLMBELEEEXH
FEARKMBARKEAREEIXRELER
T X B 75 B 7 A kT T {4 BRF P B0 R T R
HEEHRAMBSEE)FIE L FAHERIZ MM
EHVERER - AR IERGIEE) - ZKIFEEA
BT  NEFMERMRE - F8 LEHH
MERRA - HIEX BRI F X ER
RERBH LB IEFXELERETZRF)
(RATEXNHEX AR TR HIEXERE
BHRIE W) FERLHE - MO BEREET
VEIERE o RIF - ASKEERY B
EORRIBTIRRAGRTE - EHIAEL
BETE#X HPEIHEHEER DEELER
FERRUAN S BIRIE -

Regular Discussions and Face-to-Face Meetings with the Staff by the Labor Union
ITEEHEXENETEAXKRE
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Prohibition of Forced Labor

The Group forbids involuntary or forced labor, including but
not limited to pledging contracts and forcing others to work;
and all personnel are forbidden to force staff in any manner
or unnecessarily strict staff's freedom to act. We adopt direct
recruitment and direct salary payment to ensure that labor
relations and capital transactions take place with no involvement
of third parties. We specify both parties’ intentions and obligations
by entering into the “Employment contract for Factories Staff”
on a voluntary and equitable basis at the start of the employment.
We have also employed a variety of channels, such as special
meetings, special training, posting factory regulations, email or
broadcast to ensure that all members of the staff are properly
informed of relevant policies, work on a voluntary basis, and enjoy
freedom within the legal framework and stay free from any form
of oppression. During the reporting period, the Group did not
occur any case of forced labor.

Prohibition of Child Labor

The Group forbids recruiting child labor. All applicants shall hold
their legal ID cards to go through relevant procedures to ensure
that they have reached the legal working age. A photocopy of
the staff's ID card and recent photo shall be kept in their archive.
Management staff and average employees who breach this policy
shall be subject to disciplinary action in accordance with relevant
regulations. During the reporting period, the Group did not occur
any case of child labor.

Compliance with Remuneration and Welfare Regulations

The Group provides the staff with reasonable remuneration and
welfare under the law of the place where it operates its business,
and adheres to the principle of distribution according to work.
We manage our staff's working hours through a system, to
ensure compliance with the Company’s regulations and accurate
recording. Salary is calculated under an integrated working
hour system, with the basic salary not lower than the standard
minimum wage in the place of our business operations to ensure
that the staff’s basic needs are met. Overtime pay and allowance
are provided based on the actual working hours and performance
of individual staff. We contribute to social insurance and provident
fund for our staff in the place of business operations as required,
and ensure that our staff are entitled leaves such as paid annual
leave, martial leave, maternity leave, work-related injury leave
and sick leave. When unexpected factors emerges which result
in work suspension, we will pay salary for such work suspension
based on the normal work standard of the day concerned.
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In Fiscal 2019, we made payroll structural adjustment of certain
positions in accordance with position value assessment and
industry payroll survey report to maintain our salary and welfare
at a competitive level on the market, with the subsidy system
optimized to standardize the subsidy types and review procedures.
Additionally, Regina Miracle International (Vietnam) Limited won
the 2018 Outstanding Contribution Award of the Year by the
National Social Security Bureau of Viethnam to commend our
contributions to the implementation of work on social insurance,
making us the only enterprise with such an exceptional honor in
Hai Phong.
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Regina Miracle Conferred with the 2018 Outstanding Contribution Award of the Year by the National Social Security Bureau of
Vietnam, which is the only enterprise awarded with such an exceptional honour in Hai Phong
BEERTRREHEDIRER2018FFERHERE | RIGHHE—BUKRKNEE

Diversity and Equal Employment

Under the principle of prohibiting discrimination, the Group has
policies and regulations such as the “Recruitment Procedures”
and the "Anti-Discrimination Procedures” in place, in an effort to
develop a corporate culture of equality and diversity and to create
a harmonious and fair work environment.

In Regina Miracle, staff employment, remuneration, promotion
and dismissal are subject to work capability, regardless personal
traits or beliefs such as gender, race, religion, political conviction as
well as social or ethnic background. We provide open and equal
employment opportunities and welfare, conduct recruitment
and promotion appraisal with robust transparency in plans,
requirements and positions as well as impartial standard, and
observe the principle of avoiding conflict of interest. We adopt the
policy of equal pay on equal work. Our Vietnam factory assesses
the level of hourly rates on a quarter basis and monthly rates on
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a half-year basis. We also provides regular Chinese-Vietnamese
culture training for our staff engaged in cross-cultural work, to
promote cultural integration and understanding. All our policies are
available in both Chinese and Vietnamese. Furthermore, we forbid
imposing mandatory pregnancy tests as an employment term
or infringing upon their rights by increasing the pregnant staff’s
workload or disapproving them from taking medical leave.

Our gender ratio stands at 4:6, with female staff accounting for
59% of our senior management.

Mainland Staff Hong Kong Staff

FEAE T ERMWERT
27%
530/0 47(y°
73%
m Male Female a Male Female
Bt pega B pegii

Physical and Mental Health of the Staff

The Group strictly abides by laws and regulations in the place
of operation such as the “Constitution of the People’s Republic
of China"”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases”, the “Fire
Control Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Regulations
on Factory Safety and Sanitation”, the “Law of occupational
safety and hygiene of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam”,
the “Vietnam's circular on national Technical Regulation on
Microclimate” and the “Vietnam'’s circular on national Technical
Regulation on Noise”. We execute the principle of meeting
health and safety standards, prohibiting harassment or abuse
and ensuring freedom of association and collective negotiation,
with policies and regulations in place such as the “Environmental
Safety and Health Policies”, the “Regulations on Staff Health
Management”, the “Procedures on Preventing Harassment and
Abuse” and the “Staff Manual” to ensure that our staff work and
live in a healthy and safe environment, receive care and respect
and enjoy the freedom of association and labor negotiation.
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Meeting Health and Safety Standards

The Group maintains the occupational health and safety principles
of "safety first, compliance with disciplines and regulations,
prevention-centered, all-staff engagement and ongoing
improvement”, with the general goal of “zero major accidents
such as severe injury, fatality, explosion, fire and leak of hazardous
chemical substances; higher safety awareness among the staff,
and safety training for all staff"”.

In Fiscal 2019, no work-related fatality was recorded by in the
Group, while 69 injured staff was recorded, accounting for 0.17%
of the total number of employees, and the average number of
working days lost per employee due to work-related injuries is
23 days. After the occurrence of work-related injury, we actively
responded in strict accordance with the “Emergency Rescue
Procedure” and the “Procedure for Handling Work-related
Injuries” to ensure proper rescue and treatment was given to
the injured staff; such work-related injuries were also identified
and verified subsequently, to ensure the salary, benefits and
time of recovery and protect their legitimate rights and interests
of the injured staff. We will also strengthen staff safety training
and enhance staff's awareness of occupational safety so as to
minimize the possibility of work-related accidents.

o Establishment of Safety Standardization

The Group has established a safety management system
and conducts regular risk assessment to minimize potential
risks as our responsibility to provide a healthy and safe
environment for the staff. All factories in Shenzhen and
Vietnam under the Group have been rewarded with the
certification of OHSAS 18001 occupational health and
safety management system, among which, Regina Miracle
Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Limited and Regina Miracle
(Shenzhen) Limited have passed the national level-2 work
safety standardization certification in 2018.

Regina Miracle (Shenzhen) Limited f o\‘ Regina Miracle '?:hm":’f:::' f’“\\
: z (Subsidiary of Regina Miracle 0
e = §68 International (Group) Ltd.} w: SGS
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OHSAS 18001:2007

B AT R R R X AR X A R E YA IR E RN RICK B

S CAGRE XA L XA IR X SR AEXCRFKB]

Shihen

CERTIFICATE

REEFHRREZRE
et

NERFRLTEIRE
AEBERFIZE2E— BLTE BHA
T 2E2H . BENEINBEERELED
B ATEE ST - BIF - AL Bfbaitt
BESAFNTELE  MRETILEEH
ETEERBEIIRRERER -

201981 &F - AEEBEARHBERIITEW -
B - HF8R69R15EE - B THARG
tE&0.17% - MAHREITEEARTEREF
HR2IK - THEEMHEER - RMIESEER
PR &R P X TSR IR R ) IR F T iR e
Y BRI IBEIGSIEZENE  REL
HRETIGERAT ZBTHRESH  REX
TEETHHFMEFFIRE AR - 4
HEF#ED - AT gNE 8 T2&25
REREIBELE2ES  WAEILESHSE
HHIAIRE ©

o LRIZENER
AEBERYLEEEER  THE
TREBFEAZREREEERE - I
BIHAEERMABE TIRMEEE 22
HIRBREENET - AEBTBFYI
MR 2 2 TR S OHSAS 18001
BERREL2EEERRE  EPE
RELRARCEYN)ER AT FRGEL
EAXCERIN)BRARN2018F B S
FRBR — L2 EEEZ -

2B CRERE XA X R XA IR XAEIRE X AN XY

=

bR ARG X

ShinEs:
~ . -~

CERTIFICATE

7]
3
)
o
&
i
1
£l
&
&l
4
il
-
P
%
)
&
X
g
B

BEEFEAEE R
R

R XA X XX R EIGR EX B XA X AR XX

OHSAS 18001 and China National Level-2 Work Safety Standardization Certificate
OHSAS 18001 FEER — MR 2FELEBE

92

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiBIFR(ZER)ERAA



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

We have established a robust safety management structure
which enables responsibility to be assumed from senior
management to workshop teams level by level. Every
factory branch has set up its own safety emergency team
to cope with emergencies and perform safety inspection
and management for the factory branch, and designated
the security department to coordinate and oversee the
operation of the safety management system. We actively
implement the workshop safety responsibility system and
the reward and punishment system for production safety,
with safety production responsibility statements signed at
every level across the functional units and safety appraisal
strictly executed on a monthly, quarterly and yearly basis.
We have also standardized safety warnings and operational
environment where operation shall take place strictly
according to regulations with no improper commands and
operation or breach of labor disciplines. On top of that, we
have promoted safety culture on a comprehensive scale.
Specifically, we deliver safety culture information to the
staff and grow their sense of production safety via an array
of approaches such as three-level pre-work safety education
training and appraisal, certification for special operation
staff, “Production Safety Month”, safety arts performance
as well as online and offline promotion. In Fiscal 2019, the
Group provided a total of 81,772 hours of health and safety
training.
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Protecting Occupational Health

To protect the staff's occupational health, our Group
conducts factory-wide testing on occupational hazards
such as noise, dust and chemicals and announces its
results every two years. In Fiscal 2019, our sanding room
and ventilation system of Shenzhen factories underwent
a comprehensive upgrade to reduce dust generation and
ensure that our environment meets the production safety
standards of the location where we operate. \We provide our
employees with personal protective equipment and conduct
routine inspections each week on whether they wear it
properly. We conduct regular occupational and hazardous
risk assessment. In respect of positions with potential risks,
occupational health examination is provided for employees
before they enter, transfer or leave the positions to
proactively prevent the occurrence of occupational disease.

1,638

employees received occupational
health examination in our
Shenzhen factories
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1,929

long service employees of the Group
received welfare health
examination
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Staff Health Examination
BTER

Great attention is paid to the sanitation of the staff canteen.
We outsource the staff canteen to qualified suppliers, assign
designated personnel to supervise and inspect the suppliers
on aspects such as environment conditions, material supply
channels, food supply and tableware disinfection, and
provide pure water for all the factory staff free of charge.
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In December 2018, our Shenzhen factories saw the opening of
its health service center, as part of the new initiatives to provide
our employees with more convenient, faster and more affordable
medical service.
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Health Service Center of Shenzhen Factory
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Furthermore, we have set up the “Window of Heart” studio in
our Shenzhen factories where the working group of the Employee
Assistance Program (“EAP"), which comprises our employees
with national psychological consultant qualification, provides
professional psychological consultation and training for other
employees, helps them address the psychological problems
caused by work pressure and interpersonal relationship, and
improve their well-being.

In 2018, the labor union of our Vietnam factory and Hai Phong
Military Hospital hosted 10 information sessions where over 2,000
female employees were trained on knowledge about female
diseases and how to take care of their body.
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Training on knowledge about Female Disease and Health Care
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Fire Safety and Emergency Response

The Group takes factory safety seriously, especially the
personal safety of employees. Our Shenzhen factories
have 100 full-time security staff, one full-time fire brigade
and two fire-fighting trucks, which ensures that we can
respond to emergencies timely and provide all-rounded
safety protection for our employees. In order to effectively
prevent fire and safety accidents, we have prepared “The
Emergency Plan on Fire Accidents and Natural Disasters”
in which the emergency responsibility and procedure of
each department are set out clearly. Each year, we organize
emergency drills on fire safety, elevator accidents and
industrial accidents to improve the emergency response
capability of our employees. In Fiscal 2019, we organized a
total of 4 fire drills for all the staff, in a bid to enhance our
employees’ emergency response capability continuously.
Vietnam factories also complied with the “Law on fire
prevention and fighting of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam”
and “Decree on compulsory fire and explosion insurance”,
and organized 7 fire drills in Fiscal 2019.

Fire Engines
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Prohibiting Harassment or Abuse

Our Group is well aware that the employer must provide a work
environment free of harassment, abuse or physical punishment
in any form and respect the dignity of employees. Apart from
stipulating in our policy and system that no one shall harass
and insult others physically, mentally or orally, we also sign a
statement with our management staff of all levels in special
meetings and the special trainings for management personnel,
to ensure that they understand this policy. All the staff can report
any breach of the policy through complaint procedures, and upon
verification, the personnel concerned shall receive corresponding
disciplinary punishment.

In Fiscal 2019, Vietnam factories arranged labor union and staff
representatives to attend a number of seminars on protecting
women and preventing sexual harassment that are organized by
the public institutions of locations where we operate. At such
seminars, we actively discussed workplace sexual harassment
and its impact on female employees, and helped them learn to
protect themselves.

R dEREREE

BB B ERF

AEBERPREIVARE BT FEEAT
%R - EGFRBRERNTIERE 88
BTHEE - RFRRAERRREIERREE
AATSEMAETHE  DEHAEED
RENEEN  BAEEFBEEZMEEA
BEBEEJIMESRERABRERN - #
REBERRE —BOR - $HEMAERE BX
TR MMBABHREBRNKFETFHR
ERBENEBABSXTIERNLEED

2019015 - MEREZXNEIGME THREK
2B & BT A SRR AR 48 00 20 1R
Pri- R B EAE  BEREN TIESAT
MEREHMBEMEELTUEETHTE  YEY
ZHETESREED -

Labor Union of Vietnam Factory Attending the Seminars
on “Improving the Reputation of Women and Prohibiting Sexual Harassment” and “Preventing Sexual Harassment”
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Protecting Freedom of Association and Collective Negotiation

Our Group recognizes and respects employees’ freedom of
association and collective labor negotiation, and actively promotes
work with dignity. At the same time, we continue to improve
the democratic management system for employees and open a
variety of communication channels to fully stimulate employees’
enthusiasm and engagement, and enhance employees’

IRIEASH B 1 R B REAKH)
AREBRAAWEE B THETRETEERA
MEBH  BRESHEETHENER - FE -
BMBEEEIRIEERE  RARZE
o) R én‘%é TS FHEE THEEIEMS
HE - BRERXRREETNMIEE 2
HENEEE RABTHEE -

satisfaction by protecting their rights to know, to participate and

to supervise through two-way communication.

Staff Representative Congress (Shenzhen and Vietnam Factories)
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Suggestion boxes
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Shenzhen and Vietnam Factories %3l & #i55  &

that suggestions can be collected from the staff.

Suggestion boxes are set up in each workshop and dorms as a way to ensure
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Intranet PB4 Weibo # 18 TikTok 5213 48
Shenzhen and Vietham Shenzhen Factory Shenzhen Factory
Factories YK E Y E
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All staff can post Regina Miracle’s Weibo
and read posts at account was set up in 2015,
Regina Miracle’s Intranet, to realize with continuous updates to
information sharing keep abreast of the times

Use of the smart phones’ videos
platform aims to attract more
staff to share their experience
about Regina Miracle
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HR Managers Open Day
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Shenzhen Factory JZ&3I &

Each Tuesday is the “HR Managers Open Day” when
staff can have one-on-one communication with the
HR managers over any doubts about the Company’s
policies, work or other issues
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Senior Management’s Open Day
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“Senior Management’s Open Day” is held every two
months, which allows employees and senior
management to communicate and express their ideas.
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“Contact Me If You Need Help”
[NFEER)  BFHER]

Every workshop can be found with posters with the
above words as well as the contact information and
head portraits of the workshop head, to prevent the
staff from feeling helpless when they encounter dificulties
BELRFENAREHETABELRX
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General Manager’s Mailbox

Vietnam Factory # & & &

If employees have any comments and suggestions,
they can submit their views directly to the General
Manager through the “General Manager’s mailbox”.
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Various Communication Channels
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In June 2018, we launched the preparation for a staff complaints
platform and the staff satisfaction survey at the same time. Both
human rights projects further reflect our great attention to staff
satisfaction, as we seek to use the staff complaints platform
to generate professional analysis reports to help us address
the issues of concern to the staff and enhance their sense of
belonging.
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Pursuing Staff Excellence

The Group has the “Performance Appraisal Management
System” in place, to comprehensively assess the work
performance of its staff in the principle of objectivity and fairness
and based on performance targets. We stress on performance-
related communication, and require department heads to arrange
performance-related interviews to timely understand the staff’s
difficulties at work and assist them to improve work approaches,
performance and income.

In Fiscal 2019, we worked to upgrade our performance
management system and improve pertinence of performance
appraisal by optimizing personal KPIs. Meanwhile, we proceeded
with our differentiated appraisal based on compulsory ratios
and the combined appraisal of production, technology and
quality management teams, to widen the bonus gap, bolster
the application of performance results, and peg job promotion
and salary adjustment to performance results and enhance the
stimulation effect of appraisals. In addition, we made great efforts
to advocate the concept of performance by posting articles about
performance on our intranet, to further put the performance
management system into practice.
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At the Site of Communication in Human Rights Projects
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Staff Care
The Group advocates work-life balance and takes the initiative to
help its staff maintain a healthy, positive attitude and good spirit.

o Concerns for the Staff and Their Families

The Group cares for female staff, and related decision and
action are considered from the female perspective. The
Group is committed to allowing all female staff to enjoy
pregnancy and lactation benefits as provided by the local
laws of the place where we operate our business. We
provide breastfeeding rooms for female staff and supporting
any activities related to staff health, especially those relating
to the health of female staff.
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Breastfeeding Rooms
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We set up “Factory Open Days” in Shenzhen and Vietnam
factories respectively and invite the family members of
excellent employees to visit such that they understand our
work environment and corporate development and the common
development of two “families”.

R dEREREE
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Factory Open Day
IRBMA

e Staff Recreation Area
The Group has set up recreation areas in Shenzhen factories
for its staff where they can enjoy their spare time after work
or relax through workouts. Our Regina Miracle Library also
offers a wide range of books, creating the condition for staff
members to learn and improve themselves.

B T 744 =
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Staff Recreation Area and Regina Miracle Library

BIFELENEL REEE

FFIR4E2018/19 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 101



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE > HERERRSE

o Interest Classes o LRI

In Fiscal 2019, the Group set up more interest classes in 2019815 - AEERYIKRE B TH
Shenzhen factories for employees. Every week, they can BRTEZEBI - GEE THAI AR
sign up for classes on Tai Chi, painting, flower arrangement B2MARER - 85 - B BEESH
and dancing. Our Vietnam factory, in particular, organized its H-HMEREEFIAREEINE
staff to attend motorbike-driving classes at the local driving BRESRAME T2 ME tE B EI A+
training center to satisfy their actual demand. By introducing DEYEEFEE B BLIT o B @Bl AN
such external resources, we have honored our commitment HER  HBBRMREEIHEAR TS
to ensuring work-life balance for employees. B THERNAE R #GE ©

Interest Classes

BB YE
e Competitions o EIRIE
The Group organized various sports events and activities, AEBARFAEZERALBEME
such as basketball and table tennis matches as well as fun &) - MNEIRLEE - EELE - B
games to enrich the life of staff during their spare time. BEEE  DEETIRESRES -

Competitions
BT
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Education Subsidy for Children

In order to help the children of our staff to receive better
education, the Shenzhen factory provides children’s
education subsidies for long service employees. As long
as an employee at any position work for 10 years in Regina
Miracle, the children of the employee who are in high school
or above are entitled to an annual subsidy of RMB2,500 to
RMB15,000. Since its establishment in 2006, our education
subsidies have supported a total of 1,908 children of our
employees, with the accumulated subsidy exceeding
RMB6.5 million.

Since 2016, Vietnam Factories have been offering annual
bonuses to the children of employees who have achieved
outstanding results. In Fiscal 2019, Vietnam Factory issued
bonus, in an amount approximately equal to HK$93,000 to
2,472 outstanding children of employees, among which 50
of them received county-level honors, 32 of them gained
honors at municipal level and 2 won national-level honors.

o

R dEREREE
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Award Ceremony for Outstanding Children of Employees
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e Festival Greetings o FHMEIR
On every festival or joyous event, the Group will always BEEHERE  AEEEAETHM
organize a gathering for the staff, provide them with festival g BHEABEN BHEIEE
benefits, and celebrate the festivals with them. g1R -

The Company and the Union distributed calendar to The Company and the Union presented mooncakes to
all employees in New Year. all factory employees on Mid-Autumn Festival.
FESARARIGHESMASXHE FREAFARIEHREBRASEAS

The Union presented gifts to the children of
employees on Children’s Day
A—REHISHRATAENNREE
Festival Benefits
BHAEER
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o Poverty Alleviation

We actively organized the staff to donate for co-workers
who suffered from diseases or accidents, to help them get
through difficulties. Representatives are also assigned to
visit such employees with greetings and wishes, bringing
care to them. In addition, we take the initiative to help the
poor employees. In Fiscal 2019, we utilized our funds to
build houses for 5 employees in extreme poverty, giving
them stable residence for life and work.

R dEREREE

o KEPEA
BMEGAZE T AEBREIEIN
EWHEERER Bt MEEH
M WRRERFEEMEM  BRET&
FRE o AN BRPIETBHEKERE
T - 201984 F Eh LS B 175 854 R ik
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The Employee who received support and his house

ZEBETANMNETF

JOINT SUCCESS WITH PARTNERS

As the world's largest intimate wear manufacturer, the Group
leverages its leading seamless clothing technology as well as
continuous innovation of production craftsmanship, to consistently
gain recognition from international brands. Committed to our
mission of “creating first-class products, delivering industry value
and fulfilling social responsibility”, the Group strictly controls
product quality and safety, focuses on technical R&D and
innovation, and pays attention to supply chain environment and
social risks as well as obligation performance, all in a bid to deliver
mutual benefit and joint success with its partners.

Creating Values for Customers

Creating value for customers is a constant pursuit of our Group.
We keep ramping up our production capacity and efficiency to
cope with the order demands from major brand partners. We
are active in promoting information-based production automation
models to boost production management and efficiency. Our
years of commitment to design and manufacturing innovation
and continuous research on high-tech innovative craftsmanship
enabled us to forge solid relations with our existing and new
brand partners that are famous around the globe. “Quality, Speed,
Innovation, Sustainability” serve as our consistent strategies to
attain steady business growth.

HEFRHEFAR

ERERZANIFAXREER  ARER
RASENBRAEREMMSEANEET
g TERSERMERR o WPIUATANE—
mEm - BRITREE BITHEEEIAE
i BEEREERLE  ERRIMHHEE
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REFRIEER
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Quality First

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions where we operate our business, such as the
“Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the "“Law
of the People’'s Republic of China on Protecting Consumer Rights
and Interests”, the “Vietnam Law on product and goods quality”
and the “Vietnam Law on protection of consumers’ rights”. In
addition, we have established our quality management system
and keep improving it, to fully guide and control product quality.
We have prepared and implemented policies and mechanisms
such as the “Determination Process of Material Plans”, the
“Internal Flow and Control Procedure for Materials and Products”,
the “Product Inspection Standard” and the “"Management
Standard for Product Inspection”, to provide multiple layers
of assurance for the quality of materials and finished goods
throughout the production process. Other than that, we have
been active in applying for international quality management
system certification. Our Regina Miracle (Shenzhen) Limited has
obtained the ISO 9001 quality management system certification
for its design and manufacturing processes of intimate wear
mold cups and the textile parts for electronic products. In Fiscal
2019, we encouraged and helped over 20 employees to obtain
certificates from third-party inspection institutions, which further
intensified the penetration of quality control concepts.

ISO 9001:2015

Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Limited

HVIRARKRCRIDBRAF

Intimate wear mold cups and the
textile parts for electronic products

RREMEE F E mab S EaR

Quality Management System
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Target-oriented Quality Supervision and Inspection

The Group sets up and adjusts production goals according
to the safe quality standard of the place where it operates
its business as well as the specific requirements of its
partners. For instance, for a specific brand partner, we set
our 2019 quality goal as “Superior Quality”, based on which
we established related quality KPIs covering the two major
dimensions respectively, namely the factories and the
market.

Guided by quality objectives, we conduct routine inspection
on production lines to identify defective products and
offer timely supervision for improvement. As for the
manufacturing of new products, we strictly executes
examination procedures to ensure that the quality and
specifications of new products are in line with design and
manufacturing standards. In Fiscal 2019, we introduced
the RFID system (a packaging and scanning system). Its
scanning and testing lead to 100% assurance of quality and
safety of production package.

Quality risk assessment process

The Group implements quality risk and safety review by
defining the risk assessment mechanism and standardizing
the risk assessment process. In the R&D stage, our
technology and quality control team for bulk production
participates in the feasibility assessment of product quality
and safety, to avoid abnormalities during the production
process. In the production stage, our R&D team keeps
tracing to ensure that the initial goal of product design is
smoothly achieved as well as materials are more effectively
applied. After the delivery of finished goods, should
any quality and safety issue arise, the departments and
management concerned would immediately take measures,
SO as to ensure that the product issue is handled properly
and customers’ rights and the Group's reputation are
protected.

FEHE

R dEREREE
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o Internal Quality Appraisal

The Group implements a comprehensive internal review
system throughout the manufacturing process. Through a
combination of monthly irregular internal review and cross
review, the Group seeks to review the execution of each
manufacturing process and each part, and promote the
standardization of the production process. At the same
time, we optimize our production process by identifying
inadequacies during internal interview continuously, so as
to keep improving product quality during the manufacturing
process.

In Fiscal 2019, we convened the annual quality appraisal
meeting where our conclusion and appraisal covered six
aspects, namely attainment of quality goals, compliance
of process results as well as product quality and safety,
evaluation on customers satisfaction, effectiveness/
suitability/adequacy of quality management, rectification and
prevention measures and continuous improvement system,
and the execution results of the internal review process.
At the meeting, we also sorted out our performance and
opportunities in relation to quality and safety management
work, to assure the effective operation of our quality and
safety management system.

Leading Speed

The changing trade conditions and market requirements have
resulted in increasing demand for fast turnaround of orders on the
part of brand partners, which presents a challenge for suppliers.
However, since its listing, the Group has been working to
expand its production facilities in Vietnam, proactively developing
innovative craftsmanship during the technical R&D stage to realize
automated production, and never cease to update its internal
process arrangement system. As a result, we are able to plan a
supply chain that satisfies customer demand to coordinate with
and adapt to the changing industry trends and the rapid pace of
our brand partners.
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We adopt the IDM (Innovative Design and Manufacturing) model
to build a complete supply chain service system starting from
market demand survey and covering product development,
production technology R&D and innovation, production
organization, logistics and distribution. More than 55.4% of our
30,086 Vietnamese employees are skilled frontline workers with
more than one year of work experience. This serves as robust
assurance for production efficiency for us who have an absolute
advantage in production capacity in Vietnam.

In the meantime, we are the earliest industry player to apply the
SAP system. Based on SAP, we self-developed and introduced
a number of support systems to integrate all business functions,
which accelerates information flow, improves response speed
and accuracy, and liberates labor force to enhance efficiency.

Innovation and Breakthrough

The Group is committed to developing multi-functional products
so that they deliver the comfort, functionality and value
proposition of intimate wear and functional sportswear. We have
adopted emerging materials, introduced new equipment and
developed innovative technologies independently to improve
production models to meet the needs of quality and delivery of
different order types.

Since 2018, we have been vigorously promoting the
Manufacturing Excellence (ME) model, with designated
departments responsible for planning, coordinating and promoting
innovative measures to raise efficiency so that superior
manufacturing can be delivered through craftsmanship and
technical innovation. In Fiscal 2019, our priority is to promote on-
site improvement projects, such as efficient mass production of
R&D products, monitoring capacity of the FR system, operation
simplification and efficiency improvement and the application and
popularization of excellent methods.

R dEREREE
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Regina Miracle's seamless garment technology, composed of
computer mold making, hot-pressed molding and seamless
bonding, has shaped the core advantage for us to gain customers
and expand product categories. Our approximately 3% sales
spent on R&D each year in the past has enabled us to emerge
from many outstanding manufacturers and demonstrate our
strong support for continuous innovation.

We strictly comply with the laws and regulations of the countries
and regions where we operate our business, including “GB/T
29490-2013 Management Standards for the Intellectual Property
('IP") of Enterprises”, the “Patent Law of the People’s Republic
of China"”, and the"”Vietnam Law on Intellectual Property”
and has formulated and implemented our own policies and
procedures such as the “IP Manual” and the “Brand Safety
Manual”. Committed to “scientific management, meticulous
design, dedicated service, proactive innovation and continuous
improvement”, we implement the I[P management system and
strictly guard against brand safety accidents such as theft, loss,
illegal entry and information leakage. The Group effectively
operates and controls the acquisition, maintenance, application
and protection of brand interests such as IP, trade secrets and
technology secrets. We have a national laboratory and a R&D
team of over 1,000 members. As of 31 March 2019, we had a
total of 77 valid patents.
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Protect the Legitimate Rights and Interests of Customers

The Group cherishes its business relationship with customers
and strives to fulfill its commitments to protect the legitimate
rights and interests of its customers. We pay special attention
to the brands partners’ requirements on the performance of
environmental and social responsibilities of suppliers, practice the
concepts of environmental protection, compliance operation and
transparent disclosure, and actively cooperate with customers to
inspect the factory and build a sustainable industrial chain with
customers.

We are highly attentive to protecting the R&D results and brand
information of our customers, endeavoring to protect their
legitimate rights and interests and establish a good reputation for
both the factory and the Company. In order to prevent leaking
the R&D results of customers, we have imposed restrictions on
access to important R&D workshops and prohibited our staff from
carrying mobile phones to or taking pictures in such workshops.
We would timely destroy the material that contains customer
information and excessive production materials printed with
the customer’s brand logo. We also enter into confidentiality
agreements with our staff, coupled with regular dissemination
of knowledge on customer information security and protection.
Such efforts aim to raise the awareness and vigilance of customer
information protection among the staff and serve as concrete
action to protect such information.

In order to improve customers’ satisfaction, we continue to
improve our R&D capabilities, delivery speed and rework ratio.
We proactively respond to customers’ KPI requirements for
suppliers by providing targeted training on the operation of
customer-specified systems, optimizing information systems
and strengthening communication with suppliers. In Fiscal 2019,
we won the title of Supplier Top Player from a well-known brand
partner.

We have formulated and implemented policies and regulations
such as the “Customer Service and Complaint Management”,
together with various channels such as phone call and email
to timely collect and analyze customer suggestions and advice
and provide feedback accordingly. All customer complaints are
recorded by us, with statistical analysis carried out each month
and rectification plans prepared and executed, all in a bid to meet
customer demand and raise customer satisfaction.
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Strict Selection of Suppliers

The Group’s suppliers principally provide us with fabrics, foam,
production materials and supplementary packaging materials.
To ensure product quality and safety, we have a strict supplier
admission and assessment mechanism in place, coupled with
a hierarchical management and renewal system for qualified
suppliers. By enforcing clear and fair procedures and standards,
we effectively control the potential risks arising from supply
chains, and make progress with our suppliers while ensuring the
quality of raw material.

Supplier Admission

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions of its business operations, such as the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on Tenders and Bids"” and
the "Bidding rules of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam"” and has
formulated and implemented the “Procurement and Suppliers
Admission System and Work Guidelines”, under which potential
suppliers shall undergo comprehensive admission assessment
in relation to operational qualification, product quality and price,
innovation capability and integrated management. We require
sample products from suppliers and test such samples to ensure
that they meet our requirement on product quality. We check
the documentation of such sample products, such as the quality
inspection report, the Oeko-tex Standard 100 Certificate, the
Restrict Substance Agreement and the Bluesign Standard, to
ensure that the products comply with the qualification standards
of the operation place, customers and Regina Miracle. Moreover,
we started to extend our research to the study of price in the
upstream market, to elevate our selection effect. Suppliers who
pass the admission assessment become our qualified suppliers
and obtain the qualification to supply subsequently.

Supplier Supervision

The procurement department of our Group regularly organizes
the departments for R&D and quality management to assess the
suppliers on a monthly and quarterly basis. Suppliers are scored
in terms of quality, delivery punctuality, quantity reliability, service
performance and R&D capability, which will be collated to form
a supplier assessment report. Based on the score, excellent
suppliers will receive more orders from us, whereas average
performers will be placed under guidance and supervision and the
unqualified ones will be eliminated.

Developing along with Suppliers

The Group actively maintains friendly partnership with its
suppliers. We also regard ourselves as a transitional hub in the
supply chain, explore new R&D directions with our suppliers
according to clients’ requirements, product market survey and
industry trends, and guide the clients to align their production
with customer demand to attain joint development and mutual
benefits.
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Building a Clean Supply Chain with Partners

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions of its operations, such as the “Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Interim Provisions on Prohibiting Commercial Bribery” and the
“Anti-Corruption Law of the Socialist Republic of Vietham” and
has formulated and implemented the “Anti-Corruption and Anti-
Bribery Control Procedure”. With “law-abiding, honesty and
quality service"” as its core, the Group has adopted the principle
of prevention and supervision to guard against bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering. The "Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery
Control Procedure” applies to the economic activities, such as
material purchasing, outsourcing, facility engineering, business
sales, equipment purchasing and maintenance, quality supervision
and the management process of people, money and goods within
the Group, as well as all clients, suppliers, service providers and
contractors who have business dealings with the Group. We work
to sign the "“Anti-Bribery/Anti-Corruption Commitment Letter”
with the above positions and units to ensure the governance of
the commercial bribery commitment system, guide all parties to
act according to law, be honest and trustworthy, strictly follow the
principle of fair competition, and consciously resist any corruption
in all its forms.

The Group has formed its discipline inspection team as the
supervisory body in charge of operations compliance and anti-
corruption, to exercise the duties of discipline inspection and
supervision according to law, supervise and manage the clean
practice of those who work at key positions and sections. The
team is also responsible for the publicity and education of clean
conduct among staff members, to boost their alertness to
corruption incidents. These efforts aim to cultivate a good ethos
of anti-corruption throughout the Group, to protect the good
image of Regina Miracle.

In addition, the Group also has formulated the “Staff Complaint
and Reporting Procedure”, which encourages employees and
business partners to report and disclose corruption behaviors
through such channels as mailbox, email and telephone, and
maintain strict confidence during the processing of accusations
and investigations. Upon reception of such reporting, the
discipline inspection team shall launch an investigation and submit
the investigation results to the management by writing within 30
days. If the alleged personnel are found with misconduct upon
investigation, the management will impose on the personnel
involved with public notification, demotion and termination of
labor contract. Staff members who breach the law would be
handed over to public security authorities.

In Fiscal 2019, there was no concluded corruption litigation
against the Group or launched by its staff members.

R dEREREE

HEEERHARRAMERE
AEBEBRET(hEARKXMBEAREXH
FEARKMBRAEEXPEARKMBER
PEEBRFEAXERE LB RBEITANEG
TTREXEELEIZANBRESBEEL)
FELERRMEAERER - HIEL
B RIBRRBERIESIZFF) - AT FEB
5 BERBISEL - KEUEAER - =
BREBHRAIEAHER  BR - RFFILR
7 ARBHRBEENREF)EARAEE
WEBRE YRR - ZIMNT - R T2
EBHE  RIBWENGEE  CEEESK
BEEBARA - B - MIRERBERE - ARPT
BEARBEEXRBERNE, - HER - R
BE - ARE - IEBE bR SR - &
BUBEIKREE REBEHRE)  EFRA
IBARMBARES - SIBETEENE - #
BETE  BREBIAFHRFRA - 8EE
BFREEANBRRR

BPERCRAFREREZRRERNE
BEEERE  RATELRESRNER A
BEYHEEMU  ERRHABSRENENE
BEEE  URHETHRZSENHE -
KMt ETHEBEMHNEGE  £5E
ETHYRBERNERAR - #EEDR
MRS o

BESN - AP IR E I B S B TR FER IR
Py RETEH  BFEE EEEFER
#2E > ZEMETREBBRHRBBERRT
R WHERBRXIE BEFZERGEBMR
7o EERIWER  LREZTHRAZ
THIHARAEEREAZHREERE - &
KRPEERPERABREERELTR &
EESHEMHNSEABETRR  [RB B
BREBARSRE  HRERERNET -
BBR RN R -

201981 & + REAHAKBE G ASEE TR
B B BB FAARM -

FFIR4E2018/19 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 113



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R A EREREE

HARMONIOUS COEXISTENCE
WITH THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group remains committed to the new industrialization
drive characteristic of high input in science and technology, low
resource consumption and good environmental and economic
benefits, striving to build a “resource-saving and environment-
friendly” corporate brand. It resolutely implements the
environmental protection laws and regulations in the countries
and regions where it operates, continues to optimize production
equipment and craftsmanship, actively carry out cleaner
production, and develops circular economy. It also accepts
environmental inspection, supervision and management, solidly
work on the publicity of its corporate environmental information,
and consciously accepts supervision from the public and
media. As of Fiscal 2019, all factories in Shenzhen and Vietnam
under the Group have passed the ISO14001 environmental
management system certification, with Regina Miracle Intimate
Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. also passing the ISO50001 energy
management system certification and the FSC certification.
Regina Miracle International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. has won the LEED
(Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) Silver Prize for
some of its buildings and plans to apply for more green building
certifications in the coming year.

Energy Consumption

and Carbon Emissions Management

The Group attaches great importance to the management of
energy conservation and emissions reduction. It strictly abides
by the laws and regulations of the countries and regions where it
operates, such as the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Energy Conservation”, the “Management Measures for Industrial
Energy Conservation”, the “Law of the People's Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”,
the “Implementation Rules for the Carbon Emissions Quota
Management of Guangdong Province”, the “Environmental
Protection Law of the Socialist Republic of Vietham” and the
“Environmental Quality Standard of the Socialist Republic of
Vietnam"” and has formulated and implemented policies and
systems such as the “Energy Management System Document”,
the “Laboratory Operation Guidelines on Energy Conservation”,
the “Management System for Energy Conservation and
Environmental Protection” and the “Exhaust Management
System”. Furthermore, our Group conscientiously implements the
energy policy of “energy conservation, emissions reduction, green
and environmental protection” to reduce energy consumption,
improve energy efficiency, meet the auditing requirements
from the government, customers and third parties, and achieve
sustainable development.
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Energy Policy BEF 8T

1.Given the constraint of the aggregate global energy capacity and the

Energy . trend of global warming, sustainable development stands as our inevitable
Conservation  solution. - N
7 gE 1 2R RRBHARAEEBLLRFAMNNE  THEXR2RMN

DREBRRIDE ©

2.We work to reduce energy consumption and artificial CO2 emission, in-
crease energy efficiency and greening, and implement carbon sinks to
maintain the balance of our ecological environment and alleviate the
energy climate crisis of the mankind;

Emissions 2. B EALIUNFE - RS ALRAIAAE - ML - EIEHIE - MO AB Sl

@ . TREEDL - AR M P EERIRE  BRABERRIKEHE
Reduction
5 B BE 3.We adopt measures that are technically feasible, economically reason-

able as well as environmentally and socially acceptable, to reduce energy
consumption, losses and pollutant emissions and stop wastage in all as-
pects and utilize energy effectively and reasonably;
3 EREURT AT« AE L ATE BRI G A AT R - W AR AR B
BEIRENPEARIEFE A BRFT LY - $IEDRE - BREEMFBEEIR

4.We comply with energy conservation laws, regulations and standards,
G improve energy conservation management systems, formulate energy
reen conservation goals and policies, and implement target responsibilities;
g =] 4.%?”&1?@2%;&%@%& R EREEIRGIE - BIEERL B - R - WR
EEEREME

®)

5.We implement ecological civilization and education on resources and
the environment, stress on harmonious coexistence with nature,

EnViron_mental incorporate energy conservation, low carbon and green development into
Protection the publicity and education system for our core values, and enhance the
BE practice of our staff's energy conservation and emissions reduction as

well as their sense of responsibility.
5. IR MAE REEHA - BlEERTRLE  LOLER SEBR
MARARZLEBERESEHERE BT EHERFTRARBMEEES

Energy Conservation Design BrgERR At

During the construction stage of our Vietnam factories, we MR E A RZREE - RPER KRR
incorporated energy conservation and emissions reduction PEDRE M AT IR ERATH - 7208 RE - =9 -
functions into our design. Energy conservation measures have HWRRLG RIERS  EBEES - J5KE
been embedded in lighting, air conditioning, air ventilation system, BEFARELERRS S EIBRAT &R
boiler system, air compressor system, sewage treatment system BE - B IR AT 7 A BB E A ) FS SE D 3B

and building insulation, which laid the hardware foundation for BE T IR AE o
achieving economical and environmental benefits.

e Staircase lights are set to turn on/off at regular intervals;
* \Workshops can save 50% electricity by using LED lights instead of ordinary lights;

Energy ® The lighting hours of the peripheral spotlights of buildings are adjusted according to different
Conservation seasons, with half of the lights turned off after midnight. At the same time, the adoption of LED
on Lighting lights saves 50% electricity compared with ordinary spotlights.

o BEEREERR, M

o BREMALEDENRE LTRRARE - AIEAIS0%AE ¢

e ZESNERASTERRTATHRALERBER - ETHRAM—FEX - FAKRALEDE -
LB BT R ETHI50%AE -

SREAERRE
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Energy
Conservation
on the

System
ARSI RE

Energy
Conservation

Boiler System

WIERGEIRE

Energy
Conservation

Energy
Conservation
on the Sewage

System
TFKEE
RiEIRE

Energy
Conservation

on Heat
Insulation for temperature and reduce the demand for electricity.
Buildings o BEINEERRARBENEE  UHAMENRE
B AR RS

Across the factory, ventilation systems with a capacity of over 5 kilowatts are controlled by
Ventilation frequency converters, which can adjust the capacity according to demand and save 20% electricity.

2MEEBS T I ER R R RAE 6] - JRIEF AR X - AJHH20%HE »

Our boilers use the programmable logic controller ("PLC") to
on the ! i % di i
adjust steam pressure control, which can save 20% diesel consumption.

RIER AR RIZEEIEH 2 (TPLC ) RFEZEFZITE S - A& 20% RMEE -

Our air compressors use the percentage of frequency converters to adjust air pressure,

on Air . o g
Compressors which can save 20% eIeftrlmty. e
o0 ERHEETAE o EEMIKAEMBRDLAEERES - AISHE20%HE °

Vietnam Factory B uses a sewage treatment system to treat the sewage discharged from
Treatment the mold washing room and the roller washing room, with a capacity of 5 cubic meters per day.

HLE BB IR AT K R 3B R RR IR IR AU R B HEREY 5K - IR BB 5K K -

The exterior walls of buildings are covered with insulating glass to regulate the indoor

CRDRAEFR

Energy Conservation Design of Vietnam Factories

MR E R RER

We aim to reduce energy consumption by 6% each year and
continue to increase our input in energy conservation, emissions
reduction and technological transformation. In Fiscal 2019, we
installed electricity meters in our Vietnam factories by department,
to implement our target appraisal system, improve the operation
process of energy and related equipment to further the energy
conservation effect. We have also installed and implemented the
Coolnomix air-conditioning temperature balance system in our
Shenzhen factories to strengthen the coordination between air-
conditioning refrigeration and cold air usage, improve reaction
efficiency, and reduce production loss and resources waste.

BPIAREREEF TR6% S EIZ - FEMNE
ENRE R R A TR T2 E I & » 201981 4F -
BMEMEREZBIFI LR ERIAEER
ZEZE - g R R AEEREEEREN
HEMENR  ZAMEFIIREZTEER
CoolnomixZ R E FE Z4 - LANag =
BUSHER R 2 BT IR R ERE - R
DEEBIRERRE -
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. Energy Conservation and Emissions Reduction by Vietnam o 201981 FHEBE B EDRE R BETTED

Factories in Fiscal 2019

35,9423(5x 6,739%%, 24,2615 5 | 14,8765 53,5535 =

By connecting air compressors and By fixing the distance between the By covering the steam valve for
adjusting pressure settings, the air compressor and the exhaust duct, insulation and using insulating vamish
machine can stop automatically the inlet temperature of the air on the dryer casing head, the heat
when it is adequately pneumatic compressor can be reduced, which released by the dryer drum is reduced,
and save 35,942 MJ energy in can save 6,739 kWh of electricity and which can save 14,876 kWh of electricity
one year. 24,261 MJ of energy each year. and 53,553 MJ of energy each year.

BB H A% BEEEERY AR iR EE = B R EE 2 BN BB E LRAMRBNEMERING
BHRE SHRBEZARDEED | B BEEZRBEHERNERRE HERABEZ  BOMERREER

F1E - —F A H435,942 K K E BB 56,730 T RENEEHEM WEE  BR-F14876 TREHNER
BER o 24,261 EEMBREA o B M53,553 K R E HBEIRETA -

o Energy Conservation and Emissions Reduction by Shenzhen

Factories in Fiscal 2019

o 201981 FRYIRIE AIEPEE LT TED

Central Air Conditioning
Equipped with Temperature
Balance Technology

PR &SRR E RS &R

-23% 248=sms -

In August 2018, the air conditioning temperature balance system
(“temperature balance technology”) was installed in 22 wa-
ter-cooled cabinet air-conditioners in Shenzhen Factory. Tested
by the professional third party, the total average energy saving
rate is 23% after the system is put into use, proving that the
energy saving effect is remarkable. The range of ambient tem-
perature fluctuation in each workshop is basically less than 0.5¢
before improvement, indicating that the temperature in the work-
shop did not increase significantly while reducing the energy con-
sumption of air-conditioning. The total annual electricity saving is
expected to reach 248MWh, which is equal to 156 tons of carbon
dioxide emissions. Measured at an average of RIVIB1 per kilowatt
hour, It is expected to save around RMB248,000.

2018 £ 8 A, FIFE 22 SHEN KIS PREFFAZHREFE
R (NBETERE]) HER. EERB=FA ZRGHMHEE &
IR 23% ERECREEE | B ENSERRIRIREREE
EEZFF 0.5°C, RIBIER D = HEEERIRISERRE IR HIEE
A5 R 2 FEHEISiER 24.8 BTERS BRI 156 HE— Sk
HiE LRISEBARS 17Tt RRIUGHEOARE 24.8 Bit.

In the future, we will continue to intensify our management R - RIS E R R I TR E TR A
of energy consumption and carbon emissions. At our Vietnam MEEVR(E o IR - RAEHECE ik
factories, we have prepared the “Power Improvement Scheme” EEHE) - WA E = BEH T
to provide targeted solutions to the identified space to be AT NREEEE  REENERK
improved, and strived to fully implement the scheme to improve & o ERAYIRE - B2 SIECGERKKEIR
power efficiency. In the Shenzhen factories, we have prepared the REE) - SHERNREEIIE - 541K
“Energy and Water Resource Investment Scheme” to upgrade RAIRER  PRZEFLRKEESREET
the Italian hot-press molding machine, sewing machine servo TR E - A ER 2 FE4475,000 T R

FFIR4E2018/19 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 117



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R A EREREE

motors, central air conditioning chillers and other equipment. It is
expected to save 475,000 KWh of electricity and US$58,200 of
economic benefits for the whole year. We have also developed an
exhaust transformation scheme, an audit scheme for greenhouse
gas emissions and a solution for replacing the activated-carbon
treatment equipment for exhaust, all in a bid to further optimize
the effect of exhaust treatment.

Water Resources and Sewage Treatment

The Group pays attention to water resources protection and
sewage treatment, and strictly abides by the laws and regulations
of the countries and regions where it operates its business,
such as the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”, the “Water Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, the “Administrative Measures
for the Licensing of Discharging Urban Sewage into the Drainage
Network”, the “"Water resources law of the Socialist Republic
of Vietnam” and the “Waste Water Quality Control Rules”,
Policies and systems, such as the “Sewage Management Policy”
have also been formulated and implemented to save water,
strengthen the operational management of pollution treatment
equipment and ensure that the sewage discharged meets the
standard. The emission and treatment of the sewage generated
from the cleaning of mold and machine equipment is in line
with the Grade 2 standard of “DB44/26-2001 Discharge Limits
of Water Pollutants”, the “Industrial Air Emission Standards of
Vietnam” and the “Waste Water Standard of Vietnam”. In our
Shenzhen factories, the sewage produced during the silk printing
process is treated by sewage recycling and treatment equipment.
The treated sewage, of which the water quality can meet the
requirements of “GB18920-2002 Regeneration and Reuse of
Urban Sewage Standard”, will be reused for production processes
and achieve the purpose of water recycling and reuse.

In Vietnam factories, we have a variety of measures in place to
bolster water efficiency such as hydropower auditing, setting
goals of water consumption reduction, and installing water
meters by department to implement the target appraisal system.
Meanwhile, the concept of saving water and improving efficiency
is fully implemented through a number of water-used equipment
renovation initiatives which are small but significant, such as
replacement of pressed time-lapse faucet, lowering of the flush
level of toilets, set-up of infrared water sensors for flushing and
automatic stop timer of hand dryer. In Shenzhen Factories, we
work with the local government to carry out the rain-sewage
separation project, and invest in equipment and facilities
upgrading to optimize the effect of water resources withdrawal
and utilization.
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1 0,000 Cubic Meters 3 753K

Since July 2018, Shenzhen Factory D has started to gradually replace its
galvanized steel pipes with PVC water pipes to solve the corrosion-caused
leakage by the original pipes which have been in use for nearly ten years.
Besides, Shenzhen Factory D has installed an additional water sub-meter to
each plant and dormitory, which improved the inconvenience in monitoring
the water consumption of each individual plant and dormitory with only one
master water meter and supplied detailed monitoring data for water saving.
After the replacement of all the water pipes in September 2018, the factory
saved around 10,000 cubic meters of water per month in average compared .
with that before the pipe replacement.

20187 AR « RYIDKZE 18R IEFH B A /ERKEEBRABPVCKE « BA -
TREEAGAM M E RS RS -t RYIDEEE SR -
EREEMNET HKE  NETBERE —(AEKENEEBEZETRRE &

BERAKENME - BEKAKEMR T AMEESIE - 2018F9AKER

HMEBTARE - T A HEEAALEH10,0003L 75 KA Ak - I i

1 0 m3/D 753Kk

In July 2018, Shenzhen Factory D put into production of the 10m3/D circulat-
ing device for treating silk printing sewage, to further degrade or convert the
toxic and harmful substances in silk printing sewage and ensure 100% recy-
cling and reuse of the sewage produced, thus mitigating the environmental
impact of its production.

201857 A - ARYIDBRIZE 10 TR RIAENEEKRIBIEIREE - LUE— BB
FES (VAR ESMNBE TWE - HIRE £ HIEE/K100 % B4 1B IR B 7
A REEESRENTE -

—
50 m3/D 5%, X
In October 2018, Shenzhen Factory A put into production of the 50m3/D r
device for treating domestic sewage and continued to discharge domestic

sewage after meeting the standard.
20185107  RYIABKIRESOM 7K REETKEEEE - FHEEE4ES
VEIKEVERRBERL °

Actions to Save Water and Improve Efficiency in Shenzhen Factory in Fiscal 2019
201981 FRYIBE M EKBRITE
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In the future, we will continue to work on improving water
efficiency. In our Vietnam factories, we have the “Water
Consumption Improvement Plan” in place. In the year ahead, we
will continue to work on replacing water faucets with pressing-
type time-delay ones and standardizing the toilet flush water level,
coupled with addressing the leakage of our cooling tower system
and the monitoring of water meters. In our Shenzhen factory, we
have the “Investment Plan of Energy and Water Resources” in
place. We will implement the project for recycling the condensate
water of our preshrinking machines for the preshrinking processes
of some regions, and install additional water-saving devices for
the faucets of all the floors, so as to prevent water wastage and
reduce the treatment cost for water softening. This is expected to
save around 12,790 tons of water and deliver economic benefits
of US$18,300.

Waste Treatment

The Group disposes of wastes in the principle of reduction, reuse
and recycling. We strictly abide by the laws and regulations
of the countries and regions where we operate, such as the
“Rules of Guang Dong Province on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste"”, the “Guidelines for
Preparing Management Plans for Hazardous Waste Production

Units”, the “New Measures for Environmental Management
of Chemicals”, the “Hazardous Waste Management System
of Vietnam” and the “Solid Waste Management System of

Vietnam". Our policies and systems such as the “Management
System for EHS Waste" and the “Waste Treatment Policy” have
been formulated and implemented to guide and standardize the
classification and treatment process of waste, avoid wasting
resources, prevent the risk of hazardous waste pollution and
control the negative effect on the environment.

Our waste mainly includes defective goods, production waste,
recyclable waste, domestic waste and a small amount of
hazardous waste. Non-hazardous waste will be collected in
categories, the recyclable part of which will be handed over to
qualified resource regeneration companies for recycle and reuse
and the unrecyclable part will be stored together and then cleared
and treated collectively by municipal environmental and hygiene
services. Hazardous waste will be collected in categories and
then handed over to professional hazardous waste treatment
companies for harmless disposal. Improper disposal must be
eliminated so as not to cause pollution and harm.

Besides reducing environmental pollution by proper treatment of
different types of wastes, we also work on the source of the issue,
with a variety of measures to continuously improve the efficiency
and economic benefits of materials and reduce waste emission.
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awareness.

EIKIRTAR -

Save toilet paper.

R dEREREE

Wiaste classification takes place at the source, with
trainings and publicity taking place to enhance people’s

EERUERBETEROE  WRBEIEERLEE

The use of rag paper is reduced in underwear production.

EARAREEFRDRFAAER o

Paper cores are sent back to suppliers for reuse.

RATREGHEREENA -

Actions to Optimize the User Benefits of Materials in Vietnam Factories in Fiscal 2019
2019 FHERENYRERANREBLTH

In the future, we will continue to reduce waste of resources
and reduce waste emissions. At Vietnam factories, we have the
Waste Improvement Scheme in place, with reuse of white paper
for packaging and reuse of semi-finished consignment cardboards
to be promoted in the coming year. At Shenzhen factories, we
plan to intensify the implementation of double-sided printing of
office paper and the electronic signing of payroll, optimize material
consumptions, and effectively reduce the material usage and the
amount of waste generated through replacing cut-fabric cloth of
products with a combined marker manufacturing method.

AR BAEEERRRDERRE - RE
REEYHEAM T - M AMER - RIS H
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Environmental Protection and Natural Resources

With high ethical standards in place, the Group is committed to
promoting the sustainable development of corporate economy
and society by minimizing the impacts on the natural environment
by its production and operation activities, in a bid to protect the
existing environment and leave abundant social resources and
beautiful earth scenery for future generations. We undertake
to maintain our environmental credit, adhere to the concept of
honesty and integrity throughout our production and operation
activities, continue to strengthen environmental management
and resolutely resist behaviors that may have a material
adverse impact on the environment while pursuing business
development. We firmly develop environmental awareness, carry
out environmental publicity and education, advocate scientific
development concept and strengthen corporate culture, earnestly
shouldering the social responsibility for environmental protection.

In daily production and life, we post environmental labels to
remind employees of saving energy and reducing emissions,
creating a positive atmosphere for environmental protection in the
work that needs only little effort. We regularly maintain and repair
office supplies to extend their service life and avoid unnecessary
wastes. We provide various training and “Clear Your Plate”
campaign to boost our employees’ perception of green concept.
We encourage employees to propose environmentally-friendly
ideas and reward the person or department that have put forward
viable solutions, in an effort to enhance their environmental
interaction and participation. In our Vietnam factories, we have
incorporated greening into the construction plan, and continuously
amplify the greening effect of our office area and production area
through greening maintenance.
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CELERTENAHERR  UREER
RIRE - BGFARRABE TEENESERM
REFRIERE » HFVEGRIETRERER -
BREESEFREELERIBIE  HEX
EBERNFRSFEMMBIRITER - BR
EHSeHREELERATMPENTS - &
PMEFEERIRRED - RARRRREEH
B EEMEBERRER  MREEXLRE
®UERBRRFRENTGEM -

EREMEELEY  HABBRMRRFE
B RRBTERERS  EETF YR EE
RIFMIRRAEFZE - RABBEHREEEH
DA EREERSD - #RTUEIR
g RfEeRRERSEEIM RITHIE
EE) - MR THAREIBRMRBA - HE
BEEE TRERFRABEHAEAITHES
MR AHAPIEER) - RATE THRRE
BMS2HE - FHFRHE - BABEICAAR
FRARE - BIBARL IR B T E R R I AT
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Tree Planting in VSIP Industry Zone Participated by Employees of Our Vietnam Factories
HEREETISMVSIPTXEERTE
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Environmental KPIs

In Fiscal 2019, the Group's environmental KPIs were derived from
the statistical conversion of relevant environmental data generated
from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019, which covers the production
and non-production areas of our Shenzhen factories and Vietnam
factories (A, B and C factory). The specific performance is as

follows:

Sulfur oxide emissions

mEDHHRE

Nitrogen oxides emissions

RELMBHRE

Particles emissions

BRMBERE

Total greenhouse gas emissions
BERRAEKRE

Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1)
BERBEEME (HBE)

Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2)
BERBEME (HE2)

Total hazardous wastes

BEBRRYRE

Total non-hazardous wastes
BERZYEE

Production wastes emissions
FEEEBENE

Office wastes emissions
PABIRBEE

Food wastes emissions

FERRIR BN E

Total energy consumption

BERAEE

Environmental KPIs

RERRERER

Unit
By
Kilogram

FTx

Kilogram

FTx

Kilogram

FTx

Tonne CO.e
W_EtRER
Tonne CO,e
WS LR E =
Tonne CO,e
WS LR E =

Tonne

W

Tonne
Mg
Tonne
148
Tonne
148
Tonne
148

GJ

=
A AR

R dEREREE

RIEBRERIEE

20190 F » AEEREEREVEZRA
20184 818220193 A31 HEARHHA
REZESRESY  BEHESEFI
i [ K 0 F R R (AR - BIRR ~ CIRR) B9 EE AN
JEEERS - BRERBLT -

Fiscal 2019
201981 &

1.62
367.74
27.06

5 120,359.71
6 2,337.26

7 118,022.45
141.91

11,574.15
11,317.53
3.56

256.62

8 772,909.15

FEHE2018/19 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 123



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE > HERERRSE

124

Environmental KPIs

RIZFABENIER

Unit

By
Total energy intensity GJ/HK$'000
RRARE H5EBETR
Total direct energy consumption GJ
HiZREEE Bl
Liquefied petroleum gas consumption Kilogram
RIEABREE =
Petrol consumption Liter
SUBRREE van
Diesel consumption Liter
mEE Pan
Total indirect energy consumption GJ
EiERRAKRE Bl
Electricity consumption KWh
FE=E FERE
Total water consumption m3
HBIEKE Sk
Total water consumption intensity m3/HK$'000
BIEXEE MFRBETFT
Water reuse m?
RERAKE K
Total packaging materials Tonne
BEMES Mg

15 Total greenhouse gas emissions = Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1)
+ Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2).

6 Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) mainly come from the consumption
of fuel (diesel and unleaded petrol) by our business vehicles and the fuel
consumption of stationary sources (diesel and liquefied petroleum gas).

7 Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) are from electricity consumption.
Greenhouse gas emission factors of our Shenzhen factories refer to the
“2017 China Regional Power Grid Baseline Emission Factors” ( {2017
PERIEEMESEMEF) ) issued by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the People’s Republic of China, whereas the greenhouse
gas emission factors of our Vietnamese factories refer to the “2016 CO,
Emissions from Fuel Combustion” issued by the International Energy
Agency.

8 Energy consumption comprises of business vehicle fuel (diesel and

unleaded petrol), and the fuel consumption (diesel and liquefied petroleum
gas) from stationary sources as well as purchased electricity. Energy
consumption coefficient refers to “GB2589-2008T General Principles for
the Calculation of Integrated Energy Consumption” ( { GB2589-2008T#z
A8uRErEmAl) ) of the People’s Republic of China.

Fiscal 2019
201981 FF

0.12

35,331.41

157,541.20

92,863.46

684,566.21

737,577.74

204,882,706.40

1,632,604.00

0.26

894.00

10,577.46

REGHNE=-REREHNE(HEE)+
REEHRE (SE2) -

RERBINE(BE) TERE RBEMMA
(SO~ 50U ) 7O FE RS AN E IR IR (5
ORI AhE)EFER o

AERERE (BE2)REENFERA - R
F@ )R = RS NET2EPEARLE
A REIRIEERC 201790 B (@ 15 BE A L R AR BE A
T HEREREREENETF2ERRER
£ (International Energy Agency){20164ZCO,
Emissions from Fuel Combustion) ©

BERBEFERA BB AT WM (50h - )T
)~ BFERIRE (S0 - RIE R R) RIMNE
B o BEFER BB ERE ARHMBI(GB2589-
2008T#7 A ReFEaT HImBA) ©
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As our new factories commence operations, we will expand
the scope of disclosure of environmental KPIs year on year, in a
bid to cater for our actual business operations and promote our
environmental management.

COMMON PROSPERITY WITH COMMUNITIES

The Group performs its social responsibility as a corporate citizen
and cares for disadvantaged groups. Enthusiastic about charitable
causes, it is active in engaging in community sports and cultural
activities and works towards building co-development, harmony
and sharing to propel the sustainable development of local
communities.

Caring for Disadvantaged Groups

The Group pays attention to the disadvantaged groups both within
and outside the Group, working within its ability to help them
meet their basic needs as well as demand in education, medical
service, employment and social engagement to promote their all-
rounded development.

o Donation to Yulv Elementary School
Yulv Elementary School is the only public school in Yulv
Community where Shenzhen factories of the Group are
located. It has provided great support in addressing the
schooling problem for the children of our employees so that
they can focus on work.

On 28 May 2018, we donated a batch of books worth nearly
RMB30,000 to Regina Miracle Library in Yulv Elementary
School on the occasion of the forthcoming “Children’s Day”
event. This is the third consecutive year of the Group to
donate stationery and sporting goods in the hope of helping
students receive all-rounded education.

R dEREREE

EERMFTIHRNRENES  RAIKEF
BARSHREVEZHERE - UREAR
PIRTSER - RERPINRBEEETIE -

ERt B F AR

FEBBTEEARMEET  BINDE
B ALLHEEE BES2EMEES X
AE - AEEAE - AR RERBRED
BEMELRAATREER

[aps)ied
AEERIREAINSEER - BMONERE
HEEAEBEEREERR  #HEF K
BEER  BEFTHNELGLETZR |
EHEMER -

. BEER)E
Ea/ NSRS ERRYIBE D E
ARER——FANWNE  ERRR
MBI FAREMBELAT THEA
T RATAUEEEZ BHE D
Tt

2018%F5H28H » T/ NEREREI/<—]
EBCE  BRMAERE)NBHEERE
BT —HEBEIAREIETNE
E -ErRASEBEESE=-FREE])
BIERERNEERS  AEENE
PEZFMEEREE -
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Donation to Yulv Elementary School
BEEENE

Shuguang Education Funding Activity

In December 2018, Shenzhen Guangming New District
Charity Association (BRI ZZ=) in China organized
the 2018 Shuguang Education Funding Activity. As the
president unit of the charity association, we provided a
total of RMB46,000 in financial aid for 12 students (11 from
junior high school and 1 from primary school) after a detailed
understanding about their conditions. We received public
recognition for leading the education funding activity in
Guangming New District.

Underprivileged Groups in Hai Phong

In September 2018, we successively visited the training
school for the disabled, orphanages and underdeveloped
areas in Hai Phong with Mid-Autumn Festival gifts, supplies
and subsidies brought to those people who in need and sent
warmth to them.

(B2 |B) 277 8)

2018512 A BRI e AAFT R 2E
ZEME2018F MR B |5
18 - EAREGYREMN - HAK
B E R FMEAE - 12
BEERE - HRyPRENH N2
F1% o RFIAE1288 4 RE T K5t
ARM46,000LBNEE S - HHEIH
FHRAFEMENEITE) - ZE KRR
BERATHIRA o

Y ageps bt se:id

201859 F » MK RET MEEN
MR ABIIER - 52k R ER M
B mEnFEREOHAPMIREPK
HR2Y) - MEMMY - RFERER
B o
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Visiting Underprivileged Groups in Hai Phong
MRS T REAE

Enthusiasm in Public Welfare
The Group is enthusiastic about public welfare and actively
responds to the call from local charity organizations to make its
contribution to the charitable cause.

o Clothes Donation Activity

On 14 September 2018, the Shenzhen Guangming New
District Charity Association in China launched a clothes
donation activity. In it, we donated 4,608 pieces of brand
new clothes worth about RMB230,000 to poor areas.
Having been categorized and packed, all the clothes were
delivered to the Shenzhen Social Donation and Disaster
Relief Materials Reserve Center, which will allocate and
transport the clothes to domestic poverty alleviation areas
and poverty-stricken mountainous areas to help the local
people in need.

R dEREREE

BODmBHE

AEBRLAGEER  BREEES T
REABRE  FRNTHAREEXERM
BEH—MNE -

BLIELOTE)

2018F9 A 148 - FEURIIT AR
ZEGREEOBXREE - KMAE
PR ib & FE B 2 5 B0 I 4,608 1 © (B
BHARE2IE T - ZWXKWMBBD
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Clothes Donation Activity
FORRES

Guangdong Poverty Alleviation Day

Every year, we actively engage in “Guangdong Poverty
Alleviation Day"” at the call of Shenzhen Guangming New
District Charity Association in China. We support the
charitable causes through donating RMB500,000, and
encouraging the designated poverty alleviation authorities
and all walks of life to have deeper engagement in poverty-
stricken areas.

Participating in Community Culture

and Sports Activities

The Group actively organizes and participates in the cultural and
sports activities of the community where it operates, contributing
to local cultural prosperity and enriching the spiritual life of the
local people.

128

Football Match

In July 2018, we participated in the football match organized
by VSIP in Vietnam for the third consecutive year. At the
event, we defeated other competitors and sustained our
championship. During the same month, we organized
Regina Miracle Football Cup in our Viethnamese factory,
where 26 teams from Factories A, B and C joined the
competition. During the two-month event, nearly 400
employees experienced Regina Miracle's sportsmanship of
"Solidarity, Loyalty, Nobility and Progress”.

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #3542 BHFE(
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R dEREREE

VSIP Football Match
VSIPZ LB

3  LEKHAIMAC ¥
ﬁmmmmmﬂ}mm@ﬁmﬁzm
WIETNAMESSS

Regina Miracle Football Cup
HED IR

On 5 August 2018, a frontline worker's football match was
launched and participated by various industrial zones of Hai
Phong, Vietnam. At the opening ceremony, the labor union
representative of Regina Miracle’s Vietnamese factories donated
VND203,779,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$68,500) from

our employees to help Viethamese compatriots in the typhoon-

affected areas rebuild their homes.

2018F8AGH AR IXRLHE
W—RE TR ERSE EHEAL £
ERYEREISAXRBEEMNELS
8 #9203,779,000# E B LK+ FTE KB
68,5007t © AR E B RsE 2 [/ B
FREERE -
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HAI PHONG]

LE KHAI MAC
; GAG K‘HU EBNG NGHIEP‘H'AI PHUNG
"G

Opening and Donation Ceremony of the Frontline Worker’s Football Match of Hai Phong
BET-ZEIRRELEREREER

e Workers’ Month o  HEELZH
Every year, we actively participated in “Workers’ Month", RIS EBHRREMEVSIPALR &
a culture and sports festival organized by VSIP in Vietnam, BE 7 A IbEEE  BmBKEE
during which we will do exercise through various culture and BEiggEsg.  EIZRREE—
sports activities and look towards a better future together BHIFFEFERRK -

with our peers from the industrial zone.

CHUNG T i
AY \BIN DAP co
TOGETH :;N ﬂnuwcnmruNﬁtE nomG

: “t.xgﬂ

\\\\\

Y
nmnunumhnm
THANG CANG NHAN Nim 201

Workers’ Month
BEEZA
o Mid-Autumn Evening Party of VSIP Industrial Zone ° VSIPLHEFREE
In September 2018, we selected 3 programs to join the Mid- 201849 A  BFHRIRIEED A 2 M
Autumn Evening Party of the VSIP Industrial Zone of Hai BHTVSIPIRERRGRE - BEHME
Phong, Vietnam, staging singing and dance performances to THARREERR - LR R0 A SR —
our local employees. In particular, the dance program won Tt

the first prize.
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e
2
AWARD CEREMONY =
S0 VSIP HAI PHONG
d‘ll’)$l(" PERFORMANCE COMPETITION 2018

' =

Mid-Autumn Evening Party of VSIP Industrial Zone

VSIPTEEHRBRE
HONORS AND RECOGNITION REHEIT
Number ~ Award Awarded by Recipient Date of Award
531 3 RREN BEAT it 4=h
1 National Outstanding Foreign-invested Enterprise ~ China Association of Enterprises ~ Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel 2018
for Promoting Harmonious Labor Relations with Foreign Investment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 2018
(Year 2017-2018) and Shenzhen Association BRAVEANK(F)ERAR
PEERINERELEA of Enterprises with Foreign
LB RE(20172018% ) Investment
RENERERERE
RINERErERE
2 HKIRA 4th Best IR Company, Hong Kong Hong Kong Investor Relations Regina Miracle International May 2018
Investor Best IRO and Best Investor Relations  Association (Holdings) Limited 2018557
Association mesting EERAEBEGE BYRER(ER)BRAF
HKIRAZREREZBAERRREREZHER
i SERAEBREE  BERELeR
3 Certification of C-TPAT U.S. Customs and Border Regina Miracle International June 2018
[ ZEUSRE B R % Protection (Vigtnam) Limited 2018564

XEETZ2WEEERRER AP RER(ER)ERAR

4 BDO ESG Awards (2018) - Best in Reporting BDO Limited, South China Regina Miracle International February 2019
Certificate of merit Morning Post {Holdings) Limited 2019F2 7
BDORE - e RERAE-(2018%) EAUGEREHNERA Y RER (R ERAE
HIEESCHENE R BRAA BERR
5 "Most Valuable Company in Consumer and Zhitong Finance, Regina Miracle International February 2019
Service Sector “at the Golden Hong Kong Tonghuashun Finance (Holdings) Limited 2019428
Stocks Awards 2018 ERME - AIEIRE EYRER (R ERAF
WIBEELBRAE-FABEAHER
FRIRAT
6 Top 10 Import and Export Enterprise in People's Government of Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel ~ March 2019
Guangming New District, Shenzhen for 2018 Guangming (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 2019634
FmrEHE018FEE LN tanE New District, Shenzhen BEAVIRAR(RINERAR

R B AR
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Number  Award Awarded by Recipient Date of Award
531 R RREN BEAT ik 4=h
7 The Most Compassionate Company of Guangming Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel ~ April 2019
Guangming New District Charity, New District Charity, Shenzhen (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 2019F4 A
Shenzhen for 2018 MmtEELEe ERUEVEAR(RINER AR
RITHPTEEEEN18FEREEOLE
8 Devotion to the public welfare and sound in Guangming Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel ~ April 2019
morality of 2018 Charity donation plan New District Charity, Shenzhen (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 201944
WIBEEZETR GBIV AGEEER AMImEAEEEE BREVEAK(MINERAE
9 “Eager to help students education towards a Shenzhen Guangming Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel ~ April 2019
bright future” of a dawn education assistance New District Charity (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 2019548
action in Guangming New District, Shenzhen  FJ|Ti iR ZE S BREVEAKCFINERAT
for 2018
FYM K PHR2018EEE KB
ROBBEZKRA
10 HKIRA 5th Best IR Company Hong Kong Investor Relations Regina Miracle International May 2019
HKIRAZREREZEBEARSEREEMELRA  Association (Holdings) Limited 201957
EARAEWEGE B RER (R ERAT
11 WRAP Gold Certificates Worldwide Responsible Regina Miracle International May 2019
WRAPESEE Accredited Production Vietnam) Limited 2019458
Bt e EAAEAR BYRER (W) ERAT
12 The 7th “Charm of the East, fashion steps” Organizing committee of China Regina Miracle International 2019
special host unit of China international international underwear creative  (Holdings) Limited 20195
underwear creative design competition design competition of Shenzhen X IEEIRR (k) BB A E
FLEBIRY KHES] underwear association
PEEEARAE R AR THREN RTARITEGHEPERR
NREIEFTRERZE
13 “"Most Valuable Company in Consumer and Zhitong Finance, Regina Miracle International 2019
Service Sector” at the Golden Hong Kong Tonghuashun Finance (Holdings) Limited 2019F
Stocks 2018 BRI REIRE Y RER (R BRAR

20188 Bl - S ABERNRERRERLA

14 2018 Qutstanding Contribution Award Vietnam National Social Regina Miracle International 2019
20185 FERE R % Security Bureau (Vietnam) Limited 2019F
HEEFHRA EVREIR (B8 ERAR
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_E
pwc

To the Shareholders of Regina Miracle
International (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Regina Miracle
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 140 to 231, which
comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2019;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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OPINION (Continued)

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to the provision
for inventories.

ERwm

EPHWER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

BYRHERE

FRETEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

MREIER

Provision for inventories

FERHE

Refer to note 17 “Inventories” and note 4(a) “Critical
accounting estimates and judgements” to the
consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2019, the Group held inventories of
HK$893,896,000 and the provision for obsolete
or slow moving inventories was HK$2,604,000.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value in the consolidated financial
statements.

Management assesses the provision for obsolete or
slow moving inventories at each period end based
on their consideration of obsolescence and the net
realisable value of inventories. The determination of
estimated selling price less cost to sell requires the
use of significant judgement and estimates, including
consideration of condition of products, latest selling
price, expectation of future sales orders and market
trends and customer demands.

HEBEAMSREM 7 7R R @ B GiHE
SR -

M2019F3A31H BEEEFENHFTEABE
893,896,000t * R & s/ 84 17 & # 15 A 78 1% 2,604,000
T o FERA AN A #IRFEME WRIESERRA T HR
RIER -

EEEENHGFERERENANERFENZE NS
HIHRHRERF BT ENBEETIE - WERAEE
B ER AT ZERERAE MG - BEEERMNR -
RITHIEE  RRHETENTRY  TEBEREFPFEL
MEE °

BANES N AERERRENSE

Our key procedures in relation to management'’s
assessment of the provision for obsolete or slow
moving inventory included:

- Understanding the key control procedures
performed by management in estimating the
net realisable value of the inventories and
conducting periodic reviews on inventory
obsolescence;

- Testing, on a sample basis, the net realisable
value of selected inventory items, by comparing
the carrying amount of the inventory items
against their selling price subsequent to the
year end or closest to year end;

- Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
the ageing profile of individual inventory items
by checking to the underlying procurement
correspondence and invoices; and

- Testing, on a sample basis, long aged inventory
for subsequent sales or usage after year
end and reperforming the calculation for the
provision.

Bt E R EHRESFHTERE T ARITRRR
TR

- BEREEEBGIFENIERFENEHMEREE
RERERRANBRZESRR

—  RABETRLBARGEEL QR ERLRE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

BRESE

FRETEE e

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRANETFT N AEERERIEE

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balance, significant management judgement and
estimates involved in determining the provision for
obsolete or slow moving inventories.

BMBINUBEIHREHREANBEREIFHETE
BHERYREREIRE BTG

In addition, we discussed with management
regarding the latest sales pattern in relation to price
and quantity for potential orders, and other factors,
including the market trends and customer demands.

We found that management’s assessment of the
provision for obsolete or slow moving inventory was
supported by the available audit evidence.

S5 - RMERER BB M ST - MR
BRI ENRERBENREERE - REDHESR
EFE -

BMEREEEEREXBHETFERENF LA EET
EEXHS -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B RHENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. WWe remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. \We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Chiu, Raymond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
ek

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z201963A318 [t F[E

2019 AONRS]

20194 20184

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BT IT

Revenue WA 5 6,263,280 5,868,048
Cost of sales SHEMA 7 (4,921,335) (4,634,125)
Gross profit EF 1,341,945 1,233,923
Other income and other gains, net HA UG A R H Aih Y 25 558 6 28,359 21,760
Distribution and selling expenses DR IHE R 7 (155,329) (145,851)
General and administrative expenses —MR AT X 7 (619,006) (578,594)
Research and development costs s R B A 7 (205,070) (195,920)
390,899 335,318

Finance income ZUE AN 9 1,316 625
Finance costs B A5 R AR 9 (90,182) (49,839)
Finance costs, net ISP AN 558 (88,866) (49,214)
Profit before income tax BRET 1S AT R 302,033 286,104
Income tax expense FrS R 11 (19,595) (45,916)

Profit for the year attributable to FERAQAREEA

owners of the Company FEARER 282,438 240,188
Earnings per share for profit ARATEE AEML
attributable to owners of BEANERER
the Company (AR BWLZS)
(expressed in HK cents per share)
— Basic and diluted —EAREE 12 23.1 19.6
The above consolidated income statement should be read in FilsRE W a3 e BB R —OFBE o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #£20193 A31H IFE/E

2019 2018
20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Profit for the year FREFR 282,438 240,188

Other comprehensive (loss)/income: H#h2HE(EE), KA :
Items that have been reclassified or BEHSELATREEE

may be subsequently reclassified to R IE B H
profit or loss
Currency translation differences B E R (133,151) 69,763
Fair value (loss)/gain on insurance RERENFE(EE),
policy investments s 16 (1,228) 767
Reclassification adjustment upon HEREBILERD
disposal of insurance policy EHOEEE
investments 16 (44) (16)
Fair value change on trade receivables 1ZAFEEFTAEMEE
carried at fair value through other WA (T AFERT A
comprehensive income (“FVOCI") HEnzmEml Al
HIRRAIE 5 eI
BRAH AT EZE) 29,694 -
Reclassification adjustment upon BIHERIE AT ERA
derecognition of trade receivables Hib2mU AR
carried at FVOCI B 5 W R KA
B EEE (29,531) 5

Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREMZE(EE),

for the year, net of tax BA(SHrete) (134,260 70,514
Total comprehensive income RATEE AEWN
attributable to owners of ZHEWRALEE
the Company 148,178 310,702
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income iR A 2 e TR FE B RE AP T — OB o

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HREEARER

As at 31 March 2019 7201943 H31H

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R MR 13 4,174,055 3,414,878
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE 1 3h Ko 4 Hb {5 A #EE 14 252,289 301,554
Intangible assets EmREE 15 49,670 44,752
Insurance policy investments REEIRE 16 76,130 66,631
Deposits and prepayments e R¥ENFIE 19 144,878 17,167
4,697,022 3,844,982
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 893,896 826,961
Trade and bills receivables B S EINBR R e E 18 814,715 848,787
Deposits, prepayments and e BARER
other receivables H b pE Y 5k E 19 81,509 47,299
Tax recoverable Al [ R IE 927 6,056
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREEEY 20 466,436 450,125
e 2,257,483 2,179,228
Total assets EEHAE 6,954,505 6,024,210
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners RATBEEA
of the Company FEihER
Share capital R A 21 95,247 95,247
Reserves i 22 2,828,926 2,774,335
Total equity ERBE 2,924,173 2,869,582

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in FitrABEBBERBHEBEMMF—O5E -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HREEARR

As at 31 March 2019 7201963 H31H

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Other payables H b FE 5RIE 26 5,549 -
Borrowings B 23 2,166,533 985,854
Deferred income tax liabilities FELEASHEE 24 5,927 5,690
2,178,009 991,544
Current liabilities FREBaE
Trade payables B SRR 25 378,379 408,884
Accruals and other payables FETE A L B pE(~ 5B 26 606,994 555,920
Borrowings B 23 857,565 1,164,500
Current income tax liabilities BIEFTISHaE 9,385 33,780
e eoeeeeiieeieeiceeecesono. . 1,852,323 2,163,084
_Totalliabilites _ _ __ _____%8f#es 4,030,332 3,154,628
Total equity and liabilities EERAEHEE 6,954,505 6,024,210

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in s BEE A ERBEBEHNE—HTEIE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 231 were F140E231 EWNERE M IEHRE D 201946
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2019 and were A2 AREESHETRKRESE -
signed on its behalf.

Hung Yau Lit Antony Yiu
ok PhEER
Chairman Director
FiE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z201963A318 [t F[E

Attributable to owners
of the Company

KA THEE AELE

Share capital Reserves Total

€S N et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BT T

As at 1 April 2017 7A2017F4518 95,247 2,524,845 2,620,092

Total comprehensive income FERALETE - 310,702 310,702
Transaction with owners HBEEARS

Dividends (Note 27) BB (B =E27) - (61,212) (61,212)

As at 31 March 2018 201843 H31H 95,247 2,774,335 2,869,582

Balance as at 1 April 2018 R2018F4 1B KSR -

as originally presented REFEHRZS 95,247 2,774,335 2,869,582

Change in accounting policy (Note 2.2) &t E8) (H352.2) - (2,992) (2,992)

As at 1 April 2018 as restated R2018F4A1BHRET| 95,247 2,771,343 2,866,590

Total comprehensive income EEWALLEE - 148,178 148,178
Transaction with owners BEEBARXS

Dividends (Note 27) BB (f5E27) - (90,595) (90,595)

As at 31 March 2019 A201963H31H 95,247 2,828,926 2,924,173

The consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read e RSB RAEMENM T —OFBIE

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GBERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #£20193 A31H IFE/E

2019 AONES]
20195 2018%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cash flows from operating activities @%EQFE?@E%&E
Cash generated from operations LBEBMEES 28(a) 599,614 529,784
Profits tax paid %IZW B (36,436) (63,630)
Net cash inflow from operating KEERFBIRERA
activities FEE 563,178 466,154
Cash flows from investing activities & ITEFEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  BELRE
equipment (1,090,396) (948,414)
Prepayments for purchase of BEME - BEREE
property, plant and equipment HITE FRIA (73,997) (10,422)
Purchase of leasehold land and EEAES L
land use rights 5 A #E (26,699) (75,293)
(Payment)/return of deposits for (Zf),/EEIEE i
purchase of land use rights FRENILS (60,601) 54,835
Purchase of intangible assets BEEEE (14,704) (6,873)
Purchase of insurance policy BERERE
investments 16 (12,321) (9,434)
Proceeds from disposal of HERBREAFTSHRIEA
insurance policy investments 1,704 380
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - R K&EE
plant and equipment FT{S 3R 28(b) 1,507 1,605
Proceeds from disposal of HERS T AEHIE
leasehold land 28(b) 43,559 13,255
Interest received BUF & 1,316 625
Net cash outflow from investing WEESMBEERL
activities F 8 (1,230,632) (979,736)

The consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in ERERI B3 —OFRIRE o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z201963A318 [t F[E

2019 2018
20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Cash flows from financing activities RS IEFMEESRE

Proceeds from borrowings EEGIR O] 2,292,500 1,130,568
Repayments of borrowings BEER (1,418,756) (463,907)
Interest paid BAFE (90,182) (66,218)
Dividend paid BIRE (90,595) (61,212)
Net cash inflow from financing BEEBBHESRA

activities =L 692,967 539,231
Net increase in cash and ReRESEEY

cash equivalents EnFEEE 25,513 25,649
Cash and cash equivalents FUHE R

at beginning of the year BEEEY 450,125 412,280
Currency translation differences BMmE = (9,202) 12,196
Cash and cash equivalents at end FEREER

of the year ReEED 20 466,436 450,125

The consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in AR RERAEBENM 05 -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on
21 September 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The Company has its primary listing on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of
the Company's registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of bras, intimate wear, bra pads, other molded
products and functional sports products.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$'000"), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The consolidated
financial statements are for the Group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS") and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. These
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of trade receivables carried at FVOCI and insurance policy
investments which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas
when assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2.1
(a)

148

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards, improvements and
interpretation adopted by the Group

The following new and amended standards, improvements
and interpretation have been adopted by the Group for the
first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 April
2018:

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment
Property

Classification and
Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Annual Improvements
Project
HKAS 40 (Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 (Amendments)

HK (IFRIC) = Int 22

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
Clarifications to HKFRS 15

Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

Save as disclosed in Note 2.2, the adoption of these new
and amended standards, improvements and interpretation
did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEAEFBERBE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)
(b) New and amended standards, improvements and (b) EEME KL MR FTET R AZANS 5T &
interpretation that have been issued but are not yet B ~ ERZFE
effective
The following new and amended standards, improvements THIE B ETET RASET R - g
and interpretation have been issued that are not mandatory LABHAREZE2019F3A31H 1EEF
for financial year ended 31 March 2019 and have not been HERERGIER  BEAREEEARESR
early adopted by the Group: B4R
Effective
for annual
periods beginning
on or after
R ARz %%
WEEHBEXN
Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019
FREBCERTE 20155 220174 B HH) & & B 2019%1H1H
HKAS 19 (Amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 1 January 2019
BB SFERIE 195 (BRI A) FFENEET - #EmskaEE 20191 H1H
HKAS 28 (Amendments) Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019
BB SFERE 285 (BRI A) REFE R ARG EPENRPER 20191 H1H
HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 1 January 2019
ERUBHREERFSR(ETAR) BB EMENRIERN R 20191 H1H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
ERM M ELER B 1657 HE 20191 A1H
HK (IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
B (ERMHmERE BRARMGHEIEN T T 20191 H1H
ZEg)-RRBE23W
Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 1 January 2020
Financial Reporting 2018
2018F E MM EMSMESE MR ERSEROER] 20201 H1H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2.1
(b)

150

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards, improvements and
interpretation that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

2 EAESHBERBEE@w)

2.1 mEEEE)
(b) BB F AT RASIEET £
A HERBEE)

Effective

for annual

periods beginning

on or after

Rt AR 2 &%

HNEEHBEXR

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statement 1 January 2020

BRI (EIEET) IR 2 202041 51H

HKAS 8 (Amendments) Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 1 January 2020

Estimates and Errors

B ERIESH (BT A) BRI - BRI RER 202041 51H

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of A Business 1 January 2020

ERSEERAEIR(EETA) 2BOTS 20204118

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021

AP BIMELERE 175 REBRE ) 202141 A1H

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and To be determined
(Amendments) its Associate or Joint Venture

BB HREERIZE105% R BREEFREBEARSGECE 2 MNEELESHRA FEE

BB ERE285 (1BFTA)

The Group's assessment of the impact of these new and
amended standards, improvements and interpretation is set
out below.

REBEZERAT BRI ER -~ B
R RBERHEEN X
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2.1
(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards, improvements and
interpretation that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in
almost all leases being recognised on the statement of
financial position by lessees, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and
a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory
adoption date of 1 April 2019. The Group intends to apply
the simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.
HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the accounting for the
Group's operating leases. The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately HK$249
million. Majority of these commitments will be recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets will be amortised on a
straight line basis during the lease terms while the lease
liabilities will be measured at amortised cost subsequent to
the adoption of this standard.

There are no other new and amended standards,
improvements and interpretation that are not yet effective
and that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2.2

(a)

(b)

152

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Change of accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Impact on the financial statements

The Group elects to adopt HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 without
restating comparatives. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the adoption of HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15 are therefore not reflected in the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 March 2018, but are recognised in
the opening restated consolidated balance sheet on 1 April
2018.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to
the recognition, classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments and impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1
April 2018 resulted in changes in accounting policies and
adjustments to the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. The new accounting policies are set
out in notes 2.11 and note 2.14. In accordance with the
transitional provisions in HKFRS 9, comparative figures have
not been restated.

The following tables show the adjustments recognised for
each individual line item. Line items that were not affected
by the changes have not been included. As a result, sub-
totals and totals disclosed cannot be recalculated from the
numbers provided. The adjustments are explained in more
details below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEAEFBERBE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Change of accounting policies (Continued) 22 EIECRNEE (5
(b) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued) (b) EBEEHBEHRLEEREIN @M T A/
(#)

31 March 2018 Effects of
as originally the adoption 1 April 2018
presented of HKFRS 9 as restated
20185F  ERRMBEEHE 20184

3H31H HmE2EA| 4818
(I%A25) FRME S (€ <3=27))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ST ST BT

Consolidated balance sheet HZABEABR(FE)

(extract)
Current assets REEE
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EWBR N FE N E R
— carried at amortised cost — I SE AR AT BR 848,787 (410,156) 438,631
— carried at FVOCI — AT ERA
Hib 2 AR - 407,164 407,164
Equity R
Reserves =2
— Retained earnings —IREB&F| 977,700 (1,683) 976,017
— Trade receivables at FVOCI —BRAFEETA
reserve Hib2mEUE AR
2 5 R - (1,309) (1,309)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2.2
(b)

154

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Change of accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Classification and measurements

On 1 April 2018 (the date of initial application of HKFRS 9),
the Group’s management has assessed which business
models apply to the financial assets held by the Group and
has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate
HKFRS 9 categories.

Reclassification from trade receivables carried at amortised
cost to trade receivables carried at FVOCI/

Trade receivables from certain customers of the Group,
whose contractual cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, were factored to reputable financial
institutions under non-recourse factoring arrangement
according to the Group’s daily fund management needs.
These trade receivable’s business model is therefore
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling of these assets. As a result, trade receivables carried
at amortised cost of HK$407,164,000 was reclassified
to trade receivables carried at FVOCI on 1 April 2018.
The impact on equity as at 1 April 2018 in this regard is
HK$1,309,000.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets currently held by the Group include
financial instruments previously classified as loans and
receivables which continue to be measured at amortised
cost under HKFRS 9. Accordingly, there is no impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial assets.

Financial liabilities

There will be no impact on the Group's accounting for
financial liabilities, as the HKFRS 9 only affect the accounting
for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss and the Group does not have any such
liabilities.
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2.2
(b)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Change of accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group mainly has two types of financial assets that are
subject to HKFRS 9's expected credit loss model:

° Trade and bills receivables; and

° Other financial assets at amortised cost.

The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes of
assets.

While cash and cash equivalents and bill receivables are
also subject to the impairment requirement of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for
all trade and bills receivables. To measure expected credit
losses, trade and bills receivables have been grouped based
on the shared credit risk characteristics.

The impairment loss for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the customers’ past settlement pattern, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period.

On that basis, there was an increase of loss allowance on 1
April 2018 by HK$1,683,000 for trade and bills receivables.
Note 3.1 (c)(ii) provides for details about the calculation of
the loss allowance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2.2
(b)

(i)

(c)

(d)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Change of accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets

Loss allowance on deposits and other receivables from
third parties are measured as either 12-months expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit
risk of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then loss allowance is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses. The resulted loss allowance for deposits and other
receivables on 1 April 2018 and during the year ended 31
March 2019 was considered immaterial.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” from 1 April 2018 which
resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments
to the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. In accordance with the transition provisions in
HKFRS 15, comparative figures have not been restated.

HKFRS 15 deals with revenue recognition and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of
financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an
entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised
when a customer obtains control of goods or services and
thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits
from the goods or services. The standard replaces HKAS
18 "Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction contract” and
related interpretations. The new accounting policies are set
out in Note 2.23 below.

Moreover, payments received from customers in advance
related to unfulfilled performance obligations, which
previously included in “accruals and other payable”, should
be reclassified to “contract liabilities”. The management
considers the amount is immaterial and no reclassification
adjustment is made in the consolidated balance sheet.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 did not result in significant
changes to the Group recognition policies.

Certain comparative figures have been re-presented to
conform to current year’s presentation.
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2.3
2.3.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transactions
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2.3
232

24

25

(i)

(ii)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’'s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in HKS$, which is the Company’s functional and
the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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(iii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy), that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(i)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income. \When a foreign
operation is sold, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to consolidated income statement, as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2.6

160

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated

using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Building 5% or over the unexpired

period of the lease

5% or over the unexpired

period of the lease

7% to 10%

20% to 33%

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery
Office furniture and fixtures

20% to 33%
20%

Computer equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.
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2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings and
the costs of plant and machinery, installation testing and
other direct costs. No provision for depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and are available for the intended
use. When the assets concerned are brought into use, the
costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in Note
2.6 above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost represents upfront prepayments made
for the rights to use the land over the lease term of 41 to
45 years. Amortisation of leasehold land is expensed in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

Intangible assets

Computer Software

Acquired computer software license is capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire the specific software.
The computer software acquired is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses if any. These costs are amortised over estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset'’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

2.11
2111
)

(i)

162

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets

Accounting policies applied since 1 April 2018
Classification

From 1 April 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at FVOCI or
through profit or loss, and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’'s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment carried at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Accounting policies applied since 1 April 2018 (Continued)

(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial

asset.

Debt instrument

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the
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Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in consolidated income statement and presented in
“other income and other gains, net” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses, are included as in
the consolidated income statement and presented in
the notes to the consolidated financial statement.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in “finance cost, net”). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in “other income and other
gains, net”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Accounting policies applied since 1 April 2018 (Continued)

(iv)  Impairment

From 1 April 2018, the Group assesses on a forward looking
basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
these financial assets, see note 3.1 (c)(ii) for further details.

2.11.2 Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018

(i)

164

Classification
The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has
elected not to restate comparative information.

As a result, the comparative information provided continues
to be accounted for in accordance with the Group's previous
accounting policy.

Until 31 March 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets as loans and receivables. The classification is
determined on the purpose for which the investments were
acquired. Management determined the classification of its
investments at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
2.11.2 Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018 (Continued)

(1) Classification (Continued)

(a)  Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance
sheet date, in which case they are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise trade
and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, short
term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated balance sheet.

(i) Subseguent measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are
recognised on the trade-date being the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

(i) Impairment

(a)  Assets carried at amortised cost
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018 (Continued)

(i)
(a)

212

166

Impairment (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument'’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.
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213

2.14

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
cost method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less cost to sell.

Trade and bills receivables
Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold in the ordinary course of business.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. Trade receivables with the objective to collect
the contractual cash flows are measured subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables from certain customers of the Group,
whose contractual cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, were factored to reputable financial
institutions under non-recourse factoring arrangement.
The Group's business model is therefore achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling of these assets.
Such trade receivables was therefore classified as financial
assets carried at FVOCI upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1
April 2018.

For details of the accounting policies and impairment
policies, please refer to note 2.2(b), note 2.11 and note 3.1(c).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

168

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flow,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks with original maturity of three months
or less and bank overdrafts.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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2.19

2.20

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Group operates
and generates taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

FERE2018/19 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

2

e R BRRME

BEXETHEREW)

2.19 BEERAK

2.20

(i)

BERLERBEREE(MRKBRE
fBl 77 BE3E B IEE AJ (£ A s B IR AR Y
BE)EEEBEHEN—REEEEEK
K SHARFEENRA  BEEARH
ERHTAEAEARHERIBLE -

FrE Bt iE B R AT B E A B 4R
BUEmRTHER

BN R AR SE P 1588

F AR BLIA R X8 45 BN MOR RE TR
B MAGEFARERTHER B
EEMEPEPVAPRERE D E
RHBEBERERRIN - EZBENR
T BIERD B EEMEERAT K
BERERRDER -

B B0 B A 2 T M R A R
I B ARRISN - BTHI R IER AR
RARERNER - RULBRT - B
BRD R A m ke B KRR

L ghy
TRIERR ©

IR 185

BEF SR REARERE RE
ERRFBRAFMEBRRNEERER
EEEMmEAEE FD @M EED
AHE - BEEERERNBADRER
HIR B RE AR SRR AR
I FEE BN MR TR HIA R R 5
SR SRAT TR A o

169



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

2.20
(ii)

170

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.21
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations
Group companies operate several defined contribution
retirement schemes.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Bonus entitlements

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
based on the key performance indicators for employees
and the business performance of the Group. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where
there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE
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2.22

2.23

172

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to anyone item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

The Group manufactures and sells bras, intimate wear, bra
pads, other molded products and functional sports products
in the wholesale market. Revenue is recognised when
control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the wholesaler at a point in time,
the wholesaler has full discretion over the channel and price
to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the wholesaler’'s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the wholesaler, and either the
wholesaler has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed,
or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.
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2.23

2.24

2.25

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the price
specified in the sales contracts. No element of financing is
deemed present as the sales are made with a short credit
term, which is consistent with market practice. The Group's
obligation to replace faulty products or refund customers
under the standard warranties terms is recognised as a
provision, see note 2.22.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

Contract liability is recognised when payments are received
from customers in advance but the relevant performance
obligation has not been performed.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost (2017 —
loans and receivables) calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated income statement
as part of finance cost, net. Interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
values where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate.Government grants relating to
property, plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.26

2.27

2.28

174

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects relating to the design and
testing of new or improved products are recognised as an
intangible asset when the technical feasibility and intention
of completing the product under development has been
demonstrated and the resources are available to do so,
costs are identifiable and there is an ability to sell or use the
asset that will generate probable future economic benefits.
Such development costs are recognised as an asset and
amortised on the straight-line basis to reflect the pattern
in which the related economic benefits are recognised.
Development costs that do not meet the above criteria
are expensed as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in
a subsequent period.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Insurance policy investments

3.1

Recognition and measurement

Insurance policy investments are non-derivative which
measured at FVOCI. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or management
intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the balance
sheet date. When the investments are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the consolidated income statement. The Group
has renamed these insurance policy investments from
"available-for-sale financial assets” to “insurance policy
investments” during the year in order to clearly reflect its
nature. The relevant accounting policy of these assets has
been consistently applied.

Impairment

For insurance policy investments, if any such evidence
exists, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of insurance policy investments increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss,
the impairment loss is reversed through equity.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
bills receivables, refundable deposits and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables
and borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in Note 31.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including cash flow interest rate risk, foreign exchange
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
Risk management is regularly carried out by the senior
management of the Company under policies approved by
the executive directors of the Company.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Cash flow interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for bank deposit, which earn low interest income.
The Group's operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its borrowings with floating interest rates.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash
held at variable rates. The Group has not hedged its cash
flow interest rate risk. Details of the Group's borrowings
have been disclosed in Note 23.

As at 31 March 2019, if interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 basis points with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would decrease/increase by
HK$25,577,000 (2018: HK$14,095,000), resulting from the
changes in finance costs of net bank borrowings.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Vietnam. Most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in HK$, Renminbi
("RMB"), Vietnamese Dong ("VND") and US$. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily through its sales,
purchases and borrowing transactions denominated in US$.
The Group is presently not using any forward exchange
contract to hedge against foreign exchange risk. The Group
manages its foreign exchange risks by performing regular
reviews when considered necessary and ensures that
the net exposure to foreign exchange risk is kept to an
acceptable level from time to time.

The directors considered the foreign exchange risk between
HK$ and US$ is minimal as US$ are reasonably stable with
HK$ under the Linked Exchange Rate System.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against US$ with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year ended 31 March 2019 would have
been approximately HK$5,326,000 lower/higher (2018:
HK$5,235,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated
trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents
held by the Group's entities in the PRC.

As at 31 March 2019, if VND had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against US$ with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year ended 31 March 2019 would have
been approximately HK$71,365,000 lower/higher (2018:
HK$13,924,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and
trade and other payables held by the Group's entities in
Vietnam.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade
and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables and
bank deposits. Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor the exposures
to these credit risks on an on-going basis. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management

As at 31 March 2019, majority of the bank deposits of the
Group are held in major financial institutions located in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Vietnam, which management believes
are of high credit quality. Management does not expect any
losses from non-performance by these financial institutions.
The Group has no policy to limit the amount of credit
exposure to any financial institutions.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 42% (2018: 41%) of its trade and bills receivables
were from the five largest customers (2018: five), which are
mainly reputable corporations. Considering the track record
of regular repayment of trade receivables based on the
Group's experience with respect to the collection of these
receivables, the directors are of the opinion that the risk of
default by these customers is not significant.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products on credit terms are made to customers with
appropriate credit history. The Group has not determined
any credit limit for customers, however, the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The major trade
debtors have no history of default.

The Group also uses trade receivables factoring facilities to
manage the credit risk of its trade debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

e Trade and bills receivables; and
e QOther financial assets carried at amortised cost

See Note 2.2 (b)(ii) for details of impairment of financial
assets.

Trade and bill receivables

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles
of sales over a period of 24 months before 31 March 2018
and 2017 respectively and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has identified the overall industry outlook in which it
sells its goods and services to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade and bill receivables (Continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March 2019 and
1 April 2018 (on adoption of HKFRS 9) was determined as
follows:

0-30 days

Current  past due

PH 02308

31 March 2019 HKD'000  HKD'000
201953A31H ABTr  BETR
Gross carrying amount A 659,270 119,998
Loss allowance BEEE (1,415) (227)

3 HKRREE@
3.1 FEERBEZEE)
(c) EERRBH)

(i) EBEEREGE)

B W R FEN 15 (4E)
FEHEET - R2019F3A31HK
20184 A1 B (REME B ISIREE
RIZEOSEE B BSEREETENT

0-30 days
Current  past due
il
1 April 2018
2018%4A1H ) ]
Gross carrying amount REEE 741,911 86,890
Loss allowance BEEE (686) (48)

Over
31-60 days 61-90 days 91-180 days 180 days
pastdue  pastdue pastdue pastdue Total
31608  61-908 91-1808 #iB180A @it
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
BETn A%Tn  A¥Tn  B¥Tn AT
32,034 1,005 2,603 3241 818,157
(63) (2) (8) (1,727) (3,442)
Over
3160 days  61-90days 91-180days 180 days
pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue
61-90H
HKD'000
7,697 1,509 8,609 2,171 848,787
(5) (1 (4) (939) (1,683)

Information about the reconciliation of closing loss allowance
for trade and bills receivables as at 31 March 2019 reconcile
to the opening balance was included in Note 18(d).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade and bill receivables (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan
with the Group.

Loss allowance on trade and bills receivables are presented
as net loss allowance in the consolidated income statement.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the same line item.

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade and bills
receivables is set out in Note 2.11.

Other financial assets at amortised cost
Other financial assets at amortised cost include deposits

and certain other receivables. These financial assets are
considered to be low credit risk primarily because historically
they had no history of default and the debtors had a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term. No loss allowance were provided as at 31 March
2019 and 1 April 2018.

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its working capital requirements through
a combination of funds generated from its operations and
bank borrowings. The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and have sufficient available
funding through committed credit facilities to meet its
working capital requirements. The directors believe that the
Group has maintained sufficient general banking facilities
for financing capital commitment in the near future and for
working capital purposes.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of HK$466,436,000 (2018: HK$450,125,000)
and trade and bills receivables of HK$814,715,000 (2018:
HK$848,787,000), respectively, that are expected to readily
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.
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3.1
(d)

182

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The tables below analyse the Group's non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

The analysis shows the cash outflow based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements, while
interest payments are computed using contractual rates.

3

3.1
(d)

R ERE s

MBRERERE)
mBELmE(E)
TRIRBHEEREA MDA BRI
HIRR - IARBE A B BRI D AT AN SR
FNTESREE - TREBESERA
HARMRAZINE < 1218 A N E Y
RSN EEREE  RESERR
FEWTEK -

% T BRI 1R B 5K Mk P S84 196 T 4R K
HIMBEERE - MABFRARE LF

EHY -

Within Between Between Over

1year 1and2years 2and5 years 5 years Total
—£ —Z@F “ZEE BBLF b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT AR BETT BB

As at 31 March 2019 12019%3A31A
Trade payables BAERER 378,379 - - - 378,379
Accruals and other payables [EAERRAMENTA 427,365 = = 5,549 432,914
Borrowings B 857,565 1,065,368 1,101,165 - 3,024,098
Bank interest payables FERRITFIE 80,414 63,758 32,720 - 176,892
1,743,123 1,129,126 1,133,885 5,549 4,012,283

As at 31 March 2018 1201853A31A
Trade payables EVRES 408,884 - - - 408,884
Accruals and other payables [Ex B R R AMEMN A 357,022 - - - 357,022
Borrowings B3 1,164,500 521,848 464,006 - 2,150,354
Bank interest payables ERTFIE 33,751 21,394 8317 - 63,462
1,964,157 543,242 472,323 - 2,979,722
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3.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

The following table presents the fair value hierarchy of the
Group's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value:

e R BRRME

3 HKRRERE@

3.2 AFEME
TRBEEESED TR TFETER
BEMTA - TRERRENT :

o EBRMBHHEREENAEMER
HIARFERE(E—R)

o  FMWMEIN - JEZEARE
%) sz (A ERE L) BR
MEBEEXBBENBARE(E=
) e

o  WIHREANEBEMHBENEE
kBB A& A BUR (R A A LR
BABUR) (E=/) -

TRENAREBEZATVEAENEE
RaBHRAFERR

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
o et E=8 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 March 2019 7201963 H31H
Assets BE
Insurance policy investments {REERE - - 76,130 76,130
Trade receivables BAFERT AEA
carried at FVOCI ZEATIERD
B SRR = - 356,206 356,206
As at 31 March 2018 R201853H31H
Assets EE
Insurance policy investments (R 25154 - - 66,631 66,631

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, there
were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities between
level 1, level 2 and level 3.

REE2019F & 2018F3A31 B ILF
BB F_HGmNFE=FEH
BEMEERBEEE -
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FEMBRRMEE

3.2

184

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an exchange or
dealer, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market are determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the investment is included in level 3.

The fair value of insurance policy investments that is not
traded in an active market and the Chief Financial Officer
determined its fair value based on the higher of cash
surrender value and fair value determinated by discounted
cash flow model. The significant unobservable inputs that
determine the fair value is cash surrender value, which
is contractually agreed upon entering into the insurance
contract.

The fair value of trade receivables carried at FVOCI is
determined using discounted cash flow. Future cash flow is
estimated based on the contractual amount, discounted at
quoted factoring rate with bank in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2019, if quoted factoring rate had been
50 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, there would have been approximately HK$540,000
unfavourably/favourably change on the fair value of the trade
receivables, carried at FVOCI.

3.2

BRERER @)

AFEMET(E)

F-ReMIA
EERMSEENSHIANATFE
BIERNEEANTISRESET - 4L
PERS K EHIEE R B ATk X 5 7 3R
B BZEEBRRERATRIER
MEMBETHMSERS - AT
B R AERMSE - REBMFEE
BEEMAMBSREARBRITEAE - &
ETRINAE—R -

BRI A
WIHNERMIGEENITESRTA
MR EENAGERMNEE o tEG
BERMEEMNAATREHTEBEME
Hig - RELCBEEBFEMET oW
TARAFEREHNEZHBERBGAER
ATEER  ZTRAGIAE 4 -

F=RELMTA
M—IE S HIBE N A B IEREA
EIRMIBEE - BIRRIRENASE =4 -

AU BRI EEMNREKREM
5 ERMBEREBERSMNBFORS
BEEBTEAFEMATRARSAE
BABERAFE BERFENEKR
FERERBABIBRARORSEE
HEBRTRBR A RIRER o

BAFEFAREMEEBAIIENE
FEBRERRFECRERRSRE
MEE - KRB REENEHNDHE
fleT - RBEBRITORPE LRI -

201943 A318 « WRKEX 7/
TERBOEEEL - AT A H M EHIREF
S IR ATER AR MR ERA
TR E ZEWERAFEK/LIRD
540,000 KN F, B N B H o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.2
The following table presents the changes in level 3

instruments for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

Insurance policy investments

e R BRRME

BREREREm

AFEMLF )
TRE5HE20194 2201843 A31
BIHFENSE=HTEEF -

RERE

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
As at 1 April w4818 66,631 56,796
Additions NE 12,321 9,434
Disposal k= (1,550) (350)
Reclassification adjustment HEREH
upon disposal DA (44) (16)
Fair value gain recognised to REMZEEA
other comprehensive income R A FERE (1,228) 767
As at 31 March M3A31H 76,130 66,631

There is no realised or unrealised gains or losses for the
year included in profit or loss for assets held at the end of
the year

Trade receivables carried at FVOCI/

BB B R KW RBENNFRAE
BEAABENFARAEE

BRFEFGAEMZ ERAZRE

2019 AONES]
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
As at 1 April »AA1H 407,164 =
Additions NE 4,461,994 -
Disposal HeE (4,513,115) -
Reclassification adjustment upon BIFERIE A FERTA
derecognition of trade receivables Hib2EWATIERNES
carried at FVOCI FEU BRI EFT D FR AR (29,531) =
Fair value change on trade receivables & F(EE A E At
carried at FVOCI 2EBRANE S
FEUER A R EEH 29,694 =
As at 31 March M3A31H 356,206 -
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e RBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Capital risk management
The Group’'s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholder and benefits
for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholder, return capital to
shareholder, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had a gearing
ratio of 87% and 59%, respectively. This ratio is calculated
as net debts (represented by bank borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents) divided by total equity. The gearing ratios
were as follows:

3

3.3

R ERE s

EXEBRER

AEEREREANBRA/RENEE
FELENRD  ETMAESESRRE
(el o o 23 H ) 25 A0 B A B A
& WHERREERNRBUREER

BT RE R IR BRI B 5 - [
REREER  BITHRREEEE
VAR A &7 o

REBEEBEERBLETERHEE
AR o PA20194F 20183 A31H -
REBEEBBLEDH A% K
59% ° s& Lt EILFEH; (RRITEFR
R RASEEY)RESEENE -
BEAGLERET

2019
20194

2018
20184
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Total borrowings (Note 23) ek EE (M3E23) 3,024,098 2,150,354
Less: Vo

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) Be MRS EEW(HEE20) (466,436) (450,125)
Net debt FER 2,557,662 1,700,229
Total equity 48R 2,924,173 2,869,682
Gearing ratio BEABHX 87% 59%

The increase in gearing ratio from 59% as at 31 March
2018 to 87% as at 31 March 2019 was primarily due to the
increase in net debt as a result of capital expenditure for
production facilities in Vietnam.

The Group has complied with all the relevant covenants
under the terms of borrowing facilities throughout the year
(2018: same).

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements as at 31 March 2019 (2018: same).

186

3.4

BEBEBENLXRMH2018F3A31THH
59% & INZE201943 A31 HH87% »
FEARBBEERENE AR E
BUFERSILM

AEERFANETERBEGKAT
HFTA B EE R (20184 « #ER) o

HiEemEERSMEE
MR2019F3A31H  BESHEEK
SRABEIRNEE - TR ITA
FRAAE T A MR (20184 ¢ 4
) e
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(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial
impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less cost to sell.
These estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. Write-downs of inventories are
recorded where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be realised. The identification of
write-downs requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and write-downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group's management determines the loss allowances
for trade receivables based on the assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. These assumptions and the
selection of inputs to the impairment calculation is based
on the customer’s past settlement pattern, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in note 3.1(c)(ii).
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(c)

(d)

188

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Vietnam. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
taxes based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred income tax assets and
income tax charges in the period in which such estimates
have been changed.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold.

4

(c)

(d)

FESTHEF R HE o)

PR RIRFER 1R
AEBEARER - T B RGrEMMRPT
B EETEHEHEGE  FEF
HERHAE - EEEEBBRREFR - F
DR M HITS R RRTIRERE
BEFEIEERR - AEBEREMG
EBBBNBEIINK - LB HIARE
REME - WZEETENKERIBE
BRRENARESE  ZEBSTE
1 E B R 0 B TR 18 BUR RE R IR
Y

EEEERRRAERRKERD G
A A AR S E I E R IR E R
B eRRBRETEREEER
MEBENREMSHEE - HMBEH
BHREASKIGET TR - MBRE
BT EARMFT IR ELTH
BREE RSB HAER

M- BERZENTFEAFH
REISREE
AEBEEEETEDE  BEEE
BETAERTES  FRnEEREH
WEER - ZEaT 0 AELUEE &)
BERIME - R MR R B B A (5
FHBELR AEE - WAt AR
BT RREHF AREYRBITEAS
BTTE) T oK MR o A AF HA e
FABEKEMAEANAE KD
A EIRERIgmTEsBm - i
WOR B B &M R E R sk IER
BEMEEE -

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥ZiREM(IZR)ERA A



(e)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects relating to the design and
testing of new or improved products are recognised as an
intangible asset when the technical feasibility and intention
of completing the product under development has been
demonstrated and the resources are available to do so,
costs are identifiable and there is an ability to sell or use the
asset that will generate probable future economic benefits.
Significant judgement is required in determining whether
the capitalisation of development costs is necessary.
Development costs that are recognised as assets are
amortised on the straight-line basis to reflect the pattern
in which the related economic benefits are recognised.
Development costs that do not meet the above criteria are
expensed as incurred.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are the Group’s chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the Executive Directors
for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

The Executive Directors review the performance of
the Group mainly from the product perspective. The
Group is organised into three segments engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of:

(i) Bras and intimate wear;
(i) Bra pads and other molded products; and
(i) Functional sports products.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of gross profit
of each segment, which is consistent with that of the
financial statements. Finance income and finance cost are
not allocated to segments, as this type of activity is driven
by the central treasury function, which manages the cash
position of the Group. Other information, as noted below,
is also provided to the Executive Directors. The revenue
reported to the Executive Directors is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated income statement.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong.
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FEMBRRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2#ERw@

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2019 are HE2019F3 A3 HILFERN D IS

as follows:

Bras and
intimate
wear

WER
BERAK
HK$'000
BET T

T

Bra pads
and other
molded
products

AR

BEER
HK$°000
BET T

Functional
sports
products
TEEES
BEm et
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT

Total

Total segment revenue D EBUA

(Recognised at (ME—EEER)

a point in time) 4,874,609 530,890 857,781 6,263,280
Gross profit/segment results ER,/ DEpELE 1,070,262 111,617 160,066 1,341,945
Other income and H AU A R Eoth a5 58

other gains, net 28,359
Distribution and selling DEMIEERY

expenses (155,329)
General and administrative — B RITHRAE

expenses (619,006)
Research and development B R

costs (205,070)
Finance income BB 1,316
Finance costs SR (90,182)
Profit before income tax B BT S BART R A 302,033
Income tax expense FriS B s (19,595)
Profit for the year FRER 282,438

Other segment item included in the consolidated income

FIAEZE2019F3A31 HIEFELHEAI

statement for the year ended 31 March 2019 is as follows: BHERNEMOEBEBNAT

ATAHERARNITE

Depreciation included in

cost of sales 173,345 40,449 31,269 245,063
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FEMBRRMEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZEER@
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2018 are HE2018F3A3N HILFEMN DI ¥4
as follows: W

Bra pads

Bras and and other  Functional

intimate molded sports
wear products products Total

WER RHRkEM IheelHES
BaAK  EEREM MEm et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT AT BT

Total segment revenue D Es AN A

(Recognised at (RNE—BF2IRER)

a point in time) 4,728,567 524,670 614,811 5,868,048
Gross profit/segment results ER, DEER 1,008,887 110,309 114,727 1,233,923
Other income and E A R B A a5 55

other gains, net 21,760
Distribution and selling D MEERY

expenses (145,851)
General and administrative —BRITHFEX

expenses (578,594)
Research and development PN

costs (195,920)
Finance income BITUA 625
Finance costs BT R AR (49,839)
Profit before income tax BTyl 286,104
Income tax expense FTEfAY (45,916)
Profit for the year FREF 240,188

Other segment item included in the consolidated income FIAEZE2018F3 A3 A LEFELRAI
statement for the year ended 31 March 2018 is as follows: RN EMOEBIEE AT
Depreciation included in SABERANTE
cost of sales 144,375 40,035 15,413 199,823
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SEIERM@
Revenue from external customers based on the destination BEZFEFEMNMEI S HINIEEE A
of the customers are as follows: W

2019 AONRS]
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
United States EJE| 3,040,918 3,163,539
The PRC i 786,826 612,704
Europe BOM 732,081 530,904
Hong Kong e 340,982 362,673
Japan SN 568,945 488,643
Korea B2 140,001 110,141
South-east Asia (Note a) R gn (fizEa) 261,009 195,858
South Asia (Note b) m 2 (Mi7Eb) 63,235 69,215
Others countries/regions (Note c) HMBER, i (Firc) 329,283 334,371
6,263,280 5,868,048
Notea: Includes Malaysia, Indonesia, Singapore, Philippines, Vietnam ffita: BIEFRAE - BNEEEE - 3
and Thailand. W FEERE - MERERE -
Note b:  Includes Bangladesh, Sri Lanka and India. fistb : BIEFEZMN - HEERRDE -
Note c:  Include Taiwan, Turkey, Australia, Colombia and others. itc: BIEAE - TEE BN - SFfmtbas
T EAh o
No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is BRI EEARRITESREEIHE
presented as they are not regularly provided to the Executive EXNHBEBENER  HLEZ5 5D
Directors. HEEN D EBERIDHNT
Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and AEENIERDEE(BRemTARR
insurance policy investments, of the Group are located in BIREINAIFA A T IR = 8

the following geographical areas:

2019 2018
201945 20184

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT TSR T

The PRC i 884,770 1,008,112
Hong Kong 5 47,234 55,220
Vietnam o] 3,688,888 2,715,019
4,620,892 3,778,351
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2&ER@®

An analysis of the Group’s major customers, each of which ZBEMAEE10% A EINEBURAR
accounts for 10% or more of the Group's external revenue, is AEEFEZELONWT ¢

as follows:

Customer Location Segments 2019 2018
BF g 2% 2019 20185

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB

Customer A ZEFA United States Bras and intimate wear I[EPSERE ORI 1,516,448 1,791,182
CustomerB &EFB Japan = Bras and intimate wear,  WEREEHAK -
molded products ERERK
and functional sports MEEESEER
products 1,289,564 915,185
As a practical expedient, no disclosure was made for the TERERT BRERABNEEAE
aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the RAFBHER —FHATELOMH—E
performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially 7 WR2019F3 A3 Bt ER A B E
unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2019 (2018: same), because MARBIT(HEBHHARBIT)BOEE
such performance obligations are part of contracts having an KR HERBRBIEL I TE (20184 « 48
original expected duration of one year or less. @) o

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET 6 HMWARHAWSFE

2019 AONRS]
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T PEHET T
Other income Hg A
Scrap sales income EEREMEEIRA 7,883 4,632
Government grants (Note) BB (M EE) 17,662 16,135
Others Hith 2,660 721
28,205 21,488
Other gains, net Htnl s F58
Gain on disposal of insurance policy HERBIREWR
investments 154 30
Gain on disposal of land use rights HE i AU = 242
154 272
28,359 21,760
Note: s -
The government grants obtained mainly represents technical innovation BARMBEZERIZAIFNED - BERMZSE
subsidies. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies YR RBEI TR RS -

attaching to these grants.
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e RBRRME

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

194

7 BMEIINMAX

2019 AONRS]
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Amortisation of leasehold land and land  F2E& + i [z + i {55 FA 2
use rights (Note 14) B (5E14) 6,943 6,071
Amortisation of intangible assets mILAESE
(Note 15) (fg5E15) 8,772 7,759
Auditor's remuneration ZEENEN S
- Audit services — 2 E RIS 2,900 2,700
— Non-audit services — IR 1,055 735
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BEMRETE
equipment (Note 13) (fF3E13) 339,242 260,643
Bank charges RITE A 3,599 3,250
Consumables FEM 217,324 150,526
Cost of inventories sold (Note 17) BEEFEMA(FIEE17) 2,320,360 2,165,994
Loss allowance of trade receivables B S REWREIBEE
(Note 18) (Mf3E18) 1,759 -
Donations B/ 1,036 1,108
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8)  {EEEFIBIS (MI3F8) 2,420,718 2,383,902
Freight and transportation expenses BENERRAYT 70,609 53,266
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME  BE NRE
plant and equipment LA B 4 b {57 FR 4
and land use rights (Wz),E5tE (1.421) 13,357
Operating lease rental of land and T REFLEHERS
buildings 98,174 96,514
Utilities NARD 141,149 136,327
Others Hi 268,521 272,338
Total cost of sales, distribution and HEKA ~ DiER
selling expenses, general and HEMX  —MK&
administrative expenses and TR ST IA K&
research and development costs TR A 4858 5,900,740 5,554,490

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥ZiREM(IZR)ERA A
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(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

8

e R BRRME

E)ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁi(@%%%@ﬂ

2019
20194

2018
20184
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances T & - %% - JE4T =R, 2,092,286 2,098,895

Retirement benefit costs — defined RINEFIKA —E&E
contribution schemes (Note (a)) HIEFEI (5T (@) 235,025 212,787
Staff welfare and benefits 8 TREH &FIZE 93,407 72,220
2,420,718 2,383,902

Retirement benefit costs — defined contribution
schemes

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group’s
and the employees’ contributions were subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 on monthly basis and thereafter contributions are
voluntary.

The Company's subsidiaries in the PRC and Vietnam are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the local governments. The Group contributes
a certain percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’
employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the
annual contributions. The state-managed retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees.

FERE2018/19 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

(a)

RAKBRIAR A — E K E

AEBELZHEBTERESMBHIER
EeEtE([aE2tE])  BESF
AMBIUXTEAETENE NG
2 - RIBRBEEEE - AEERHE
EXAEAREEAS(ERRBRHIE
REEED) 5% MaTEIE LK - &
SENEESENEAHRLERRE
#1,5007C - BHZESEOHRAS
1EBRRIEHK -

AR R B R e O BT R B9 B
B BAEENBRE B RNEFE
WK E - AEBRMBARIESH
EW—EAALER - BFEEHRK
S - B R B IR SR K2 FOR KR
BNABE—FEE - BREERIAK
AEAEMRKEEXNEIRAKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

(b)

196

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

(Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include five (2018: five) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in

Note 33.

FINANCE COSTS, NET

(b)

EERABEZ(BREEEM
€)m

EEEREFAL
FRNAEERAGESTATEERS
(2018F : AR)EE - HFHBAWE
33D ATH B o

/B 9D

2019
20194

2018
20184
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Finance income 01 TN
— interest income on bank deposits —SRITIERF BUA 1,316 625

Finance costs TR A
— interest expense on borrowings —ERHR B (85,526) (44,706)
— factoring interests and charges —RIEF B NEH (29,531) (21,512)
(115,057) (66,218)

Less: interest expenses capitalised B ABERBEENERNE

on qualifying assets (Note) R () 24,875 16,379
(90,182) (49,839)
Finance costs, net B PR AN 558 (88,866) (49,214)

Note:

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs
to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the
Group's general borrowings during the year, which is 3.6% per annum

(2018: 2.7%).

Wi

FEET B TEARERKASEHEN R
BERNEE—RAETER O IETHFIR
BEE3.6% (20185 : 2.7%) °

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiBIFR(ZER)ERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 SUBSIDIARIES

10

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

March 2019:

Issued and fully
paid share
capital/
registered capital

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity

e R BRRME

B S 2 =

TRAN2019F3A31HNEBHEA
Ej :

Effective
interest
held (%)

s
BRER
(B2L)

Principal activities and
place of operation

BN

Directly held by the Company

ANBEERE

Regina Miracle International
(Holdings) Limited

HUREIR(ER)BERAA

Indirectly held by the Company

AARBEREE

Regina Miracle International
(Group) Limited

HURER(EE)ARRA

Regina Miracle International
Limited
“Y BB AR AT

Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited
BREZEARRINERAT

Honour First (Hong Kong)
Limited
ER(ER)BRAF

Regina Miracle (Shenzhen)
Limited
HURAR(RINERRA

MR R BETRBR
rEERER A, FEME R
British Virgin Islands, US$100
limited liability 100%7T
company
RBERUES
BREART
Hong Kong, limited HK$5,000,000
liability company 75 #£5,000,0007C
"S- ABREAAT
Hong Kong, limited HK$100
liability company BE1007T
"S- ABREAEAT
The People’s Republic HK$300,000,000
of China (the "PRC"), ##300,000,0007C
limited liability
company
AR LME
(e -
BREART
Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000
liability company 7510,0007C
B BREFAT
The PRC, limited liability ~ HK$20,000,000
company 78120,000,0007T

i BRELAT

FERE2018/19 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

100%
100%

Investment holding
in British Virgin Islands
REBRZHESETRERER

100%
100%

Trading of brassieres and
panties, and functional
sports products
in Hong Kong

REABEEWE KA
PARIhaE i iE B R E @

100%
100%

Trading of bra pads and
other molded products
in Hong Kong

REBE R X
HiRBER

100%
100%

Manufacturing of brassieres
and panties, and
functional sports products
in the PRC

R B A EE B K A
PARINsE BB EE R

100%
100%

Provision of sales agency
and information
technology services
in Hong Kong

REBREHERER

= B RITAR

100%
100%

Manufacturing of bra
pads and other molded
products in the PRC

R B A E T K
HiEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

10 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10 WE’Z\\E(,%:)

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity

LA S i 2 R

Issued and fully
paid share
capital/
registered capital

ERTRAR

Effective
interest

held (%)
s

B ED

Principal activities and
place of operation

EREBRR

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Limited
BB (B BRAR

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Limited
BB (B BRAR

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Co., Ltd

Regina Miracle International
(Vinh Phuc) Co., Ltd

Regina Miracle International
Hung Yen Co., Ltd

Regina Miracle International
Group (Suzhou) Limited
#Y P B R (BN ) AR AR

Regina Miracle International
Group (Suzhou) Limited
#Y P B R (BN ) AR AR

Regina Miracle Management
Limited
BV REBERAT

EERRER

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

REBRLES -
BREERT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
EE  AREERA

Vietnam, limited liability

company
- AREEAR

Vietnam, limited liability

company
- AREEAR

Vietnam, limited liability

company
- AREEAR

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

REBRLES -
BREERT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
FE  AREERA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
7R ABREAATR

B/ EREAR
us$2
2%

HK$10,000

#1#10,0007C

US$625,600,176
625,600,176% 7T

US$5,788,451
5,788,4513 7T

US$11,100,566
11,100,5663 7T

us$2

2%

HK$1

BT

HK$1
BEIT

(A2t)
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥ZiREM(IZR)ERA A

EEBN
Investment holding

in British Virgin Islands
RRBRLHSETIRERR

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REBEITRERR

Manufacturing of brassieres
and panties in Vietnam

REEEENE R AR

Manufacturing of brassieres
and panties in Vietnam

REEEENE R AR

Manufacturing of semi-
finished goods in Vietnam

Investment holding
in British Virgin Islands
RRBR LB SETIRERR

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REBEITRERR

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REBETRERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group is eligible to
nominate one Hong Kong incorporated entity in the Group
to be chargeable at the two tiered profits tax rates, whereby
profits tax will be chargeable on the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits at 8.25% and assessable profits above
this threshold will be subject to a rate of 16.5%. Hong Kong
profits tax of other Hong Kong incorporated entities in the
Group has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits. For the year ended 31 March
2018, Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the
rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits.

The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
is 256% (2018: 25%) for the year ended 31 March 2019.

According to a policy promulgated by the State Tax Bureau
of the PRC and effective from 2008 onwards, enterprises
engaged in research and development activities are entitled
to claim ranging from 150% to 175% of the research
and development expenses so incurred in a period as tax
deductible expenses in determining its tax assessable
profits for that period (“Super Deduction”). Regina Miracle
Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company, has applied such Super Deduction during the
year.

The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietnam were
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 20% (2018:
20%). In accordance with the applicable tax regulations, a
subsidiary is subject to a lower tax rate of 10% for fifteen
consecutive years, commencing from the first year of
making revenue. In addition, the subsidiary is entitled to full
exemption from corporate income tax for the first four years
from the earlier of (i) the year when profit is generated for
the first time or (ii) the fourth year of making revenue; and
a 50% reduction in corporate income tax for the next nine
years.

FERE2018/19 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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e R BRRME

Fri8Himx

HZE2019F3A31HILEE - NEEA]
REAEERNESR —HEBFMAZ
FERZFSHMAHBHR  mass
2E BT E R R R FI H158.25% Fi R
BAFIBHE - BBZKFEHRERD G
FEIE16 6% R EHAN - REEMANE
BB ML BN EEFSRM
T EH FE AR AR % A% 16.5% B = 5142 B
o BE2018F3A3NALFE + &5
FIB IR A R R A #916.5% Bt
KRR -

HZE2019F3A31HILFE  KEE
BB A AR E AR 525% (2018
F 1 25%) o

MR I% A B B R B 75 42 B B AR 46 B 2008
FRARN—EBER - REWEEH
O 1b 3 75 #E 7E 5 E HARE B SR B A A B
19z BB EAERNERZ N T150% 2
175% %3 [E N R R R A R F08 R S ([
HIEM]) - ARRAIMNBRARESREY
ALK CRI) BRA R R ERIER
FZAREEARIN -

R R IEERME A FAE20%
(20184 : 20% ) WIFE R SN 2 P15
o BEBEBHIEER  —HWEEBEA
AR EFREETAFREER
E10% MM o to - BOEERMNE
FHMELEBRANENF (BREER
B)EAENERN - ZMBRAREES
HRRBMEEMBH  WRERN
FARNZE0%CEMESHIRR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 FEHRREX@
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income ERFERERTINGRNHESEN
statement represents: T

200

2019
20194

2018
20184
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Current income tax BUERFRISBE

— Hong Kong profits tax —BEFEH 18,416 19,857
- PRC enterprise income tax — R EMEH 1,249 27,391

Over-provision in prior years RiBE FIEBERE (307) (1,171)
Deferred income tax (Note 24) EEFTEHL (M 5E24) 237 (161)
Income tax expense Fris i sz 19,595 45,916

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the group
companies as follows:

7R 2 BB BT 15750 A 1 10 750 TR B R A
B A5 B A R ) Y I a5 7 K
SHAERSENERNT

2019 AONRS]
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before income tax KR ETIS R A F 302,033 286,104
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate R AR EE e AR
applicable to profits in respective St A BB A B R E
jurisdictions mFiE 38,283 48,876
Tax effects of: M E
Income not subject to tax AR AIA (712) (1,073)
Super Deduction HBEBRIN (28,797) (10,285)
Expenses not deductible for taxation AAHB AL
purpose 12,574 10,169
Utilisation of previously unrecognised  EhfA LRI ER A FLIBE B
tax losses (1,446) (2,462)
Tax losses for which no deferred I R RIR TS
income tax asset was recognised BEMTBEEE - 1,862
Over-provision in prior years IR F E B R (307) (1,171)
Income tax expense FiSHiFX 19,595 45,916

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year ended
31 March 2019 was 12.7% (2018: 17.1%). The decrease
is primarily due to change in the profitability of the Group's
subsidiaries in Vietnam which entitled to preferential tax
rate.

HE2019F3A31HIEFE - s
FHBEABMEAE127% (2018 F :
17.1%) ° ZEIEEZRRARER A
BEMENMENBRANRF A

BBV o

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiBIFR(ZER)ERAA
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(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 SRER
Basic (a) EZFR
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit SHRERNBFIIZANTES AEL S
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted TR AF AR BT @A INEF S8
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. =tE o
2019 AONRS]
20194 20184
Profit attributable to owners of RNATEB NEL T
the Company (HK$'000) (B¥Fe) 282,438 240,188
Weighted average number of BB TE AN T8
ordinary shares in issue ('000) (F5) 1,224,250 1,224,250
Basic earnings per share (expressed BRREARZF
in HK cents per share) (AFRGBILE5) 23.1 19.6
Diluted (b) #%
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March HE2019F K2018F3 A31HILF
2019 and 2018 are the same as the basic earnings per share B BARTERITEEE ST AR
as there were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued. HGRESE BN FREIRERAR]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 W¥ - - BMEKRE
Leasehold Plantand ~ Office furniture  Computer Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  machinery  and fixtures  equipment vehicles i progress Total
HARAR
EE  HENREE  HERER ke SRR i hRIE it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000
AETT AT ABTT AT EEIT AT T AETT
Asat 1 April 2017 H0E4R1R
Cost WA 32893 1102014 1186409 172919 123937 31,083 720039 367924
Accumulated depreciation gl [17377) (361,287) (547,607) (19.772) (66,022) (17,586 - (1,089,651)
Net book amount BHTE 305,516 0,727 636,802 93147 57,915 13497 720039 2589683

Yearended 31 March 2018 BZ001853A31ALLER

Opening net book amount EEESE 35,516 140,721 638,802 93147 57915 13,497 720,039 2589643
Additions e 100413 102,652 435,043 78587 15951 6,589 317470 1,056,705
Disposals e - (12,868) (1,911 - [ (136) - 14,962
Transfer-inflout) g)/(t) 402,585 168960 2506 %903 10,768 - (621,762 -
Depreciation Vi (27,660) (80,995) 95,134) (33,008) (18,293 (4,340) (1213) (260,643
Curency translaton differences  S%4%Z£E pis 2088 26,559 1588 1207 209 (859) 113%
Closing net book amount EXEETE 801,138 941,360 1,005,885 171231 67,501 15819 405,938 3414878
Asat 31 March 2018 201838318
Cost A 847450 1392573 1,650,111 292,136 104,997 34829 407151 4779247
Accumulated depreciation ZiffE 46,312) 451,213) (644 226) (114899 (87.496) (19,010 (1,213 (1,364,369
Net book amount e 801,138 941,360 1,005,885 1771231 67,501 15819 405,938 3414878

Yearended 31 March 2019 BZ201953B31ALLER

Opening net book amount ENEARE 801,138 941,360 1,005,885 a1 67,501 15,819 405,938 3414878
Additions HE 40370 131,107 372,581 33,353 16,772 5,030 591,636 1,190,849
Disposals e - - (1,018) (263) (69) (589) - (1,939)
Transfer-n/out) g)/(t) 70,936 151919 1317 22131 m - (258,474) -
Depreciation i (37.890) (96,713) (117581) (55,925} 26,228) (4,905) - (339,242)
Currency translation differences  E4HEZE (16,215) (25,060) (35,168) (a0m) (1,019) (329) (1723) (90,491)
Closing net book amount EXEAFE 858,339 1,102,613 1,226,016 171,456 63,228 15,026 330 4,174,055
As at 31 March 2019 2019838318
Cost TS 942,140 1,637,228 1,958,831 345,320 169,861 31192 30 5,821,949
Accumulated depreciation ZiNE (83.801) (534,615) (732,815) (167,864) (106,633) (22,166) - (1,647,894
Net book amount FASE 858,339 1,102,613 1,226,016 171,456 63,228 15,026 33n 4,174,055
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥ BEERE®
(Continued)
Depreciation expense charged in consolidated income RIFAEWERIIBRHOITERS T ¢

statement is as follows:

2019 AONES]
20195 2018%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Cost of sales HER A 245,063 199,823
General and administrative expenses — M RITHF XX 89,048 57,502
Research and development costs B A 5,131 3,318
339,242 260,643
14 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 14 HELHHR THFERE
RIGHTS
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights AEB R E i [ £ i (55 FA A9 4
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net w= (AN EHEHE REERF
book values are analysed as follows: B)DFIT :

2019 AONRS]

2019 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

Opening net book amount FEmFEE 301,554 244,683

Additions NE 5,153 77,109
Disposals HeE (41,706) (13,013)
Amortisation (Note 7) BaE(fiEE7) (6,943) (6,071)
Currency translation differences EEmE =R (5,769) (1,154)

Closing net book amount FREMEEE 252,289 301,654

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

As at 31 March R3A31H

Cost BN 273,015 317,639
Accumulated amortisation ety (20,726) (16,085)

252,289 301,554
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is included THE i 2 4t AREE T ALS

in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement. W R A SHE R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 BELEE
Computer
software
B4
HK$'000
T
As at 1 April 2017 7R20175F4818
Cost FRAR 70,275
Accumulated amortisation Sty (25,193)
45,082
Year ended 31 March 2018 BIZE2018F3A31ALFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 45,082
Additions INE 6,276
Amortisation feii3ast (7,759)
Currency translation differences BERBREERS 1,153
Closing net book amount FAREmFE 44,752
As at 31 March 2018 72018%3H31H
Cost (BN 78,304
Accumulated amortisation S i (33,652)
44,752
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE£2018F3A31HLEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 44,752
Additions NE 14,506
Amortisation 5 (8,772)
Currency translation differences EEME (816)
Closing net book amount FAREmIFE 49,670
As at 31 March 2019 1201963 A31H
Cost (BN 91,547
Accumulated amortisation Rt (41,877)
49,670
Amortisation of intangible assets is included in general B AEBHET NG RERN—RK
and administrative expenses in the consolidated income RATHRI ©
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

16 INSURANCE POLICY INVESTMENTS 16 RERE
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Insurance policy investments REEIZE 76,130 66,631
Movement of the insurance policy investments is as follows: RERENESHNOT -

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At beginning of the year REF) 66,631 56,796
Additions NE 12,321 9,434
Disposals HE (1,550) (350)
Reclassification adjustment upon HEREHHEAER
disposal (44) (16)
Fair value (loss)/gain recognised to RE b 2 AR
other comprehensive income ANTAE(FER), e (1,228) 767
End of the year REXR 76,130 66,631
As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the carrying amounts M2019F K 2018F3A31H + {REK
of the insurance policy investments represented the ARAEEEEAFE(HNFES2)EE
cash surrender value of the insurance policies which HERRIREEE o

approximates their fair values (Note 3.2).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

16 INSURANCE POLICY INVESTMENTS

(Continued)

The insurance policy investments are denominated in the
following currencies:

16 REKRE )

REBREATINEEEIIE :

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BETT

US$ E 37,160 31,761
HKS FEHE 38,970 34,870
76,130 66,631

17 INVENTORIES

17 FE

2019 2018

20195 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Raw materials R #4 406,830 365,713
Work-in-progress EER 377,482 363,675
Finished goods Rk 112,188 100,221
896,500 829,609

Less: provision for impairment R E R (2,604) (2,648)
Inventories, net FEFE 893,896 826,961

The costs of raw materials recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately
HK$2,320,360,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$2,165,994,000).

HZE2019F3A31HILFE - #HRAH
AW ET S B AN B R M BB AR K A
75 #52,320,360,000 7T (20184 « /& #
2,165,994,0007T) °
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18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R BRRME

18 EZRUWERRKEWRRE

2019 AONES]
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trade receivables B SRR
— carried at amortised cost — RS AT BR 461,951 848,084
— carried at FVOCI — AT EFTAEAM
Z2HEWATIER 356,206 L
818,157 848,084
Bills receivables FEWEE - 703
818,157 848,787
Less: loss allowance of trade B B SRR
receivables BB RS (3,442) =
814,715 848,787

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables
approximate their fair values.

As at 31 March, the ageing analysis of trade and bills (a)
receivables based on invoice date were as follows:

B 5 W R B N R W R B e BR T B £
HAFERE -

M3A31R - BEZREIRR M ERRE
RIBH R BT E MR T -

2019 2018

20195 20184F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

0-30 days 0230H 424,158 556,359
31-60 days 31£60H 230,609 150,229
61-90 days 61290H 119,813 110,292
Over 90 days @90 H 43,577 31,907
818,157 848,787

The credit period granted by the Group is generally 30 to
120 days. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

AEEREMERE & A30E120
B o AEEIWESE TR IEE
1R e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

208

As at 31 March, the carrying amounts of trade and bills
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

18

(b)

EZRWERARERRERE

(#&)

M3A31A - BHEURR M ERFE
MEREEN T IIEEEHE

2019 2018
20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

us$ T 677,562 680,533
HK$ ok 6,178 9,885
RMB AR 130,940 158,329
EUR BT 35 40
814,715 848,787

As at 31 March 2019, included in the Group's trade
receivables were amounts due from a related party of
approximately HK$7,857,000 (2018: HK$4,799,000) (Note
30(c)).

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Note 2.2 (b)
(i) and note 3.1 provides for details about the calculation of
the expected credit loss and credit risk exposure.

The closing loss allowance for trade and bills receivables
as a 31 March 2019 reconcile to the opening balance as
follows:

(c)

(d)

M2019%3A31H » Est AKREEH
B o RINERET R B — B RE A A
#4975 ¥ 7,857,000 7T ( 2018 FF : B ¥
4,799,0007T) (Ff7E30(c)) °

R AEL N [ B
AEEREABEEVBREELEIR
BOAFF ERMEERR  ElfA
B 5 RUWR T E A TR a8
1 o MEE2.2(0) (i) B2 P RE3. 1 SR B REAT
HEMEEERREERRIFSE -

201963 A31 HME 5 EUER K X I

WER BN FRE BB ERFEBRD
HERIT

HK$'000

As at 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and
1 April 2018 — calculated under HKAS 39

Amount restated through opening

BET T

M201754818 ~ 2018F3A31A &
2018F4 818 —RESELFT £
E395RETE

BBFEVREBMNEY 8 (Mi5E2.2)

retained earnings (Note 2.2) 1,683
Opening balance as at 1 April 2018 R2018F4 81 HFEWEH—

— calculated under HKFRS 9 BIEBE B R EERERAE 1,683
Increase in loss allowance recognised FRRIE TR EIE R L M

in profit or loss during the year 1,759
As at 31 March 2019 M2019%F3A31H 3,442
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

19 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 19 BE - - AAREREME
RECEIVABLES W KIE
2019 AONES]
20195 2018%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Non-current portion FEREE D

Rental, utilities and other deposits e ARARBEEEMIRS 9,024 6,224

Prepayments for purchase of BEME - BEREE
property, plant and equipment BIE N RIE 73,997 10,422

Prepayments for purchase of BEHEETR
leasehold land and land use rights T PR TR SRR 60,601 =
Other prepayments E A B FRIE 1,256 521
144,878 17,167
Current portion FEEBD

Rental, utilities and other deposits e RERBLEEMZS 3,819 4,268
Value-added tax recoverable A] U Bl 32 (E T - 12,992
Other prepayments H b TE(5RIA 30,371 18,001
Other receivables H b FE U RIA 47,319 12,038
81,509 47,299
226,387 64,466
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

19

20

210

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables do not contain
impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayment and other
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

19 2 - EAREREME
W TR IE ()

BeREMEBUKBENREERELR
FEMRE ©

B BNFRREAMERFRL T
BREBEEE -

RiE AHARENRREERR S
EXRERONZERKFANERE
AEE W ES B T E AR IERTER -

B - BNFRREAMERFRR R
EENA TSR E

2019 2018
20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEET T BT T

CHF BRARRR 32,581 -
us$ T 30,486 631
HKS ok 30,827 15,270
RMB AR 10,670 29,468
VND HWrEfE 121,823 19,097
226,387 64,466

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20 HERBEEEEY

2019 AONRS]

20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEET T BT

Cash at bank RITHRE 465,977 449,679
Cash on hand FHEAe 459 446
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZED 466,436 450,125
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 20 RERAESEEY @)
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following Be MReEEMUATIEBE -
currencies:

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
RMB AREE 140,335 120,304
HK$ otecd 98,822 185,295
uss E 224,329 118,372
VND HEE 2,287 25,613
EUR BT 455 473
Others Hib 208 68
466,436 450,125
Note: ML -
Cash and cash equivalents of HK$140,216,684 (2018: HK$119,714,000) Be MR ESEYHE140,216,684 7T (2018
and HK$8,532,074 (2018: HK$44,851,000) are held in the PRC and 4 B #119,714,0007T) K 76 #8,632,074 7T
Vietnam, respectively as at 31 March 2019. They are subject to local (20184 : ##44,851,0007T) 5 B 201943
exchange control regulations. Those local exchange control regulations ATERHBIRSERE - ZEREHLTEH
provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the country concerned, SNEERIEHIRE - ZZEHINETIRIEHIR
other than through normal dividends. TEBEBAREARLOMREY - MIEBBEED
AIPBR ) ©
21 SHARE CAPITAL 21 B&
Number of
shares Share capital
IRnER B [N
(thousands) HK$'000
(F) BT T
Authorised EE
As at 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and 7201744818 - 2018F &
2019 201943 H31H 50,000,000 3,875,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
Ordinary shares at US$0.01 each SREE0.O1ZETLME AR
As at 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and 7201744818 - 2018F &
2019 201943 H31H 1,224,250 95,247
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

22 RESERVES

Share
premium

RitEE
S0

Statutory
surplus
reserve

(Note(i))

EERH
G
HK$'00£)

22 f#E

Insurance
policy
investments
reserve

fRE
RERfE
HK$000

Trade

receivables

at FVOCI

reserve
BT
Ak

Exchange
reserve

2ARAN

BN
BREE
HK$000

MNERE
HK$000

Retained
earnings

REEA
HK$'000

AT BBTn  BETR BETT  BET

As at 1 Aprl 2017 H2E4F1E 170699 4861 240 - BB BI0012 2548
Profit for the year ERRH - - - - - 240188 240,188
Currency translation differences EuphEzE - - - - 69,763 - 69,763
Fair value gain on insurance RERANTENE

policy investments - - 767 - - - 767
Reclassification adjustment upon HERELER

disposal of insurance policy ENAEAR

investments - - (16) - - - (16)
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTETRE - 11,288 - - - 11,288) -
Dividends (Note 27) T8 (BE27) - - - - - (61,212) (61.212)
As at 31 March 2018 201838318 1,705,969 55,149 2991 - 32,526 977,700 2,774,335
As at 1 April 2018 R201854 418

as originally presented (B%25) 1,705,969 55,149 2,991 - 32,526 971,700 2,774,335
Change in accounting policy Note 22) ~ &BREEH(fE2.2) - - - (1,309) - (1,683) (2,99
As at 1 April 2018 as restated R201854 A1 (RES) 1,705,969 55,149 2,991 (1,309) 32,526 976,017 2,771,343
Profit for the year il - - - - - 282438 282438
Currency translation differences EmpEES - - - - (133151) - (133191)
Fair value loss on insurance RERELNTEFE

policy investments - - (1,228) - - - (1,228)
Reclassification adjustment upon HERELER

disposal of insurance policy EFipEchtd

investments - - (44) - - - (44)
Fair value change on trade receivable  RATMET AL

carried at FVOCI 2ERATIENES

EUEFATELS = - - 29,694 - - 29,694

Reclassification adjustment upon BRIHERRLFE AL

derecognition of trade receivables  2EUNFIEHEHEL

carried at FVOC| BInE BaE = = = (29,531) = = (29,531)
Transfer to statutory reserve EREETRE - 9,837 - - - (9.837) -
Dividends (Note 27) T8 (27 - - - - - (90,595) (90,595)
As at 31 March 2019 #2019%3A318 1,705,969 64,986 119 (1,146)  (100,625) 1,158,023 2,828,926

Note: BisE
(i) Statutory surplus reserve (i) JETERBBEE

ERTRIBETFRSRMHE - RENTE
FEM A SZ 93 TP B X A ) AR A = A2 4
8] - B A BABET R ER R
MBI 0% W E AT Ml B
EREBERMAANE0% B o ZFHE
A] PR AT P E AR O S 1R o DA
pillEENY

The balance mainly represents statutory surplus reserve. In
accordance with articles of association of certain subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC, the subsidiaries are required to transfer
10% of the profit after taxation prepared in accordance with PRC
accounting standards to the statutory reserve until the balance
reaches 50% of the registered share capital. Such reserve can be
used to reduce any losses incurred and to increase share capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 BORROWINGS

e R BRRME

23 &K

2019 2018
20194 20184

HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Bank borrowings IRITER
Non-current JERED 2,166,533 985,854
Current TRE 857,565 1,164,500
3,024,098 2,150,354
Borrowings are analysed as follows: BRI

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current FEEE)
Portion of term loans due for P E2F R HEZER
repayment between 1 and 2 years TFHERED 1,065,368 521,848
Portion of term loans due for R2EBF | HREERN
repayment between 2 and 5 years TFHERED 1,101,165 464,006
2,166,533 985,854
Current Vi
Portion of term loans due for P1TFREHEER
repayment within 1 year TEHEZBS 66,667 361,264
Short-term bank loans MHEERITER 790,898 803,236
e 857565 1,164,500
3,024,098 2,150,354

As at 31 March 2018 and 2019, bank borrowings are
secured by corporate guarantees given by the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 March 2019, total undrawn bank facilities
amounted to approximately HK$1,731,532,000 (2018:
HK$2,406,528,000).

MR2018F KX 2019F3A31H » R1TE
FAARRARAAT L THERQRR
HE D RIER IR

M2019%3A318 » KIEEURITEE
48 FE 4 BV 1,731,532,0007T (2018
£ : #152,406,528,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

23 BORROWINGS (continued) 23 {%%k(,%i)

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated RITERARAERU TEERE ¢
in the following currencies:

2019 AONKS]
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
HK$ B 2,675,655 1,545,670
US$ ETT 348,443 573,530
Japanese Yen ("JPY") HE([BE]) - 31,154
3,024,098 2,150,354
As at 31 March 2019, the Group's borrowings bore floating M2019%3 A31H » REBMEFR
rates and the effective interest rate per annum was 3.6% HEREAE  MEBERENER3.6%
(2018: 3.1%). (20184 : 3.1%) °
24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 24 BEILEFEH
The movement on the deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) BEFSHERE (BB EFHNT :
is as follows:

2019 2018

20195 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At beginning of the year REY) (5,690) (5,851)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated (F0BR),FE AERE MR E R

income statement (Note 11) (PBF3E11) (237) 161

At end of the year RER (5,927) (5,690)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 24 EZEFREBw)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when REFMGBMEEMBBEREFEETH
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 24 1) S0 77 4 ) A BN ER R TR S AR B 84 AN
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income HMBBEaREREEEMSEH Y RE—
taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following B RE RS 3K 8E - T 2 BRI g K
amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown B ZHNGAEBEARGEK

in the consolidated balance sheet:

2019 AONES]
20195 2018%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Deferred tax assets BB E E = -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEE & (5,927) (5,690)
(5,927) (5,690)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are to be settled REMGHEAERABERERI12EA
after more than 12 months. 1BIENT o
The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and FA - EEFMSHREERBEEERN
liabilities during the year without taking into consideration FHH) (WA RRE—HKEEERA
of the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction HHEERRIEEE) T
are as follows:
Deferred income tax liabilities: EEFEHEE :

Accelerated tax
depreciation

MEBIBITE

HK$'000

BEET T

As at 1 April 2017 20174818 9,959
Credited to the consolidated income statement FrAGRE W R (3,759)
As at 31 March 2018 7201843 A31H 6,200
As at 1 April 2018 H2018F4H1H 6,200
Credited to the consolidated income statement FAZEWER (273)
As at 31 March 2019 R20193A31H 5,927
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FEMBRRMEE

24

216

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets:

24 EIEFRBH (@)
ELERBHREE -

Tax losses

HIEEE

HK$'000

BT IT

As at 1 April 2017 R2017F4H1H 4,108
Charged to the consolidated income statement SAZEAWER (3,598)
As at 31 March 2018 #R2018F3A31H 510
As at 1 April 2018 RK2018F4H1H 510
Charged to the consolidated income statement STAZEAWER (510)

As at 31 March 2019

MR201943A31H -

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$6,473,000 (2018: 7,919,000) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$39,232,000 (2018: 47,993,000) that can be
carried forward against future taxable income indefinitely.

As at 31 March 2019, deferred income tax liabilities of
approximately HK$26,507,000 (2018: HK$22,365,000)
have not been established for the withholding taxation that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of subsidiaries
in the PRC of approximately HK$530,130,000 (2018:
HK$447,307,000), as the directors considered that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences
can be controlled and the related temporary difference will
not be reversed and will not be taxable in the foreseeable
future.

MATRE BB AR ERBOEFEIN A
MIEMZmS @ MepEERERE

RIELEFMBREE - NEEILER
A 4 PR BB A5 62 LUK S R SR FE R B A
/&5 1878 1 39,232,000 7T (20184 : &
#47,993,0007T ) lERIELE TS E
E 516,473,000 7T (2018 4F : B
7,919,0007T) °

MR201943A318 r HREERA
BOABEREEENRMA TIE
FIREEESEEEETeRNT R
BRERY SRR ELAER
B {E#)78 #26,507,000 7T (20184 :
& # 22,365,000 7T ) I 7K gk B
BARIKELRFEMENHRIELD
7 530,130,000 70 (2018 : B
447,307,0007T) MHAEL °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

25 TRADE PAYABLES

As at 31 March, the ageing analysis of trade payables based

on invoice date were as follows:

B 5 ENIRM

M3A31R - BHEMEFIZER AL
SERRE DT

2019 2018

201945 20184

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

0-30 days 0%30H 202,472 242,922
31-60 days 31E60H 94,388 68,278
61-90 days 61Z90H 80,965 92,083
Over 90 days B3E90H 554 5,601
378,379 408,884

As at 31 March, the carrying amounts of trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

R3A31H - BHREMNERKREE N

THEEFHE

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

HK$ poted 90,372 142,003
USs$ ES 147,846 135,335
RMB N 44,405 52,014
VND MEE 85,212 78,531
EUR BT 10,536 991
Others Hib 8 10
378,379 408,884

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their

fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

26 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

26 EIFEAREMENRIE

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Non-current portion FERNEAEL 7
Other payables HAb R FRIE 5,549 -
5,549 -
Current portion BRERER
Accruals for wages, salaries, T #H& BIwWMAK
staff welfare and other related costs HEM iR AR EE R 167,651 180,878
Payable for factory rent [R5 TR & FE 1 SRR 13,407 12,283
Payable for purchase of property, BEEME  BEMERE
plant and equipment FEfRIE 69,100 95,470
Payable for purchase of intangible assets BB & & N 7008 = 198
Payable for construction in progress EETIRENTUE 269,429 159,396
Payable for purchase of leasehold land BB E 0  + (e A
and land use rights k1A = 21,546
Other payables H A fE A 87,407 86,149
606,994 555,920
612,543 555,920

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

FERHE A R E bR RIENRE AR

AT E¥EHE -

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T FEEET T
HK$ otecd 72,207 86,151
RMB AR 119,614 174,539
US$ ETT 48,618 75,795
VND MEE 372,104 219,435
612,543 555,920

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables FEEHE A K B 8 < RRIB B0 R T 8 B

approximate their fair values. HAFERE -

218

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiBIFR(ZER)ERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

27 DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend, paid of HK3.6 cents

B Hi RS E EAR

Hﬁz%\

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

(2018: HK2.5 cents) per ordinary share 3.6/80(2018%F :
2.57%8l) 44,073 30,606
Final dividend, proposed, of HK4.0 cents 2 :% R EIA% B FAL T @A%
(2018: HK3.8 cents) per ordinary share 4.0701(2018%F :
(Note (i) 3.8 ML) (B EE()) 48,970 46,522
93,043 77,128
Note: BieE -

(i) At a meeting held on 25 June 2019, a final dividend of HK4.0 cents
(2018: HK3.8 cents) per ordinary share of the Company, totalling
approximately HK$48,970,000 (2018: HK$46,522,000) for the
year ended 31 March 2019 is to be proposed. These consolidated
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

MR2019F6 A25 A |ITHEZE L - 1§
ERIKNEH E£2019F3A31 81L&
EHMRBEREAAR TR L EAAL0
HEAL(20184F : 3.8381l) - A XN BE
7 # 48,970,000 7T ( 2018 FF : 7 #&
46,522,0007T) ° ZEHRAMBREN
A IR R FE ST AR S, ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

28 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 28 REEKMBEE
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net (a) BRATEBHANERELEXEEE
cash generated from operations R FHENHER
2019 AONRS]
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Profit before income tax BR TS B A& T 302,033 286,104
Adjustments for: T
Amortisation of leasehold land and FE 44 R {5 F A
land use rights 5y 6,943 6,071
Amortisation of intangible assets BB ERE 8,772 7,759
Depreciation of property, Y - BEREEITE
plant and equipment 339,242 260,643
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEVE  BEK
plant and equipment and SRR LA R i {5 R A
land use rights (Wz),EiE (1,421) 13,115
Loss allowance of trade receivables B 5 IR BR B R B 1,759 -
Gain on disposal of insurance HERBRE R
policy investments (154) (30)
Finance income IR TN (1,316) (625)
Finance costs RS AR 90,182 49,839
746,040 622,876
Changes in working capital: LIiBESEE)
Inventories FE (103,817) (9,074)
Trade and bills receivables E S REBERR R ER SRR 20,448 (173,628)
Deposits, prepayments and other e BIIHRIER
receivables Hfth E YR IE (40,731) (6,802)
Trade payables B S EMNRR (26,334) 53,674
Accruals and other payables fEEHE R R E A E R 4,008 42,838
Cash generated from operations BEEBMER® 599,614 529,784
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

28 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 28 REXEBMBRAESW
(Continued)
(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEVE - BERRZHEUAR T
equipment and land use rights ERENBRIE
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from REEBRERERY LEWE - K
disposal of property, plant and equipment and land use 5 Ko 5% A8 LA K - b (5 FR A B9 P 1S 3K 18
rights comprise: HRBeETEE
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Net book amount BREFE 43,645 27,975
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BEREEUR
and equipment and land use rights T fE W (BE) 1,421 (13,115)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - EMEEUR
plant and equipment and land use rights  +i{$ BRI FTSIE 45,066 14,860
(c) Net debt reconciliation (c) FEBHE
2019 AONES]
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEEY 466,436 450,125
Bank borrowings with variable ¥ BN EGT B EVIRTTER
interest rates
- repayable within one year —BAMERER (857,565) (1,164,500
- repayable after one year —FEREE (2,166,533) (985,854)
Net debt FETE (2,557,662) (1,700,229)
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FEMBRRMEE

28 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(c)

29
(a)

222

(Continued)

Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

(c) FEBHIRGE

Other assets —
cash and cash
equivalents

HiEE-
Beh
ReEEY
HK$'000
BT

Bank
borrowings
due within
1 year

1EPEIED
BT
HK$'000
BETTE

28 REEBFBREW

Bank
borrowings
due after

1 year

1414 B8t
BITHER
HK$'000
BETFT

Net debt as at 1 April 2017 M20175F4 71 BRFE 412,280 (877,289 (606,404)
Cash flows Rene 25,649 (287,211) (379,450)
Foreign exchange adjustment HNGE FHEE 12,196 - -
Net debt as at 31 March 2018 R201843 A31 AH)FETS 450,125 (1,164,500 (985,854)
Net debt as at 1 April 2018 M2018F4 A1 BRVFERE 450,125 (1,164,500) (985,854)
Cash flows Rene 25,513 306,935 (1,180,679)
Foreign exchange adjustment SN F 28 (9,202) - -
Net debt as at 31 March 2019 201943 A31 AH)FES 466,436 (857,565) (2,166,533)
COMMITMENTS 29 i
Capital commitments (a) EAREIE
2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Contracted but not provided for BEIH BN R E - WE
Property, plant and equipment KRB R B 292,668 302,856
Leasehold land and land use rights FTHE 3 & L fs A 46,996 49,989
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases of land and buildings
in Hong Kong, the PRC and Vietnam as follows:

e R BRRME

29 FEIE

(b) WEHERE
AEBRER - PEKBE L RE
FHAAREEEHERARRRER
BN RAEEIT

2019 2018

20194 2018%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Not later than one year BB —F 111,400 92,854
Later than one year and not later than HBR—F B TBARSE

five years 138,032 170,723

249,432 263,577

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control.

Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited (incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands) owns 57.78% of the Company’s
shares as at 31 March 2019 and is wholly owned and
controlled by Mr. Hung Yau Lit. In addition, Mr. Hung Yau
Lit directly holds 15.0% of the Company's shares as at 31
March 2019. The remaining shares are widely held. The
ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. Hung Yau Lit.

Name of related parties

RES A%

30 BELRS

il —T BRE W ERKEEEN = —71
RS IHEM B R EERRAR
EAFEN  AETHREREH
& o BT RAARE S RIS R
BRBRE -

#2019 3 A 31 B * Regent Marvel
Investment Holdings Limited (P& 5
RS MRS ) HE B AR B]57.78% 1
& WHENEE AR EHE RITH -
BESN - FA2019F3A31H -« HE R4
BEREBERATI5.0%EE - BTG
HREZHATIEE - AEESKIERF B
BN A o

Relationship with the Company
EAA TR

Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited

BRBH5(EB)ERAA

Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad Factory
(Shenzhen) Limited

T EEEBBRORY)ERAT

FERE2018/19 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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e RBRRME

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 30

(a) In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial (a)
statements, the Group has the following transactions with

related parties:

BELRXS @)
BEMBRE LM EGHRREEN -
AEEMBEE T RIS

2019 2018
20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

Sales of goods to a related party
— Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited

HEEMT —RES
—RBE5(EE)BRATR

BET T BT T

(Note) (B3 26,528 19,866
Rovyalty income from a related party RE—ZRE S B
ION
- Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited —RRE5(BA)ERAT
(Note) (B3E) = 359
Rental expense paid to a related party m—AREA R
AL
- Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad — 4 EEERRmORID
Factory (Shenzhen) Limited (Note) BIRAR (M) 17,750 17,809

Note:

The pricing of these transactions was determined based on mutual
negotiation and agreement between the Group and the related parties.

Mt -

HERSNEBEARBREETAEER
RIBHBEETE ©
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FEMBRRMEE

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BELIXRI @)
(Continued)
(b) Key management compensation (b) EEEEEHM
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances TE& - Hé& - fe4 2R 31,906 31,018
Retirement benefits costs RIREFIR A
— defined contribution scheme — EREE R 387 388
32,293 31,406
(c) Year-end balances with a related party (c) E—ERAEFMNFRER
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Name of a related party —BBETNAE
Trade receivables: B S EWER -
— Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited —SBE G (BB)BRAT
(Note) (M7%) 7,857 4,799
Note: PifE -
The trade receivables due from a related party are unsecured, interest- EW—ZRETNE SRR AEIRE - ¢
free and with credit terms of 60 days. EREESAG0R -
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e RBRRME

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

As at 31 March 2019, the Group held the following financial

instruments:

31

RER S ENEMTA
?

2019%F3A318 * "&EERE e

BTA:

2019
20194

HK$'000
BT T

2018
20184
HK$'000
BT T

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets carried at FVOCI BAHERFAEMEE
WATBRR & BV E B
— Trade receivables — B SRR 18 354,707 -
Financial assets carried at RSP ARSI BRI
amortised cost CREE
— Trade and bills receivables — B SRR R
FENE 18 460,008 848,787
- Deposits and other receivables —Re R HEMEWRE 19 60,162 22,530
- Cash and cash equivalents —HeRREZEEBY 20 466,436 450,125
1,341,313 1,321,442
Financial liabilities = A =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  #&ZEE 4k AN EHE 1Y
THAERE
— Borrowings — &% 23 3,024,098 2,150,354
— Trade payables —E ZEMER 25 378,379 408,884
— Accruals and other payables —JEETE R R EA
FER FRIA 26 432,914 357,022
3,835,391 2,916,260

AEEHESH T ARBARENS
AR RS2 A o RIS HR
AERENBAEERR A LA ES
BMEEMKRMEE

The Group’'s exposure to various risks associated with
the financial instruments is discussed in Note 3.2. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
mentioned above.
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FEMBRRMEE

32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 32 ARFEEABRERE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY =)
Balance sheet of the Company AAREEEER
2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FREBEE
Interest in a subsidiary R—EK B AR M ER 510,724 510,724
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e TAfRIEREM
receivables U R TE 182 342
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUCHT B A RIZIE 1,342,509 1,312,550
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRBEEEEY 383 217
1,343,074 1,313,109
Total assets EEHAE 1,853,798 1,823,833
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners AAREE AEMLER
of the Company
Share capital f& s 95,247 95,247
Reserves (it (a) 1,755,780 1,726,055
Total equity RERBE 1,851,027 1,821,302
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals and other payables EEtER R EMER
A 2,689 2,525
Current income tax liabilities BNEAF SR A G 82 6
2,771 2,531
Total liabilities BEH8E 2,771 2,531
Total equity and liabilities EEREEEE 1,853,798 1,823,833
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FEMBRRMEE

32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 32 ANREEEBERERE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) = [E))
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) AATFEEH
Share premium Retained
(Note) earnings Total
BB RE
(%) RERF #Er
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEET T BET T BT T
As at 31 March 2017 7201743 H31H 1,705,969 34,038 1,740,007
Profit for the year F X% | - 47,260 47,260
Dividends (Note 27) A2 (fEE27) - (61,212) (61,212)
As at 31 March 2018 20183 H31H 1,705,969 20,086 1,726,055
Profit for the year FERNm - 120,320 120,320
Dividends (Note 27) A% 8 (HI7E27) - (90,595) (90,595)
As at 31 March 2019 74201943 H31H 1,705,969 49,811 1,755,780
Note: BieE
The share premium of the Company is available for distribution to the KRB EEARERRELSIK - ATRA
shareholders of the Company, provided that immediately following the REBREEZDRKEBH%Z - AQRAEER
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed the Company BEBBER I HNET -

will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.
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FEMBRRMEE

33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 33 EZ=RZNREZR

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive HZE2019F3A31HILFEGREER
for the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out below: SERITERA B ENE S 0T ¢

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FRERALEAEZ (FRARDASHNEA DY) ENAERNHE

Employer's
contribution
Discretionary Housing to retirement
Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses  allowances schemes Total
Bxps EEZENN
e Ei BtEta EERE e b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT BETT BT
Executive directors HITEE
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY S (X 4 iH2E)

Hung) (Chief Executive Officer) (& &#i77E) - 9,100 - - 54 9,154
Yiu Kar Chun Antony s - 2,981 200 - 36 3217
Sze Shui Ling Jidlissd - 2,21 200 - 36 2,507
Liu Zhengiang 2E% - 3,035 200 - 35 3,270
Chen Zhiping BRET - 2,403 200 - 35 2,638
Independent BUkHTES

non-executive directors
Or Ching Fai fgiE 399 - 120 - - 519
Tam Lai Man BEX 336 - 80 - - 416
To Wong Wing Yue Annie R 336 - 80 - - 416

1.071 19,790 1,080 = 196 22,137
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FEMBRRMEE

33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 33 EEfERERE

(Continued)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive HE2018F3A3NH I FEBREE R
for the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out below: SERITERA B ENE ST

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

FEEATREES( ‘ L NG ES R B Y Golh
Employer's
contribution
Discretionary Housing to retirement
Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses  allowances schemes
EE i ELRl
we T BiEEa FEEE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTT BT BETTT BETTT BETTT BT
Executive directors HITES
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY S (X & iH2E)

Hung) (Chief Executive Officer)  (E/E#i77E) - 9,100 - - 54 9,154
Yiu Kar Chun Antony sk - 2,867 260 - 36 3,163
Sze Shui Ling i85 - 2,184 234 - 36 2,454
Liu Zhengiang ZER - 2,923 262 - 35 3,220
Chen Zhiping BRET - 2,280 238 - 35 2,553
Independent BUkHTES

non-executive directors
Or Ching Fai TEE 380 - 120 - - 500
Tam Lai Man EEX 320 - 80 - - 400
To Wong Wing Yue Annie R 320 - 80 - - 400

1,020 19,354 1,274 - 196 21,844
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33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

No remunerations were paid or receivable in respect of
accepting office as directors during the year ended 31 March
2019 (2018: Nil).

No directors waived any emoluments during the year ended
31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

No emoluments were paid or receivable in respect of
directors’ other services in connection with the management
of affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking during
the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil). No consideration
was provided to or receivable by third parties for making
available directors’ services (2018: Nil).

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities (2018: Nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, none of the
directors received or will receive any retirement benefits or
termination benefits during the financial year (2018: Nil).

Except disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, no
director of the Company had a material interest, directly or
indirectly, in any significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to which
the Company was or is a party that subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2018: Nil).

e R BRRME

33 EEFEZRER @)

REZE2019F3A83MHILEE @ HE
T NE BB ok e U T 1A S B
(20184 : ) o

REE2019F3A31BIHEE - {#EE
ERREE MBS (20185 &) ©

REZE2019F3A31 A IHFE © HER
EERHERNQRKEMNBRARES
EHRERBBMHEMREE S ER
B (20184F « &) - HEFLIEIR
HEERBMETE=AXBE=F5
REE RS MUERARE (201845 ¢
) o

M2019F3A318 @ MEBUES  #F
MZEGEABEREEER AT S
ARER - BUERSEMEE (2018
Fm) o

REE2019F3A31BIHEE - {#EE
= A B B A T2 URCER Bk 5 UR B AR T SR
IRAEFkBREEEF(20184F « 48) o

BRI mRE M T EE SN
ARBEEHRERARBIREER T
AT L1 7 4 2R 3 F AR (AT FE) D43 448
FENEAEARS - RHHLARP
B EEERE AR (20184 ¢
) -
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
MBENBE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the NEEZEARE TS EERRABA AEM
Group for the last five financial years, prepared on the basis as set HWEENEHEES  EERBGEHZHT
out herein, is set out below: T

Year ended 31 March
BE3AMHLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

20194 20184 20174 20164 20154
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
BETT BETT  BETx  BETx  BET

Results £
Revenue WA 6,263,280 5,868,048 4,676,937 5,081,774 4,192,009
Gross profit ES] 1,341,945 1,233,923 915,825 1,254,147 979,384
Profit attributable to owner of ~ ARXREE A
the Company FE{G 5 A 282,438 240,188 97,635 442,054 337,806
Adjusted net profit for the FRE R G|
year&2 282,438 240,188 98,005 475,477 341,343
Gross profit margin (%) ERE (%) 21.4% 21.0% 19.6% 24.7% 23.4%
Net profit margin (%) T (%) 4.5% 4.1% 2.1% 8.7% 8.1%
Adjusted net profit ST s | R (9 ) MR
margin (%) &2 4.5% 4.1% 2.1% 9.4% 8.1%
Assets and liabilities BEEREBE
Total assets EEBE 6,954,505 6,024,210 4,949,937 4,589,625 3,129,637
Total liabilities BERE (4,030,332) (3,154,628) (2,329,845) (1,922,573) (1,998,353)
Total equity b g 2,924,173 2,869,582 2,620,092 2,666,952 1,131,284
Notes: & -

(1) Adjusted net profit for the year is derived by adding listing expenses (1) FRLRARBGERTHEBINA LR RHRELT
and deducting (losses)/gains on derivative financial instruments, net and EEBMTAEEBE) WS FEATERE - BFR
excluding the related tax impact from the net profit for the year. TEEFRAFNEENHBBERETE -

(2)  This non-GAAP financial data is a supplemental financial measure that is 2) UHARETRUNMEBIEAERMGES
not required by, or presented in accordance with HKFRSs and is therefore 81 - BEMBREENLES K - FHER
referred to as a “non-GAAP” financial measure. It is not a measurement RMEBTBREEAZ7] - Bt - BLEREB
of the Group's financial performance under HKFRSs and should not [IERREGTRA NI B EEIAT o IR
be considered as an alternative to profit from operations or any other RBEBVERELEGEAEEYBERANS
performance measures derived in accordance with HKFRSs or as an % NERIERBEBMBSIRELREENK
alternative to cash flows from operating activities or as a measure of the LN EE A EMRRAHERIER
Group's liquidity. EEBHRETENEREEIBHEAEBRD

AEMIER -

232 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # ¥ iR BB (128 H IR A 7



B e Bl B (&% k) A R & A

Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited

LEERE D FSCM BB A RMIBRBER

Printed on FSC™ certified paper using environmentally friendly ink



	封面

	關於我們

	目錄

	公司資料

	財務概要

	主席報告

	管理層討論及分析

	董事、高級管理層及公司秘書的履歷

	董事會報告

	企業管治報告

	環境、社會及管治報告

	獨立核數師報告

	綜合收益表

	綜合全面收益表

	綜合資產負債表

	綜合權益變動表

	綜合現金流量表

	綜合財務報表附註

	財務資料概要

	封底



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSong-Light
    /CGuLi-Bold
    /CGuYin-Bold
    /CHei2-Bold
    /CHei2-Xbold
    /CHei3-Bold
    /CHei-UltraBold
    /CJNgai-Bold
    /CKan-Xbold
    /CNganKai-Bold
    /CO2Yuen-XboldOutline
    /COYuen-Xbold
    /COYuen-XboldOutline
    /CPo3-Bold
    /CPo-Bold
    /CSong3-Medium
    /CSu-Medium
    /CXingKai-Bold
    /CXing-Medium
    /CXLi-Medium
    /CYuen-SemiMedium
    /MBei-Bold
    /MHei-Bold
    /MHei-Light
    /MHei-Medium
    /MHei-Xbold
    /MKai-Medium
    /MKai-SemiBold
    /MLi-Bold
    /MNgai-Bold
    /MSung-Light
    /MSung-Medium
    /MSung-Xbold
    /MYuen-Light
    /MYuen-Medium
    /MYuen-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 200
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 200
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHT <>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToRGB
      /DestinationProfileName (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


